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Financial Highlights
MEBE

The financial year end date of Hsin Chong Construction Group Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (G & & & & BB R 2 7 %)
Ltd. has been changed from 31 March to 31 December LHBFEAEERBRBEE_TT ) \F+_A=T—HIEWK
commencing from the financial period ended 31 December 2008. HEERS BEA=ZA=+T—HEXRATZA=+—H-
Accordingly, the current financial period covers the nine months It APHEBRE_TTNFOA-—BHE_FTT)\F+=-A
period from 1 April 2008 to 31 December 2008. Attention should =+ — B E A BRI o TE L BT #k L B EIR T8 K B B B I
be drawn to the fact that the comparative figures presented FEHE=ZARA=T—HL TR HH MAHEF - NELH
herein are for the twelve months period ended 31 March of the FEHEE  URHABZFHERATER -
relevant financial years. The difference in duration of the financial
periods should be considered when making year-on-year
comparisons.
e, # . . .
Revenue by Activity Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
S # a5 3¢ Y
BREBIEZWRE RABEREE ABMLERF
(HK$ million &% & & 1) (HK$ million & # & & Jt)
3,500 150
3,000 B 125 ]
2,500 — 100 .
2,000 75
-
1,500 50
1,000 25|V
|
500 0
2004/05 2005/06  2006/07  2007/08 2008
| Included the impairment of goodwill of HK$74 million arising from the acquisition
2004/05  2005/06 ~ 2006/07  2007/08 2008 of Synergis and an impairment provision of HK$11 million made for an unsold
property stock in the PRC. o - s )
# ETXS;J%;;;;Q;?If;fiigtzeﬂyzmpames and jointly controlled entities %E%gggégﬁggg&g@%gﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂOOO,OOOEL‘/(&QMEQEF —18
Il Included a write-back of |mpa|rment Ioss of HK$38 million for a property under
development for sale in Guangzhou, P
Building Construction and Civil Engineering BIEHMAREEMN 2 HHEXEEH %%f’ﬁﬂjz/ﬁkﬁgﬁﬁ [a] # 75 #£ 38,000,000
B R AT B
Electrical and Mechanical Installation Il Included total write-back of impairment loss of HK$127 million for a property
WEE TR under development for sale in Guangzhou, PRC and attributable interest in a
hotel property in Hong Kong
[11] Property Development and Rental @%¥¢1ﬁﬁAﬂgl)§ I\Zﬁi.‘ﬁd%?@ﬂP%%& BN RNER ZBEE DRGSR
NEBRIAE R Z BB B E & 3£41127,000,0007T -
Property Management and Facility Management Services IV Included total write-back of impairment loss of HK$55 million for a leasehold land
YR8 T B IR RS and building and attributable interest in a hotel property in Hong Kong.
. a%iﬂﬂ%%ﬁ&Z*H%’]iﬂﬁ&@%&—IE/EJEwa%FgH*EmVEHjZ/FX%EETEE!
[l Other Operations k& HEH#55,000,0007T °
Hit %%
Source of Funds Assets Employed

=AY EEEH

o 0 Fixed Assets’
4.3% 17.7% 26.5% 34.6% EEAE
Minority Interests Intangible Assets,
21.0% LB R Goodwill and Deferred

Capital and Reserves Inco/rrve Tax Assets
Attributable to the BVAE  BBR

Company’s Equity Holders 1.3% RS BAE
ARAEREE ARG [ Associated Companies
BARRfHE and Jointly Controlled
Entities
L T Bank Lt
u E?g}?iﬁimg ;o 24.6% BESR R AR HIERE
L) Oth [ Other Investments?
51.0% W Pyce
[l Net Current Assets
BB R

Including property, plant and equipment, investment properties and prepaid
premium for land lease.

BEME  HRERE  REVERBENLWEEER -

Including non-current held-to-maturity financial assets and available-for-sale
financial assets.

BIEERDFEI R BEERAIRHE 2 MBEE -

* For identification purpose only * e
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Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
HE-ZTN\E BE_ZTTN\F
+=RA=+—-H =A=+—H % Change
LEhEA HFE FEx
Income Statement Ratios BaRRE
Operating margin (excluding financial BRI
and securities income) (TRERERBEHRBAN) 1.0% 4.0% -75.0
Pretax margin W i1 AR ER AR 1.3% 4.8% -72.9
Net margin (excluding jointly controlled entities FIEFR A
and associated companies) (T BIE L RIEHE 82 R B 57) 0.6% 4.2% -85.7
Interest coverage ratio FEBEX
— basic — &K 12.0 177.6 -93.2
— exclude non-cash assets impairment — RetRFR e EERE
loss and write back &5 18 & B # 58.7 176.3 -66.7
Basic earnings per share (cents) FREAREF (L) 1.0 19.1 948
Diluted earnings per share (cents) SREERFN () 1.0 18.7 -94.7
Dividend per share (cents) FREE (L) 4.0 9.5 -57.9
Dividend payout ratio K Bt X 4.0x 49.7% 7.0x
Balance Sheet Ratios EEBERILE
Current ratio BN & 1.2 14 -143
Quick ratio RE L E 1.0 1.2 -16.7
Assets coverage ratio BEBEHLX 1.4 1.8 222
Debt to capitalisation ratio BEHEARLX 29.2% 0.0% N/ATEA
Net assets value per share (cents) FREEFE L) 60.5 97.6 -38.0
Cash Flow Statement Ratios FeRERLE
Capital expenditures to depreciation ratio EARTHTEL X 2.5 0.9 1.8x
Capital expenditures coverage ratio AARAXBELE 12,6 19.3 347
Depreciation to cash flow ratio FEHREREBLX 3.2% 6.1% 475
Cash flow from operation per share (cents) BREBBELSTRE (1) 40.8 16.7 1.4x
Rate of Return Ratios (Note 2) [l 35 b %= (Fi3E2)
Return on average equity TR R R %S B $R R 1.7% 20.0% -91.5
Return on total capital and borrowings AEAREREREERE 3.9% 20.7% 812
Total Debt to Cash Flow Ratio HEBEHRSREL R
Total debt to cash flow ratio wEEHRSRELX 0.8 0.0  NATEA
Market Price Ratios mELX
Dividend yield B8 %
Period/Year high 28/ F55 8.8% 9.4% NM
Period/Year low 28/ F &K 1.7% 2.6% NM
Price to earning ratio DIEEES
Period/Year high 28/ F55 237.0 18.9 NM
Period/Year low 28/ F &K 455 5.3 NM
Notes: =T -
(1) Formula of certain financial ratios as set out above are presented on page 167 for (1) P A THBEERZHERARFI7TEFIE AR ESR
easy reference. R
2) Rate of return ratios for the nine months ended 31 December 2008 represented () BHE-_ZZE)N\F+_A=+—BULABAAZEHLE X
the annualised rate of return ratios. BERRRELE -

NM: % change not meaningful
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I am pleased to introduce this annual report and the financial statements of
the Company. Having acquired the controlling interest of the Company in
2007, the business had maintained strong growth momentum despite the
abrupt economic changes in year 2008.

2008 was an eventful year, as we have experienced escalating material prices
for the first three quarters, immediately followed by the economic downturn in
the last quarter, which has unavoidably caused negative impact to the
construction industry in general. Our Company, with a long history of
successful construction related industry experience, had weathered this storm
by sharply focusing on our key business with effective risk management while
expanding into new business lines related to our core strength.

The suspension of construction works on Parcels 5 & 6 of the Macau Venetian
Cotai project in November 2008 had unfortunately impacted on our financial
results. Prudent cost control and timely re-deployment of staff had lessened
the impact to the overall financial results.

Despite the economic downturn towards the end of the year, bringing with it
reduced number of project opportunities, the Company continued to
successfully win new construction projects and related work to maintain a
healthy order book.

By the end of August 2008, the Company had successfully completed the
acquisition of a controlling interest in Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”)
(stock code: 02340), a leading property management company, to further
expand the scope of the Company from property development, construction,
construction management to property and facility management, providing our
clients with vertically integrated services. Synergis was previously a part of the
Hsin Chong group of companies. The completion of this acquisition marks the
successful reunion of this key operating unit with the Hsin Chong Construction
Group.

To maintain long term growth, the Company continues to develop new
business lines and markets, utilising our team of experienced professionals,
and the excellent reference in many aspects of our field, including our
specialised skills in construction management. The immediate focus is on the
railway sector, which continues to be a growing market, both in the Chinese
Mainland and in other markets.

Amidst these market and economic changes, the core value of the Company
remains. Integrity, Quality, Service, Innovation and Social Responsibility remain
very high on our agenda. The Company has made donations to the Hong
Kong Red Cross China Relief Fund for the Sichuan Earthquake and continues
to promote staff's active participation in community services. In addition, the
Company has maintained a close relationship with various communities of
Kowloon East to offer social services to the needy in Kwun Tong and the
neighbouring districts. It is the Company’s belief that involvements in social
services not only fulfill our social responsibility, they also enhance the public
spirit and caring attitude of our staff.

*  For identification purpose only
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Despite the economic downturn affecting most businesses, especially the
financial sector in the latter half of 2008, the Group continued to secure new
business orders from our prestigious clients. In December 2008, the Group
secured a HK$883 million construction contract from Kerry Properties group,
for its proposed new headquarters at King’s Road, manifesting the continuing
confidence of our clients in our work.

To align with the financial reporting period of the Group's parent company,
Mission Hills Group, the Company has changed the year end date from 31
March to 31 December such that the current financial reporting period would
be a nine-month span from 1 April 2008 to 31 December 2008.

Our core construction business remained strong for the period under review.
The segment results of HK$98.1 million from the building construction and
civil engineering arm, compared favourably with the results for the full 12
months in the last financial year. However, we also experienced modest set
back in other less weighted segments like the electrical and mechanical
installation segment and the property segment due to lower volume of work
and sales.

As reported earlier in the interim results in December 2008, our Group has
completed the acquisition of a controlling interest in Synergis, a property and
facility services provider, as a strategic step towards providing total solutions in
construction and property management. Due to the unprecedented global
financial tsunami and its consequential impact on most economic sectors,
there were significant disturbances in the stock markets all over the world. The
Hang Seng Index dropped 32% from 21,261 points on 29 August 2008, the
date we completed the acquisition of Synergis, to 14,387 points on 31
December 2008, the end date of the period under review. In line with good
accounting practice, it is necessary to factor in an impairment on goodwill of
HK$73.9 million arising from the acquisition of Synergis. Profit attributable to
the equity holders of the Company was HK$6.7 million. Stripping out this one-
off financial impact, the profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company would be HK$80.6 million, which would be more comparable to the
HK$123.9 million profit reported for the last financial year.

After giving due consideration to the results reported, the reserves of the
Company and the working capital requirement of the Group, the Board has
resolved to recommend the payment of a final cash dividend of HK2.0 cents
per share (final cash dividend of HK4.0 cents per share for the last financial
year ended 31 March 2008) for the nine months ended 31 December 2008.
Conditional upon approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming 2009
annual general meeting of the Company, the proposed final dividend will be
paid on Tuesday, 9 June 2009 to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the registers of members of the Company on Tuesday, 26 May 2009
(Hong Kong time).

On 13 November 2008, the Company made a distribution of HK$0.340744
per share by way of “distribution in specie” of 149,588,284 issued shares of
Synergis (“Synergis Shares”) on the basis of 0.2230 Synergis Share for every
one share held by the shareholders in the Company on the valuation of
HK$1.528 per Synergis Share. Together with the interim cash dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share paid on 6 January 2009, total distribution and dividends
will amount to HK$0.380744 per share for the nine months ended 31
December 2008 (total cash dividends of HK9.5 cents per share paid for the last
financial year ended 31 March 2008).

BER_ZZENFTHFREUSBREREZILER
RLRMBOTEBDITE  AKBENBEREXREPR
TRESMEBITE - R-_ZTZENF+ A AEER
15 5% B2 8k % B B R B 883,000,000 T 2 B iE A
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With our Hong Kong SAR Government's determination to roll out the ten
infrastructure projects and other schemes to boost employment, | maintain a
relatively optimistic view on the construction industry as a whole.

While our core business remains building and civil engineering construction in
Hong Kong, we have actively expanded our electrical and mechanical
engineering and interior decoration businesses where we see many new
opportunities with less severe competition. Our new initiative to provide
tendering and construction management services to Mainland enterprises in
overseas markets, mainly on railway related projects, has proven to be a
successful business strategy. We have started with a project in the Middle East
and expect to repeatedly utilise our proven expertise in construction
management in other parts of Asia.

Despite the current work suspension of the Macau Venetian Cotai project, we
are asked to maintain a core team of experts to provide support to the
Venetian before work resumes.

We will also enhance our team in the Chinese Mainland to pursue strategic
opportunities in building construction, construction management and property
development.

The successful amalgamation of Synergis enables us to provide a more
comprehensive range of services to our clients looking for total solutions. For
example, a new and immediate initiative is the maintenance of old buildings
scheme with a subsidy of HK$1 billion as announced recently by the Financial
Secretary. With our construction expertise and Synergis’ experience on the
refurbishment of old buildings, we should be well positioned to fully explore
these new opportunities.

With all of the abovementioned new opportunities, and the management
team’s strong determination to succeed, we expect the Company to develop a
sustainable business model despite the challenges posed by the global financial
crisis.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to our
shareholders, business partners and suppliers for their continued support and
confidence in the Group, especially in this difficult economic environment.
Similarly, I would like to thank every member of our staff for their loyalty,
dedication and continuing hard work. Despite the uncertainties and instability
in the domestic and global markets, we are committed to optimising all
business opportunities for the benefit of all our stakeholders.

David CHU Shu-ho
Chairman

Hong Kong, 1 April 2009
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Operating Results LEXEE
Financial Highlights HERE Nine months from Twelve months from
1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENF o S
A—BZE MA—BZ
—EENF —TENF
+ZA=+—H1Lt —A=+—HLt
@ A +ZEA
Revenue (HK$'m) Wz (BB Ea8T) 1,837 2,495

Profit attributable to equity holders ARRERZFEEA

of the Company (HK$'m) EEEF (EEBHE L) 7 124
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREKRZF (BBW) 1.0 19.1
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) GlREERN CEB) 1.0 18.7
Interim dividend per share (HK cents) BRABRE (GBEL) 2.0 5.5
Final dividend per share (HK cents) BIRRAKER B (BEAL) 2.0 4.0

The Group reported revenue of HK$1,836.7 million and gross profit of
HK$231.8 million for the nine months ended 31 December 2008 (2007/08:
HK$2,494.7 million and HK$218.5 million respectively). The revenue and gross
profit were mainly derived from the construction work and electrical and
mechanical installation activities in Hong Kong, and the construction
management business in Macau. Synergis, of which the Group acquired a
strategic controlling interest during the period and now included in the
consolidated results of the Group, contributed revenue of HK$166.6 million
and gross profit of HK$30.4 million for the period from 1 September to 31
December 2008. Meanwhile, general and administrative expenses incurred for
the period was HK$126.9 million, including accrued non-cash share option
staff benefits of HK$21.6 million and the consolidation of the overhead
expenses of Synergis for HK$22.4 million following completion of the
acquisition. Other income, mainly exchange gains, interest on deposits and
recovery of overheads from joint ventures and third parties, was at HK$26.2
million in the period. Other operating expenses and charges, totalling
HK$104.5 million in the period, reflected fair value loss on forward exchange
contracts, impairment provision made for the reduction of estimated saleable
value of unsold property stock in the PRC, but most significantly, the
impairment of goodwill and amortisation of intangible assets arising from the
acquisition of Synergis. Taking into account the share of net loss from jointly
controlled entities of HK$5.2 million for the period, overall, the Group reported
profit of HK$5.8 million for the nine months ended 31 December 2008
(2007/08: HK$121.0 million). Excluding the minority interests, a profit of
HK$6.7 million was attributable to the equity holders of the Company
(2007/08: HK$123.9 million).

AEEREE_TTZNF+ A=+ —HIENEA
% 15 Ui %5 7% #£1,836,700,000 7T & £ F78 231,800,000
T(ZZEZL /T NEE : H 5 &S H2494,700,000
7T K % 218,500,000 7T ) ° W 2k &%%Ily)éaéﬁé
PEEIRAMEELRTIREL  UKBMZESA
EREK HANBAEERKERBEETREZR T
REBENALAEESEAEERNZTFEEEN %
ZENFNA—BE+-_A=+—B I HEHRKE
75 1 166,600,000 7T M E F| 7 # 30,400,000 7T © £2 1t [F]
B HIN 2 77 R R 2 & 78 1 126,900,000 7T+ B 15 fE
2 IEIR & R EE B R F B ¥ 21,600,000 7T KR 5E
U B 12 18 5T & B 1 2 A B % 122,400,000 TT 4R
AAR - Rz HMU A & BE 26,200,000t 0 EE

AELWNZE FERANEUARAAELENE=ZZIWE
CEERYT c AN B ALY RS A s
104,500,000 * EF B ESNERBREHNZAFEES

B RAEZALEMEFEHT AL EEBERERN
Sz RERE ERITEZARKREBFESEEMEL
CRAEBRERERVEEBREIR SEEHADEHR
B 4 4 B 82 2 0% 48 5518 78 5,200,000 T 1% - B2
5 AEERBE-_SENFt+_A=Z+—HILNE
AR 22 %M A EK580000T (Z2F+ EN
FE : A%121,000,000T) c B BB EIETE
AKRmlE=mFER ARG T AE%6,700,000T(=F
T4 TN\ FE : 51123,900,0007T) °
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Managing Director’s Review
ESAKERE

Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2
EEMKEE B

The Stonecutters Bridge project
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e T it

08

(1)

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

Building construction and civil engineering

Revenue for the building construction and civil engineering business
segment was HK$1,441.0 million for the nine months ended 31
December 2008 (2007/08: HK$1,973.4 million). Profit after finance
costs for the period was HK$98.1 million (2007/08: HK$80.6 million),
which reflected higher profit contributions from the construction
management business in Macau and improved margins for completed
construction projects in Hong Kong. Meanwhile, building construction
and civil engineering activities undertaken through jointly controlled
entities reported a net loss of HK$5.3 million for the period, resulting
from the net effect of loss incurred in a building construction project
and a write-back on losses previously booked in a major civil project.

In Hong Kong, the Group secured several new contracts in the period,
of which the significant ones included (a) Proposed Commercial
Development at Nos. 863-865 King's Road, Quarry Bay; (b) Construction
of Choi Wan Road Site 2 Phase 2 (Domestic Portion), Site 3B Phase 2,
District Open Space Site B and Local Open Space Site C from the Hong
Kong Housing Authority; and (c) a renovation work contract at Wo Che
Market from The Link Management Limited.

In Macau, the Group successfully completed Parcel 1 of the Venetian
Cotai project (now known as The Venetian Macao - Resort - Hotel) and
the first phase of Parcel 2 (Four Seasons Hotel Macao). The Group has
continued to provide construction management services on Parcel 2 and
Parcels 5 & 6 Phase | and Il. These projects have been important profit
contributors to the Group. In November 2008, the developer decided to
suspend all construction works in Parcels 5 & 6. There is no indication as
to when the works might resume. The Group will follow closely the
development of work suspension and had implemented appropriate
measures to mitigate losses and financial exposures of the Group. The
suspension has minimal effect on the financial performance of the
Group for the nine-month period under review but will have an impact
in the new financial year. The Group has reduced construction
management staff due to the suspension. In accordance with the
construction management contracts, all payments in lieu of notice to
retrenched staff had been recovered.

Annual Report 2008

(1) BFEERIAIRE

HE-_ZENE+_A=+—-—BILtABEAZ
BFRERLT RIREBS > BRZABE
1,441,000,000 L( = ZEZT+ /T N\FE: B
1,973,400,0007T ) = HA 9 40 Bk @b & A AR 18 2 05 A
58 #98,100,000 T ( —EE+ / TN\EE : 8
#80,600,0007T ) * Ty ARz #EiEEEE
BERRSZEMNER UWEREBEBRIZE
EEBZEARNBEERNE - BHRK - EB8
HEZEHEEL2HEFEERIATRES -
TE-EEFREEBERSIEEMYE &
EOA " BXTELIARAIBRBEERBEARZE
BHETEE SRNDSHPRASHRFEGEBE
5,300,000 7T ©

RERE AEBEHARSZEFEH  Hp 2
TEAHNBIE(a) 8 HIF K 2 B863-8655% 2 2
BEEREBER bLHBHBEEFEZESH L2
EEMB2E _H(EEAD) - HE3BE _H -
R AREA B EB RS RB B RC 2
FREAGH  UWROBEEEEZBER A AN
ZREEMBMEEETRRZAD -

PRPY - AL BB IER 5T B BT A B ot 3%
—EBR (REABEMEERA-ERN—EE)
AR —E—MIER OEFNFEE) - A%
BMESRBRE _RBBARAZE-—ARE -
HIEARHEETERY - ZFHEYALKE
ZNBEEERERM R_ZFZNFE+ -
ERERTEENEBAI AN Z2HEETE -
BRTEFRBERIEERNAURBEL - XEH
BERETREFEZ2EFRER  TORRE
REASREZBREMBRR TREEFEY
AREEEBERZNERMBRAECERUE
BHT-EVBRFESEBRTE  KEED
AIREEMEREEERAR - BREZEE
BEY HKTERABRZRBASC 2HKME -




The Venetian Macao - Resort - Hotel
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Electrical and mechanical installation

As old projects were completed or approaching completion in the period
while new projects have just commenced work, the electrical and
mechanical installation segment reported reduced revenue of HK$184.1
million (2007/08: HK$467.0 million) and profit after finance costs of
HK$11.0 million (2007/08: HK$22.0 million) for the nine months ended
31 December 2008. During the period under review, the Group secured
several new contracts, including (a) Electrical and Mechanical Ventilation
Installation work for HAECO (Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company
Limited) Aircraft Maintenance Hangar No. 3A; (b) Plumbing and
Drainage Installation work for Phase 2, Tai Wai Maintenance Centre
Property Development, STTL No. 529, Tai Wai, Sha Tin; and (c) Fire
Services and Plumbing and Drainage Installations Subcontracts for
Proposed Shopping Centre at Discovery Bay North Development Lot No.
R.P. of Lot 385 in DD 352 and Extension Discovery Bay, Lantau Island.

Property development and rental

Revenue for the property development and rental segment was
HK$45.0 million (2007/08: HK$54.3 million), of which HK$20.7 million
was derived from the sale of a small number of the remaining residential
units of Wen Chang Pavilion in Guangzhou, PRC (97% of the residential
units had been disposed of as at the last financial year end) which
accounted for 46% of the segment revenue in the period. In the
meantime, Hsin Chong Construction (Property Development) Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, was established to spearhead all
future property development activities of the Group in China. At
present, the Group will focus its resources in Southern China and an
office in Guangzhou, PRC was set up as a platform to undertake
feasibility studies and explore profitable business opportunities in the
region.

Rental income, representing the remaining 54% of the segment
revenue, was derived from Hsin Chong Center; No. 3 Lockhart Road;
and the unsold car parks at Lung Mun Oasis, Tuen Mun. At balance
sheet date, No. 3 Lockhart Road was fully let (100% occupancy).

Overall, the property development and rental segment reported profit
after finance costs of HK$10.3 million for the nine-month period
(2007/08: HK$22.1 million).

The Group's subsidiary Synergis provides comprehensive property
and facility management services

SEETHEERREZENYERRBEZRY
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Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

Property management and facility
management services

On 29 August 2008, the Group completed its acquisition of 66.4% of
the issued share capital of Synergis, which is engaged in the provision of
property and facility management services and listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Through the mandatory unconditional cash offer to acquire all the
remaining Synergis Shares made in September 2008 pursuant to the
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases of Hong Kong;
the Group had received Synergis Shares tendered for acceptance of the
general offer such that the total acquisition increased to 96.0% of the
entire issued share capital of Synergis for a total net consideration of
HK$499.0 million in end September 2008. Thereafter, the Company
distributed in specie part of the Synergis Shares owned by it to its
shareholders (other than overseas shareholders whose entitlements to
the distribution were satisfied in cash) of HK$228.7 million and reduced
its shareholding interest in Synergis to approximately 50.9% in
November 2008.

Through this strategic acquisition of Synergis, the Company and
Synergis are executed to undertake new phase of growth and
development with integration of property development, property
construction and property management services capabilities, generating
new business synergies and enhancing competitiveness under a
common Chinese brand name “¥7& ", to deliver greater value to the
shareholders of both companies. In future, the Mission Hills Group, a
leading property developer and leader in the leisure industry in China
which now owns a controlling interest in the Group, will lead the two
companies to further expand their businesses in the areas of property
development, property construction and property management.

Synergis contributed revenue of HK$166.6 million for the period from 1
September to 31 December 2008.

The share price of Synergis has decreased by 64.0% to HK$0.55 per
Synergis Share as of 31 December 2008, compared to the Group’s net
general offer price of HK$1.528 per Synergis Share. As noted under the
“Events after the balance sheet date” in the interim report 2008, and
according to Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36, “Impairment of
Assets”, such a significant decrease in market capitalisation of Synergis
constituted an “impairment indicator” to the goodwill and intangible
assets resulting from the acquisition as at 31 December 2008. And as a
result of impairment assessments of the goodwill and intangible assets,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that there was an
impairment on goodwill of HK$73.9 million as at 31 December 2008.

Taking into account the amortisation of intangible assets of HK$4.7
million, the property management and facility management services
segment reported a loss after finance costs of HK$67.8 million for the
period from 1 September to 31 December 2008.

Other operations

Other operations mainly reflected a sharing of residual profit from
inactive associated companies. Profit for the period of HK$0.2 million
mainly represented the fair value gain on an investment property.

Annual Report 2008
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The Economy

It is generally recognised that 2008 is an unprecedented year of challenge. We
in Hong Kong have experienced a high level of cost inflation triggered by
rapidly increasing food and oils price in the first half of the year, with rapid
deterioration of world economy in the latter half. Clouded by the US sub-
prime mortgage problems that have escalated since 2007, the financial crisis
intensified quickly into a global financial tsunami following the collapse of the
major US investment banks, and especially bankruptcy of Lehman Brothers in
September last year. Central governments in all leading economies have
poured many billions of dollars, in various ways and bailout plans, to
strengthen the capital of major banks and financial institutions.

Hong Kong, as a small open economy, cannot be immune from the worldwide
financial crisis. With abrupt weakening of the economies of major trading
countries on which Hong Kong relies heavily for it exports/re-exports, in
January 2009, Hong Kong exports plunged 21.8% — the biggest one month
drop in half a century; while imports similarly registered 27.1% decrease. As a
result of the slow-down in the global economy, Hong Kong’s Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) growth has fallen successively from +7.3% in the first quarter,
to +4.3% in the second quarter, +1.7% in the third quarter, and -2.5% in the
fourth quarter. Overall, for 2008 as a whole, GDP only grew by 2.5 per cent.
However, with a sluggish economic outlook, it is anticipated that there will be
a further set-back of GDP of between 2-4% in 2009.

Given that the financial sector is one of the most globalised areas of business,
the credit crunch inevitably impacts a great deal on the Hong Kong economy
which is manifested by tightening credit facilities and the increase of borrowing
costs. The worsening economic climate globally and locally, induces business
enterprises to take a more cautious approach to capital investment and staff
recruitment. The consequences are reduced asset prices and falling
employment. Negative equity cases have soared in the year of 2008 and there
have been large scale redundancy plans and bankruptcies of small and large
corporations alike in Hong Kong in the recent several months. Unemployment
rate has risen to 4.6% for the quarter of November 08 — January 09, from
4.1% for the last quarter of 2008. Historically, the unemployment rates in
periods of global regional distress have been around 6% and 8% in 1999 and
2003 respectively due to the Asian Financial Turmoil and the outbreak of SARs.
This may indicate that unemployment rate could further escalate later in the
year.

Despite the uncertainty as to the timing of economic recovery, the medium
and longer-term economic prospects for Hong Kong should remain promising
due to the further strengthening of our integration with the Mainland,
enhancing our strategic position in the Pearl River Delta.

The Industry

In line with the economic downturn, the building and construction activities in
Hong Kong gained only 0.3% in 2008. The rapid deterioration of the economy
instantly reduced the initial high growth of 9.1% in the first quarter, which
was succeeded by negative growth figures in the remaining three consecutive
quarters by -0.4%, -4.1% and -3.6%. In Macau, the recent set-back of the
gaming industry and the suspension of related construction works in Macau
has also brought the return of many construction workers to Hong Kong,
adding many people to the unemployed market.

With heightened uncertainties in the depressed economy and a gloomy
property market outlook, private sector construction activities remain slow.
There was a far lower volume of land transactions by private developers in
2008 compared with last year. Going forward, private sector investment will
stall until clearer signs of an economic recovery are in sight.
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The Industry (continued

In an attempt to revive the economy during this most difficult time of global
recession, the Chief Executive re-affirmed in his 2008-09 Policy Address that
he would push the ten major infrastructure projects as planned to promote
economic growth through infrastructural development. Several specified
projects such as West Kowloon Cultural District, Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao
Bridge and the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link have made
reasonable progress towards commencement of works during the next two
years. The Financial Secretary estimated that these capital work expenditures
would amount to HK$39.3 billion for 2009-10.

The Group

In August 2008, the Group completed the acquisition of Synergis, such that it
is now able to provide fully integrated services of property development,
property construction and property management solution to our clients,
leveraged on an unified Chinese renowned brand name “#7&" that is
recognised for both quality and service. Meanwhile, the Group is aligning its
internal corporate administration functions in order to enhance cost
effectiveness. In the near term, the Group will seek appropriate building
maintenance opportunities in the fast-track public sector works under the two-
year "Operation Building Bright” campaign of the Government, for
maintenance of 1,000 dilapidated buildings under the Hong Kong Housing
Society and the Urban Renewal Authority. The Group will also benefit
significantly from this investment when the economic environment regains
momentum, especially for the great potential of the underdeveloped property
management market in the Mainland China.

The slowdown and suspension of the construction work in Macau impacted
the Group’s business performance. Accordingly, the Group has re-aligned the
project teams in Macau as agreed with Venetian who pays for all of the team,
whilst vigorously pursuing opportunities to apply our successful construction
management skills and experience elsewhere. This includes the Middle East
and Mainland China.

Coupled with the RMB4 trillion stimulus fiscal package announced last
November by the China Government, substantial amounts of which is heavily
related to railways, roads, airports and post-earthquake reconstruction, the
intensification of construction of the major infrastructure projects in Hong
Kong will definitely help the recovery process. The Group is therefore actively
pursuing participation in some of the major infrastructure developments in
Hong Kong, solely or jointly with strategic partners, as well as investigating the
possibility of securing business in the Chinese Mainland which would utilize
the ample experience and skills of the staff within the Group.

The year 2009 also marks the 70th Anniversary of the Hsin Chong Group.
During the past 70 years, the Hsin Chong Group has contributed to the
development of Hong Kong's economy and certain other economies in the
region. The Group has made significant contributions to the construction
industry, with strong emphasis on its core values of Integrity, Quality, Service,
Innovation and Social Responsibility, which underpins our success. However,
the mere existence of the Group would not have been successful without the
immense support from our valued customers, dedicated staff members, and
treasured business partners.

Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 1 April 2009

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008
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Dr. David CHU Shu-ho
KEREL

Dr. David CHU Shu-ho (“Dr. David CHU"), JR aged 58, was appointed a
Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Board in December 2007. He
is also the non-executive chairman of Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is a director
of Carrick Worldwide Limited, Mission Hills Golf Club Limited and Upper Luck
Holdings Limited, all of which are the controlling shareholders of the Company.
Dr. David CHU is the founder and Chairman of the Mission Hills Group
("MHG"), which focuses on sports and diversified leisure industry investments.
MHG is the pioneer in developing the leisure industry in the Chinese Mainland
and currently invests in and runs the Mission Hills Golf Club — the largest golf
resort in the world, well accredited by the Guinness World Records. Dr. David
CHU is named by the “Golf Inc.” as one of the top 35 most influential persons
(ranked 9th) in the golf world in 2008. Dr. David CHU has over 30 years of
experience in managing investments and operations across Asia and North
America region covering sports, leisure, hospitality and property businesses. Dr.
David CHU has been promoting the development of culture in sports and
leisure industry in the Chinese Mainland and has been an ambassador
advocating sports development in China and international exchange
programmes. He was the strategic advisor to the Beijing 2008 Olympics Bid
Committee. Dr. David CHU was honored with a Doctorate of Laws from the
University of Toronto in Canada. In 2005, The Purple Mountain observatory
named an internationally numbered asteroid 4988 in honour of David Shu Ho
CHU. He was a member of the Selection Committee of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and is currently the Chairman of Happy Valley Athletic
Association, Chairman of The Global Foundation of Distinguished Chinese
Limited, Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Commerce, Industry and
Professionals Association, Founding Chairman of Kowloon Federation of
Associations of Hong Kong, a member of the Council of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, Chairman of Promotion of Putonghua Trust Foundation,
Chairman of Hong Kong Livelihood and Democratic Power Fund (B8R AR
FEHELE). He is also the Vice Chairman of China Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment, Vice Chairman of four major sport
associations: China Golf Association, China Football Association, China
Volleyball Association, China Tennis Association, Adviser of Chinese Cycling
Association, honorary member of the Council of Nanjing University, Honorary
President of Sports Science College, Teaching University of South China,
Honorary Chairman of the Council of Shenzhen University, Honorary Adviser
for Asia Region of University of Toronto, Canada and board member of the
Council of Upper Canada College, Canada. Dr. David CHU is a member of the
8th, 9th, 10th and 11th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (“CPPCC") and a vice chairman of the strategic
proposal subcommittee for the 10th and 11th CPPCC. He is the father of Dr.
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin, a Non-Executive Director of the Company, and Dr.
Catherine CHU, the Director of Strategic Development and Corporate Services
of the Group.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. WONG Ying-wai
EREXE

Mr. WONG Ying-wai (“Mr. WONG"), SBS, JR MPA, BSoc.Sc., aged 56, was
appointed an Executive Director and the Executive Deputy Chairman of the
Board in December 2007. He is the chairman of the remuneration committee,
a member of the executive committee and a trustee of the committee of
trustees for employee share subscription scheme of the Company. Mr. WONG
is also the executive deputy chairman of Synergis, and a director of certain
other subsidiaries of the Company. He is the vice chairman of MHG which
holds a controlling interest in the Company. Mr. WONG was educated at
Harvard University, University of Oxford, The University of Hong Kong and The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star
Medal by the HKSAR Government in 2007. Mr. WONG joined the
administrative officer grade of the Hong Kong Government in 1975 and served
in many senior directorate positions until 1992. Since then, he has held senior
management positions in a number of well known Hong Kong listed
companies in property development and construction business sectors
including K. Wah International Holdings Limited, Henderson China Holdings
Limited and the Shui On Group. He was appointed as an official adviser to the
drafting of the Basic Law for Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") (1985-1990) and subsequently appointed by The National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China (“NPC") as a member of the
Preparatory Committee relating to the establishment of HKSAR (1993 to
1997). Currently, he is a deputy of NPC. Mr. WONG is also the chairman of the
Court and Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University; the chairman of the
Hong Kong International Film Festival Society Limited; the chairman of the
Business and Professionals Federation of Hong Kong; and a board member of
the Airport Authority Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Tourism Board and the Hong
Kong Film Development Council. Mr. WONG is also the executive chairman of
the Singapore-based Pacific Star Group, an independent non-executive director
of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, and the non-executive chairman of Yangtze China Investment
Limited, which is listed on London AIM.

Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho (“Mr. LEUNG"), OBE, JR, BSc (Eng), CEng,
R.PE., FHKIE, FIMechE, FCIBSE, FIEAust, FHKEng, FHKIoD, aged 62, was
appointed an Independent Non-executive Director in January 2008, re-
designated as an Executive Director in October 2008 and appointed the
Managing Director of the Company in early January 2009. He is a member of
the executive committee, a trustee of the committee of trustees for employee
share subscription scheme, and a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. LEUNG graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering. He is a professional mechanical
engineer, and is currently the deputy chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. LEUNG had served as the chairman of the Greater China Region
of Hyder Consulting Limited from 1995 to 2002. Mr. LEUNG is a board
member of the Airport Authority Hong Kong, a member of the Town Planning
Board, a panel member of the Administrative Appeals Board, the chairman of
the Energy Advisory Committee and the chairman of the Process Review Panel
of the Financial Reporting Council.
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Mr. CHAN Ka-kui
PRERFE 4

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin
KPpREt

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT
Barry John BUTTIFANT &4

.

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin (“Dr. Kenneth CHU"), aged 34, was appointed a XRREEBL((REREEBL)) HFMp RN_ZEZ
Non-executive Director in December 2007. He is also a member of the audit +tFET _ABZERIANTESRT - BT R/ARAE
committee of the Company. Dr. Kenneth CHU is a director of Upper Luck ZZEBgMKE - KREEI1E 1+ AUpper Luck Holdings
Holdings Limited, Mission Hills Golf Club Limited and Carrick Worldwide Limited, Limited ~ Mission Hills Golf Club Limited 2 Carrick
all of which are the controlling shareholders of the Company. He is the son of Dr. Worldwide Limited(ZHH AR AR ZIERBKRR) 2 &
David CHU Shu-ho, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and EoBARARAZEREBRKRENRESESIIENTER
the Non-executive Chairman of the Board. He is also the brother of Dr. Catherine AEZBL2RF - BNRARNEERCEFHEBER LD
CHU, the Director of Strategic Development and Corporate Services of the ¥RBEBIEZTLAZRBELINED - KRBT
Group. Dr. Kenneth CHU was educated at The University of Western Ontario in ERINZEAALZABARE BARYUTEREBEZEE
Canada. He was honored with a Doctorate of Laws by his alma mater for his KB ERERMERBELER  REEIREZFAR
contributions in sports leisure development and community services in China and EBrREBEEL KEREBITASTEE A TR TE
Hong Kong. Dr. Kenneth CHU is the Vice Chairman of MHG and is responsible ERENEERZEE  EPRYEEE (BEREZ
for planning and managing the construction and design of sports and property EaBARSRAEETYE) CEERRZ S - BRYE
assets of MHG, including championship golf courses and residential properties. LeBANEEAEER T ABAB 4T KSR I
He has over 14 years of experience in property and golf asset development, and —EEHERSEBEERRE  BELAEYH BmE X
has been managing MHG in developing assets by blending sports, business, bt - HKAREERSESEFELE KXERELT—FER
culture, leisure and living components. Dr. Kenneth CHU has been actively 2EPBRLNEBSZEERE  UWRETFPBRLEESFTF
involved in community services in China and Hong Kong to promote interaction MEEM2BZESREE BELATEL2ESSF
and collaboration between China and Hong Kong young business leaders, BASEE BEEHIRNECESSREEETTYH
including being a member of All-China Youth Federation, a vice chairman of @ETE RKRETEFHEACSEZESTFEXKENRER
Hong Kong United Youth Exchange Foundation as well as Hong Kong United HMNEEEE -

Youth Association, a committee member of Tianjin Youth Federation and a

director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce Limited.

Mr. CHAN Ka-kui (“Mr. CHAN"), BBS, JP. aged 58, was appointed an BRERBGTE([BREE])  BBS, JP> HFE8FH » N _E
Executive Director and the Managing Director of the Company in August ZRENAEZAARAANTESRARNAESHKE

2006, and retired from the position of Managing Director and re-designated to TR ZZEZNF-—AYETESBLCERMEAMT
a Non-executive Director of the Company in early January 2009. He is also BARRNBZIIEPNTEE - WIS ANEEBHIRHE QA
currently director of a few subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. CHAN is a fellow 2EE -BRAAAEBEEREHFIEMB2e AR
member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and The Chartered FHhHREe s EREE - BFER—NANA—F (AR
Institute of Arbitrators. He was formerly the Managing Director of the AL ZE— NN FHEETERARAIZESBK
Company since its flotation in 1991 until 1998 and then rejoined the Group in B oHBER_ZEXENABRIAMARER - HFRE
August 2006. He has around 37 years of experience in the construction field. HERBEEBIIF 2R -BNAEEEEHIRTE
He is also a member of the Executive Committee of Hong Kong Housing EeZE EHINLERMATZIAEER/KE -

Society, a member of the board of directors of the Agency For Volunteer EBEARBZBHT  MEBEBIANEBREHE -

Service and the Friends of Caritas, an Honorary Professor of The University of RimE AL SEFTZEZEINERDERE - AL
Hong Kong and an Adjunct Professor of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. THREZEGRAMBZERNEARNEZEGLIEE -

Previously, Mr. CHAN had served as the chairman of the Construction Industry
Training Authority, and a member of the Town Planning Board and other
government advisory committees.

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (“Mr. BUTTIFANT"), FCCA, FCMI(UK), FCPA, Barry John BUTTIFANT% & ([ BUTTIFANT. 4% ) -
FHKMA, FHKloD, aged 64, was appointed as an Executive Director of the FCCA, FCMI(UK), FCPA, FHKMA, FHKloD - fﬁffﬂﬁf

Company in February 2008 and re-designated as a Non-executive Director on 19 N-BEN\FE_-AEEFANTESE TH_ZF
March 2009. Mr. BUTTIFANT is a non-executive director of Synergis. Mr. NF=ZRA+NLBATEENTES - BUTTIFANT?*E &
BUTTIFANT is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified ABHEEE ZIEHNITES - BUTTIFANTE iﬁ’j;‘i =
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the FAReHMAT  FEHMAT  ERHEHERE
Chartered Management Institute, The Hong Kong Management Association and B HEEEZEMEeNETAEERE @ 2EBEFe
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is an independent non-executive B -BAENRBEBRERA R aMBBERBBAQ
director of Giordano International Limited, Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited AMEAKRMDAR AR Z % ﬁ FHTEE ZER
and Alltronics Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He AHRBREm - BB ABRANELSETZT
is also a non-executive director of China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd., which is 7 2 China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd. & 38 B B 4
listed on the New York Stock Exchange and a non-executive director of Global- HiiE 5 F ™ Z Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc.
Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. (formerly known as Global-Tech Appliances, A1 ¥ Global-Tech Appllances Inc.) ZIFHITES -
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Inc.), which is currently listed on NASDAQ. Mr. BUTTIFANT is the principal of KLC
Kennic Lui & Company, a professional accounting firm and managing director of ESb
KLC Transactions Limited. Mr. BUTTIFANT was the executive director — Finance Limited
of MHG but became a consultant to MHG in December 2008. He has been 2
resident in Hong Kong for over 30 years. 2 B
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Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him
AEREE

Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen
ZEmER L

Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

ol

Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung (“Mr. LAM"), SBS, JR aged 57, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director in August 2002. He is also the chairman
of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. LAM is the managing director of Forward Winsome Industries
Limited, which is a toy manufacturing company. He is a member of the
Legislative Council in Hong Kong, a general committee member of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Commerce and a council member of Hong Kong
Trade Development Council. Mr. LAM holds a number of other public positions
including chairman of the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation
Advisory Board. Mr. LAM is also an independent non-executive director of C C
Land Holdings Limited, which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen (“Dr. LAU"), CA, CMA, MBA, DBA, aged 56, was
appointed an Independent Non-executive Director in August 2002. He is also a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Dr. LAU had spent over 12
years in finance related work in the private and public sectors in Canada prior
to returning to Hong Kong in 1987. Dr. LAU holds a DBA degree from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an MBA degree from the University of
Calgary in Canada. He is a member of The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants and The Society of Management Accountants of Canada. Dr. LAU
is the chairman and chief executive of Giordano International Limited and an
independent non-executive director of Fairwood Holdings Limited, both of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him (“Mr. SHEK"), SBS, JP, aged 63, was
appointed an Independent Non-executive Director in January 2008. He is also
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. SHEK
graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with a degree of Bachelor
of Arts. He is a member of the Legislative Council for HKSAR representing the
real estate and construction functional constituency. Mr. SHEK was awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star by the Government of HKSAR in 2007. He is a member
of the Council of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, a
member of the Court of The University of Hong Kong, a director of The Hong
Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and the vice chairman of Independent
Police Complaints Council. Mr. SHEK is an independent non-executive director
of MTR Corporation Limited, Country Garden Holdings Company Limited, Hop
Hing Group Holdings Limited, ITC Corporation Limited, Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited, Midas International Holdings Limited, NWS Holdings Limited,
Chuang’s Consortium International Limited, Chuang’s China Investments
Limited, Paliburg Holdings Limited, SJM Holdings Limited and Titan
Petrochemicals Group Limited, all of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of Eagle
Asset Management (CP) Limited, which is the manager of Champion Real
Estate Investment Trust (“Champion REIT”), and Regal Portfolio Management
Limited, which is the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (“Regal
REIT”). Both Champion REIT and Regal REIT are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.
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Senior Management Profile
SEEBAEEN

Mr. Keith John BUCKLEY, BSc (Civil), CEng, MICE, aged 60, is a director of
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited (“HCC"), Hsin Chong Construction
(Asia) Limited (“HCCA") and certain other subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
BUCKLEY is the Executive Project Director of the construction management
business of the Group in Macau. He joined the Group in 2003 and has over 40
years of experience in the field of building construction and civil engineering.

Mr. Cyras CHIN Chi-keung, BSc (Hons), MSc, MHKIE, R.RE., aged 50, is a
director and the Assistant General Manager (Building Construction) of HCC
and HCCA, and a director of certain other subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
CHIN is responsible for the performance and day-to-day operational
management of the Group’s building construction projects and managing the
Technical Services Department and Contract Administration Department in
Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 26 years of experience
in the field of structural design and project management.

Dr. Catherine CHU, BSc, MSc, PhD, aged 31, is a director of HCC and
Synergis Management Services Limited (a key operating subsidiary of Synergis)
and also Director — Strategic Development and Corporate Services of the
Group. Dr. CHU has the overall responsibility for formulating and overseeing
the strategic development of the Group’s business operations and internal
corporate functions. Dr. CHU holds a PhD and Master degree from the London
School of Economics in the United Kingdom. Prior to joining the Group in
2009, Dr. CHU had spent over 7 years working as a consultant and researcher
for a global management consulting firm and established corporations with
main focus in providing corporate strategy analysis and solution advisory
services in the United Kingdom. Dr. CHU is the daughter of Dr. David CHU
Shu-ho, the Non-executive Chairman, and the sister of Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-
kin, a Non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Phillip Kenneth CLARKE, MRICS, aged 49, is the Executive Commercial
Manager of Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited and Hsin Chong
Engineering (Macau) Limited, the Company’s subsidiaries in Macau. Mr.
CLARKE joined the Group in 2004 and has over 28 years of experience in
providing commercial and technical support in the construction field.

Keith John BUCKLEY % % ' BSc (Civil), CEng, MICE -
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Senior Management Profile
SEEEAEH/N

Mr. Joseph FUNG Cho-ning, BSc (Eng), CEng, R.RE., MIMechE, MCIBSE,
MHKIE, aged 56, is the Managing Director of Hsin Chong Aster Building
Services Limited (“HC Aster”), the electrical and mechanical engineering
specialists of the Group, and a director of certain other subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. FUNG has the primary responsibility in managing the business of
HC Aster. He joined the Group in 2003 and has over 33 years of experience in
the engineering field as consultant, client’s representative and contractor in
Hong Kong, United Kingdom and Australia. Before joining the Group, for over
15 years, Mr. FUNG was engaged in the general management of companies in
Australia and Hong Kong before acting as the general manager of Jardine and
Cathay Pacific group of companies.

Mr. Charles KAM Yuk-fai, MBA, FCCA, CPA, aged 45, is the Financial
Controller of the Group and a member of the executive committee and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He has the overall responsibility
in managing the accounting, financial and information technology functions of
the Group. He is currently a member of the Advisory Panel to the Business and
IT Studies of the School of Continuing Education, Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. KAM joined the Group in 1997 and has over 22 years of
experience in the field of accounting, auditing and finance.

Mr. LAW Wai-tai, FRICS, FHKIS, R.PS., aged 60, is a director and the Assistant
Managing Director of HCC and HCCA, and a director of certain other
subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a member of the executive committee
of the Company. Mr. LAW has the overall responsibility for the strategic
development of the Group’s traditional construction business. He joined the
Group in 1984 and has over 37 years of experience in the field of quantity
surveying and construction. Mr. LAW holds a number of public service
positions. He is currently a member of the Building Sub-Committee of Land &
Building Advisory Committee and a co-opted member of Committee on
Subcontracting of the Construction Industry Council.

Mr. James LEE Kok-foo, BEng, MIEAust, MHKIE, aged 57, is a director of
HCC, HCCA and certain other subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. LEE is
responsible for the development of new business for the Design and Build
Division and managing the Building Services Department. He joined the Group
in 1981 and has over 35 years of experience in the field of electrical and
mechanical engineering and building construction management. Mr. LEE was
awarded the 1975 G.t. Murray Memorial Award by the New Zealand Institution
of Engineers for the Best Young Engineer of the Year.
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Mr. Richard Anthony MYRANS, BEng, CEng, MICE, MiStructk, MHKIE, aged
52, is a director and the General Manager (Civil Engineering) of HCC. He is
responsible for the civil engineering business of the Group. Mr. MYRANS joined
the Group in 2008. He has over 25 years of experience in managing major civil
engineering projects. Prior to joining us, Mr. MYRANS was Head of Contracts
Administration Department of Maeda Corporation, Hong Kong Branch Office.

Mr. Baile SIAW Kee-hock, BSc, CPEng, MIEAust, aged 58, is a director of
HCC, HCCA and certain other subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible
for providing contract services supports, including plant, land surveying, quality
assurance, environmental, site administration, health and safety, to the
operating sites of the Group. Mr. SIAW joined the Group in 1978 and has over
34 years of experience in the field of concrete industry, foundations
construction and construction plant management. He is a member of the
Quality Scheme for the Production and Supply of Concrete (QSPSC) Technical
Committee of the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency.

Mr. Paul WONG Hon-kit, B.Soc.Sc. (Hons), MCom, ASA, aged 55, is a
director and the General Manager of Hsin Chong Construction (Property
Development) Limited. He is responsible for the property development business
of the Group. Mr. WONG joined the Group in 2008 and has over 31 years of
experience in property development in the Asia-Pacific region, including Hong
Kong, Australia, the Mainland China and Thailand.

Mr. YAM Kong, R.PE., FHKIE, FIET, FIRSE, aged 55, is a director and the
General Manager of HCCG China Holdings Limited. He is responsible for the
business developments of the Group in Mainland China. Mr. YAM joined the
Group in 2008. He is a registered professional engineer and has over 30 years
of experience in the transportation industry mainly in railway and metro
systems. He has been in executive positions of consulting companies
responsible for managing the consultancy operation as well as exploring
investment opportunity for railway projects in China and overseas. Mr. YAM
also worked in many different countries including Canada, United Kingdom,
Australia, Far East countries and the Mainland China.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EHEEWRLK D

Debt to capitalisation was 29.2% at the balance sheet date (31 March 2008:
debt free). The increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to the increase in bank
borrowings of HK$220.0 million carried at weighted average interest rates of
3.1% per annum. As of 31 December 2008, net working capital amounted to
HK$188.8 million (31 March 2008: HK$372.0 million) with the quick ratio
decreasing to 1.0 at balance sheet date (31 March 2008: 1.2). Cash balances
and current portion of held-to-maturity financial assets were 5.7% higher at
HK$685.8 million compared with the last financial year end (HK$648.9 million)
with 98% (31 March 2008: 90%) as cash and cash equivalents.

Up to 31 March 2009, total credit facilities available to the Group for utilisation
amounted to HK$503.0 million with an undrawn balance of HK$303.0 million.
Accordingly, the Group’s financing requirements for the new financial year will
be met by available cash and cash generated from operations as well as
banking facilities.

Return on Equity

The Group pays a close attention to return on equity for both current
businesses and new investment opportunities. The Group appreciates just
being more profitable than other companies in the same industry may not be
good enough for some investors. As a manager of public shareholders’ capital,
the Group aims to generate risk-adjusted returns on capital that are
systematically acceptable to investors taking into account that construction is a
cyclical industry. Due to the impairment on goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Synergis during the period, current period’s return on equity
decreased to 1.7%; however stripping out the financial impact from the
impairment of goodwill of HK$73.9 million, the return on equity would be
19.0%.

Capital Structure

The Group has historically adhered to a policy of conservative capital
management. A strong balance sheet affords more opportunities upon an
industry upturn, and instills greater confidence amongst its clients, bankers,
sub-contractors, suppliers and employees. Furthermore, since progress
payments in the construction business inherently create high operating
leverage, an overlay of high financial leverage over any extended period would
not be prudent.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008
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The Group’s net borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and Macau Pataca. By means of proper
synchronisation of receipts and payments in different operating currencies, the
Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency fluctuations. In addition,
the Group adopts hedging policies for mitigate exchange rate risks and interest
rate risks associated with respective assets or liabilities, and rights or
obligations. Such policies ensure effective cost controls on construction costs
as early as the tendering stage and controllable borrowing costs for operation
and investment needs.

Interest rate risk and exchange rate risk are risks to earnings or capital, arising
from movement of respective rates. The former mainly arises from bank
borrowings by the Group and the latter comprises exposure due to currency
needs from normal business operations for material procurement and services
requirements. The Group has established policies and procedures to the
assessment, booking and monitoring of all such financial instruments under
limits approved by the Board. The controls and procedures governing such
activities were considered overall to be adequate.

Gains or losses arising from relevant hedging transactions will be booked as a
profit or loss associated with the underlying assets or liabilities. At 31
December 2008, the Group has outstanding forward exchange contracts to
hedge HK$17.9 million mainly against GBP and Euro. Subsequent to period
end, a total HK$16.4 million of those forward exchange contracts were closed
and a new interest rate swap contract for a nominal sum of HK$150.0 million
has been entered into for hedging the Group’s long term borrowings.

Subsidiaries

During the nine-month period under review, the Group’s building construction
arm received new contracts of HK$1,743.5 million, mainly comprising (a)
Proposed Commercial Development at 863-865 King’s Road, Quarry Bay; (b) a
building contract for Construction of Choi Wan Road Site 2 Phase 2 (Domestic
Portion), Site 3B Phase 2, District Open Space Site B and Local Open Space Site
C from the Hong Kong Housing Authority; and (c) a renovation work at Wo
Che Market from The Link Management Limited. Taking into account of the
additional works to the existing projects and adjustment for completed
construction work in Hong Kong and Macau, total contract sums received
were HK$1,961.9 million.

The electrical and mechanical installation arm received new contracts of
HK$244.4 million, mainly comprising (a) Electrical and Mechanical Ventilation
Installation work for HAECO (Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company
Limited) Aircraft Maintenance Hangar No. 3A; (b) Plumbing and Drainage
Installation work for Phase 2, Tai Wai Maintenance Centre Property
Developments, STTL No. 529, Tai Wai, Sha Tin; and (c) Fire Services and
Plumbing and Drainage Installations Subcontracts for Proposed Shopping
Centre at Discovery Bay North Development Lot No. R.P. of Lot 385 in DD 352
and Extension Discovery Bay, Lantau Island.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Subsidiaries (continued)

Contracts totalling HK$1,598.5 million were completed with HK$1,380.0
million derived from the building construction arm, mainly for a renovation
work contract at Cheung Fat Shopping Centre, Tsing Yi, New Territories; a
construction contract for the Extension to Canossa Hospital (Caritas) at No. 1
Old Peak Road; and the construction management contract for Parcel 1 of the
Venetian Cotai Development Project in Macau (now known as The Venetian
Macao — Resort — Hotel). In addition, a civil engineering contract of HK$14.2
million from The Hong Kong Jockey Club for the Re-construction of Main
Sewers from Grandstand 2 to Mafoo Quarter at Sha Tin Racecourse was also
completed in the current period.

Electrical and mechanical installation contracts totalling HK$204.3 million were
completed, mainly for the subcontract works of Retail Centre at Union Square,
MTR Kowloon Station and the Hong Kong side of Passenger Terminal Building
at Shenzhen — Hong Kong Western Corridor.

Following the successful completion of the above contracts, consolidated
orders on hand at 31 December 2008 amounted to HK$6,333.2 million, an
increase of 10.6% from the last financial year end.

The breakdown of incomplete contracts of the Group’s construction
subsidiaries is as follows:

BB A =l ()

B® T 24 %% 5% 1,598,500,000 T @ EAHEE
1,380,000,000 LK B EFEEIM  TEAFTAEFTKX
REBMBHHLREEIREGL R ELTEE T
JEAHEREREBEECEETR  REMREHA
BAEREEWMR—(EBAERMEEHNA — ER
W —BE) 2BEERAN I AEBESED
BES S IAEAESREEFTHKELEREH
B E B 14,200,000t 2 L RTRRELHIIE R AR
BT o

BERT2HELETEA YL RS 204,300,000
T EEBABE NEUnion SquareZ TEEH L F
ERTBREORRRAE — FBBLHr 2o HIRE
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Contracts 31 December
31 March 2008  Contracts received completed 2008
—EENF B TERK ZEBENF
=RA=+—H SR G#F | T=A=+t—8
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEET BEEST BEEST BYEET
Building Construction/ BT REER
Construction Management 4,331.5 1,961.9 (1,380.0) 4,913.4
Civil Engineering TARTHE 203.5 (1.3) (14.2) 188.0
Electrical and Mechanical MELEETIE
Installation 1,191.7 244 .4 (204.3) 1,231.8
5,726.7 2,205.0 (1,598.5) 6,333.2
The split of incomplete contracts at balance sheet date is as follows: REEHZRXAZRELDTMT -
Amount
&5
HK$ Million %
BEEET ERa)e
Government BT 3.7 0.1
Hong Kong Housing Authority BEEEZRET 835.0 13.2
Private Developers LA R 5,494.5 86.7
6,333.2 100.0
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Operational Review On Contracts (ontinued)

Building Construction and Civil Engineering
Total revenue and outstanding orders for the nine-month period were
HK$1,441.0 million and HK$5,101.4 million. Profit margins reported at 6.8%.

NEAMBEEZ TZAHNEBHE

Major contracts received during the nine-month period include:

Contract Location Type Amount
&% bick =il |
HK$ Million
BEEET
Proposed Commercial Development Quarry Bay, Hong Kong Commercial 883.0
at Nos. 863-865 King's Road BB EE [EES
HE215863-8655 2 KIER X RIAR
Construction of Choi Wan Road Site 2 Phase 2 (Domestic Choi Wan Road, Kowloon Residential 835.0
Portion), Site 3B Phase 2, District Open NEXEB F=E
Space Site B and Local Open Space Site C
R R B2E B ((E59) - HE3BE 8 -
b PR PR Hb St AR B K AR & R R A b 3t AR C
Renovation works at Wo Che Market Sha Tin Commercial 16.1
REH TR MEETRE WH [EES
Major contracts completed during the nine-month period include: NERBETK s EEZAHBE
Contract Location Type Amount
an biok il &8
HK$ Million
BERET
Venetian Cotai Parcel 1 Cotai, Macau Commercial 1,259.6
BB HT ABS 2kt 38 — SELPBE 7 [SES
Cheung Fat Shopping Centre Tsing Yi, Hong Kong Commercial 39.3
RERES RS [EES
Extension to Canossa Hospital (Caritas) 1 Old Peak Road, Hong Kong Hospital 15.0
Fan el 2 ERIE R HEELTRE R =
Reconstruction of Main Sewers from Grandstand 2 Sha Tin Civil Work 14.2
to Mafoo Quarter at Sha Tin Racecourse A H TARTRE

PEES REEREAESEREE KRS
BEIEA
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Operational Review On Contracts (ontinued)

Electrical and Mechanical Installation

Total revenue and outstanding orders for the nine-month period were
HK$184.1 million and HK$1,231.8 million. Profit margins reported at 6.0%
this period.

Major contract received during the nine-month period include:

TREEBMRR =

MELZEHETRE
hWEAMEZARZEEATKANBEERBEL
184,100,000 7T X 7 # 1,231,800,000 7T ° It HA R =2 F| &
R H|$%186.0% °

NEAMEBEEZTZAHR

Contract Location Type Amount
a8 b B =Pl &8
HK$ Million
BEBRET
HAECO (Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Lantau Island Electrical and 131.4
Company Limited) Aircraft Maintenance AU Mechanical
Hangar No. 3A Ventilation
BT (BERKIRERAR) Installation Work
EIATRE A IS BRALKTE
Phase 2, Tai Wai Maintenance Centre Tai Wai, Sha Tin Plumbing and 61.2
Property Development, STTL No. 529 DHEAKE Drainage
W ETIHER 552950 R EHEEH L Installations
MEREREASE EHER R
T
Proposed Shopping Centre at Discovery Bay Lantau Island Fire Services and 235
North Development Lot No. R.P. of Lot 385 KU Plumbing and
in DD 352 and Extension Drainage
TS E LB R L E 41D 352491 ER 5538557 Installations
ERER MR 2 BRI EB REEHK F
ZRIRE

Major contracts completed during the nine-month period include:

NEABBTRZEZAHNEEE

Contract Location Type Amount
an b B 5l £
HK$ Million
BEBET
The Hong Kong side of Passenger Shenzhen, PRC Electrical and 141.3
Terminal Building at Shenzhen & BRI mechanical
— Hong Kong Western Corridor MWETIZ
AR RS A FE IR AE — BEID
Retail Centre at Union Square, MTR Kowloon Station Yau Ma Tei, Kowloon Plumbing and 49.0
PN BEE Union Square T & 115 JUEE I Drainage Installation
EEORFRG R
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Operational Review On Contracts (ontinued)

Joint Ventures

Contracts received totalling HK$363.4 million reflected the increase in
estimated contract sum as a result of increase in price fluctuation indices over
the nine-month period. The breakdown of incomplete contracts of the Group’s

ITREEBRR @

T

B 7 A #4558 A S 363,400,000 T 0 & BR B A N
&AM EREBIEER A - Ml BIBHE OEEE
me AEEREEB 2AEREZARATRAL DA

construction joint ventures is as follows: ™
Contracts 31 December
31 March 2008  Contracts received completed 2008
—TENF B TERK —EENF
=A=+—H G HI5E a#E | +=A=+—8
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBEET BEEET BEEET BEEET
Hsin Chong — Yau Lee g —BF
Joint Venture BEbE 1,654.3 — — 1,654.3
MBH Joint Venture MBH& & b3 1,649.0 (5.0 — 1,644.0
Maeda — Hitachi — Yokogawa A — H3Z — &1
— Hsin Chong Joint Venture — EHE 3,211.1 368.4 — 3,579.5
6,514.4 363.4 — 6,877.8

Note: The amounts shown above are gross figures and do not reflect the Group's net
attributable share.
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Construction Related Property Development

During the nine months ended 31 December 2008, the Group sold 20
car parking spaces in Lung Mun Qasis, Tuen Mun, Hong Kong leaving
237 car parking spaces remained unsold with carrying value of HK$20.3
million, net of impairment provision of HK$28.5 million. Those unsold
car parking spaces are currently available for rental income either on a
monthly or hourly basis.

The development is a 26-storey office building. The Group has a 20-year
freely-assignable master lease for the 11th-30th floors, comprising
approximately 77,000 square feet. The residual lease term is around 5
years. Occupancy rate attained 100% in the nine-month period
(2007/08: 100%). Current carrying value stands at HK$67.0 million.

The project comprises a total site area of 18,215 square metres
(approximately 196,000 square feet) bound on the East by Wen Chang
Road North and on the South by Yao Hua Jie North, Guangzhou City,
PRC. The Group has an effective 42% interest in the project.

Total revised saleable floor area of Phase | was approximately 41,400
square metres with 102 car parks. At balance sheet date, provision was
made for 50% of car parks as the area was reserved as air-raid shelter.
The Group is preparing to strive for converting non-saleable car parks
into saleable in nature. The remaining 50% of car parks and commercial
units are classified as stock on sale with a carrying value of HK$36.3
million, net of impairment provision of HK$20.5 million. All the
residential units had been sold by period end date.

This property (which has approximately 107,000 square feet of space)
has been used as headquarters of the Group since April 1999. Following
the acquisition of a controlling stake in Synergis, Hsin Chong Center is
now fully occupied by the group companies. Accordingly, the area
previously leased to Synergis in its capacity as an independent third
party and classified as investment property is now reclassified under
property, plant and equipment and prepaid premium for land lease. In
summary, at balance sheet date, the head office building is carried at
restated cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment of
HK$144.2 million.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008
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Subsequent to period end, the Group secured new contracts of HK$40.5
million, mainly including Proposed Phase 2 renovation works at Cheung Fat
Shopping Centre, together with a contract sum reduction of HK$60.0 million
in a civil engineering contract. Therefore, total incomplete contracts amounted
to HK$6,313.7 million as of 31 March 2009.

Advocating “Social Responsibility”
The Group put a strong emphasis on one of its corporate core values — “Social
Responsibility”.

As we are a company awarded the 5 Year Plus Caring Company Logo, we
motivate our staff regularly organizes the volunteer services jointly with various
community service organizations. A recognition scheme for volunteers is
established for rewarding the staff who enthusiastically provide volunteers
services in the period including trees planting, gate painting, home
maintenance, visiting attention homes of elderly and child.

The Group had donated HK$1 million to the Hong Kong Red Cross China
Relief Fund. This was a matching donation scheme to our staff, friends and
family members and business partners who also raised over HK$1 million,
making the total donation of HK$2 millions. A certificate of commendation
was awarded by the Hong Kong Red Cross on this regards. Synergis had also
donated HK$25,000 to Hong Kong Red Cross to match up the donation from
its staff, making a total of HK$50,000. The Group further donated
HK$200,000 to the “Artists 512 Fund Raising Campaign”. All these donations
were made in support of the Sichuan Earthquake victims, reflecting the
Group’s persistent efforts in furtherance of its objective of carrying out “Social
Responsibility”.

Staff Training and Development
The Group regards staff as its main asset and invests much time and effort in
the selection, training and personal improvement of our staff.

The Group is committed to developing our staff by providing training and
development opportunities. Over 350 training courses with in excess of 23,527
attendance hours have been sponsored for staff during the nine months ended
31 December 2008.

Regular in-house seminars and site visits have been organised for all levels of
staff to enhance their technical and corporate knowledge.

For the building and construction business, developing young engineers and
supervisory staff is one of the major staff development programmes. Different
in-house staff development programs for various disciplines of staff are
established.
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Staff Training and Development (continued)

For the property and facility management services businesses operated by
Synergis, different organisational development activities have also been
launched by members of Synergis to ensure staff can work in a healthy
environment. To enhance the sense of belonging of our staff, full staff
satisfaction survey was conducted by Synergis on a yearly basis to identify staff
priority concerns with recommended solutions for improvement. A
comprehensive human resources competence model was developed by
Synergis through conducting interviews with 72 officers and managers.
Effective working skills and behaviours for different jobs are identified and
applied to recruitment, learning and development, performance review and
succession planning.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed a total of 5,934 full time staff,
which included 4,697 full time staff employed by Synergis.

Excluding those full time staff of Synergis, the Group had 1,237 full time staff

EERZIKRER

EHEERZEZMERRBEERBER  HFEE
BREHTTIRANAREREY  EEREIRM—
ERFENTERERE REFETINRER Ha2E8
BEEEETERBEREZNEERSE  UTHREER
BOIMEELAREBATR - BRATDETERK
BETEA MEERANYL - EEZENAMERE
X MATIFRUEL AR THERMEEE - X8
ZREAREE B RER  KRRTRETE -

RZZEZENFT-_A=1T—H AEBEEAHEH5934
ZEBEES  HPBE46972MEEELBES -

ZEFMEERZBEERIN RZZZENF+-A=

as of 31 December 2008 whose educational backgrounds are analysed below: +—B  AEBEAI7VE2HBEE HEZBE
SATEFIINT

Number of employees %

Qualification BE BTA¥ Bk

Master Degree or above 265 100 8
Bachelor Degree or equivalent S4-8siEE

professional qualification ZEEER 296 24

Diploma or Higher Certificate holder B EAASUERE A 175 14

Certificate holder BERBEA 170 14

Others Efth 496 40

Total A&t 1,237 100

The Group sets its remuneration policy with a view to attracting and retaining
high calibre staff.

Details of the remuneration policy of the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report contained in this annual report.
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Construction remains as our core business and as a major construction group
in Hong Kong and Macau as well as an integrated construction services
provider in mainland China, the Group has devoted huge efforts to upkeep a
safe, healthy and environmentally friendly working environment — in line of
our emphasis on social responsibility, being one of our corporate core values.

As an OHSAS 18001 certified company, we will continuously enhance the
safety performance of our construction sites which is our contribution to the
society’s safety development. Multitude of resources will be input to establish
safety awareness programmes and implement regulatory procedures.

Our corporate environmental management system has been certified to
comply with the ISO 14001 international standard. We shall continue to
respond positively to measures that will contribute to a better environment.

Occupational health and safety together with protection of the environment
are vital components of our management objectives. We will use our every
might in furtherance of these goals.
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Corporate Governance Report
TtEERKRSE

Corporate governance is the system by which Hsin Chong Construction Group
Ltd. (the “Company”) is directed and controlled. The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) is fully aware of its importance to the shareholders
and has developed a rigorous system of checks and balances which allows
management to respond to the strategic directions approved by the Board. The
Board believes that a well balanced corporate governance system enables the
Company to achieve business excellence and fulfill the Company’s mission of
“Building Trust and Value”.

Corporate Governance Structure

As at 1 April 2009

*  For identification purpose only

30 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008

1B ¥ &8 BHsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (7 &
EEEBERAR) ([ARR ) ZEEREZERG -
ARAESEG([ESE) oA HERRZER
MoRAREYT -ERZCHEHE FEEERR
EESEIUZRE A - EEEEE - 21— &
BrrEERRS  TUBARAERSEBED R
BERARA BT HmEEE]IZE® -

Executive Committee Management Committee
WITEES EREEE

Audit Committee Internal Audit
BEREE® MR

Remuneration Committee

B eSS

Committee of Trustees
for Employee Share
Subscription Scheme
BERBERNEIZ
BEREAZE®

* EHEG



Organisations are driven by their core values which for the Company, integrity
is the most important core value. Since 1995, the Company has published and
distributed its Corporate Code of Conduct to all staff to educate and reinforce
the Company’s commitment to the highest standards of business ethics and
the seriousness with which the Board treats such matters. The Corporate Code
of Conduct is a living document and periodically updated to incorporate
comments and suggestions from the Independent Commission Against
Corruption and the other regulating authorities in Hong Kong.

Throughout the nine months ended 31 December 2008, the Company has
applied the principles in and complied with the code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) save for the deviation described in the paragraph below.

The first part of code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code provides that the
chairman of the Board should attend the annual general meeting and arrange
for the chairmen of the audit and remuneration committees or in the absence
of any chairman of such committees, another committee member or failing
this his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer questions at annual
general meeting. The non-executive chairman of the Board was not able to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 August 2008
due to other important business engagement. However, in his absence, the
executive deputy chairman of the Board (who is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee) had attended and took the chair of the said annual
general meeting and ensured that proceedings of the meeting were conducted
in order, whereas the chairman of the audit committee was also present at the
meeting. The Company considers that the members of the Board, the audit
committee and the remuneration committee who attended the said annual
general meeting were already of sufficient calibre and number to address
shareholders’ questions at the meeting.

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as amended from
time to time (the “Model Code"”) by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code of conduct for regulating
securities transactions by the directors of the Company. Having made specific
enquiry of all the directors of the Company, all the directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the nine months ended 31 December 2008.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written guidelines for
regulating securities transactions by members of the executive committee of
the Board and senior management (whose names appear in the annual report
of the Company) respectively. The Board believes that members of the
executive committee of the Board and the said senior management may, by
virtue of their positions, likely be in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information of the Company and/or its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).
Having made specific enquiry of all the members of the executive committee
of the Board and the said senior management, the Company was advised that
all of them have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the nine months ended 31 December 2008.
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Composition
The Board is currently comprised of 9 directors, including 2 executive directors,
4 non-executive directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The names of the directors are set out below:

Non-executive Chairman
Dr. David CHU Shu-ho

Executive Deputy Chairman
Mr. WONG Ying-wai

Managing Director
Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho

Non-executive Directors
Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin
Mr. CHAN Ka-kui

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, including sports,
leisure, hospitality, property development, construction, manufacturing, trading
and finance related work, members of the Board possess a balance of skills,
expertise and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Group which helps promote its success and benefits its management. Save
for the facts that Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin is the son of Dr. David CHU Shu-
ho; and Mr. WONG Ying-wai and Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT is a vice-chairman
and has a consultancy role respectively in the Mission Hills Group which is
wholly owned by Dr. David CHU Shu-ho, there is no relationship among
members of the Board. The brief biographical details of the directors are set
out on pages 13 to 16 of this annual report.

The Company currently has 3 independent non-executive directors which
accounts for one-third of the total number of Board members and is in
compliance with the requirement under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The
views of the independent non-executive directors carry weight in the Board’s
decisions, and their participation helps the Board exercise judgment, make
decisions and act objectively in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has given to the Company an
annual confirmation of independence in compliance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
directors are and have remained independent. Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen, a
member of the audit committee, has the appropriate accounting and financial
management expertise required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Members of the Board, including the names of all the independent non-
executive directors, are expressly identified in all corporate communications
which disclose the names of the directors of the Company.
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Functions

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group’s activities. Its primary
functions are to set and direct the Company’s strategy and monitor and
measure the management’s performance. It is accountable for the overall
strategic development of the Group with the objective to enhance shareholder
value. Material matters are reserved for the Board’s considerations or decisions
which include, among other things, overall strategy of the Group; business
plans; annual budgets; significant capital expenditure; interim and annual
results and reports; dividend policy and payments; material acquisitions,
disposals or investment proposals; directors’ appointments, re-appointments or
removal; and other material transactions.

Board Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director

Dr. David CHU Shu-ho is the non-executive chairman, Mr. WONG Ying-wai is
the executive deputy chairman, and Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho is the
managing director of the Company. They are not related to each other and
there are clear divisions among their responsibilities with a view to achieving a
balance of power and authority. The Board chairman, with the assistance of
executive deputy chairman, provides leadership to the Board in terms of
formulating policies and strategies, and discharges those duties set out in all
the code provisions and certain recommended best practices under code
provisions A.2 of the CG Code. The managing director of the Company has
the overall responsibility of implementing the decisions, policies and strategies
approved by the Board, and overseeing the Group's business and operations.
The duties of the executive deputy chairman and the managing director are set
out in their respective service agreements entered into with the Company.

With the support from the executive deputy chairman, the managing director
and the company secretary, the Board chairman ensures that all directors are
properly briefed on issues arising from Board meetings and receive adequate,
complete and reliable information on a timely manner.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The Board currently does not find it necessary to set up a nomination
committee to consider the appointment, re-election and removal of the
directors of the Company. The Board as a whole has assumed this
responsibility. During the nine-month period, Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho
was re-designated from an independent non-executive director to an executive
director. He was further appointed as the managing director with effect from 5
January 2009 upon the retirement of Mr. CHAN Ka-kui, the former managing
director of the Company. Mr. CHAN Ka-kui was then re-designated from an
executive director to a non-executive director upon his retirement from 5
January 2009. All the aforesaid changes in Board composition had been duly
considered and approval by all members of the Board.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors (continued)

All the non-executive and independent non-executive directors of the
Company have entered into letters of appointment with the Company for a
term of two years subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules and the bye-
laws of the Company, including the requirement of retirement by rotation and
re-election or standing for re-election at annual general meetings of the
Company at least once every three years. The term is renewable upon expiry.

There was no new director appointed to the Board during the nine-month
period. Nevertheless, it is the practice of the Company to provide any new
director with information on duties and obligations of director, relevant
regulatory requirements and the Group’s business affairs. Also, Board members
are also provided with updates on any changes to the rules and regulations,
including but not limited to the Listing Rules, from time to time.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board meetings for next year are
scheduled approaching the end of each calendar year in order to facilitate the
directors to plan for attendance of the meetings. Additional Board meetings
will be convened, as and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any
director who is not able to present physically may participate at any Board
meeting through electronic means of communication, such as conference
telephone or other similar communication equipment, in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws.

Board Proceedings

Notice convening each regular Board meeting will be sent at least 14 days in
advance, and reasonable notice will be given for other Board meetings. The
company secretary assists the Board chairman to prepare the meeting notice
and agenda. Each director may include any item in the agenda. The agenda,
accompanied by meeting papers with sufficient and reliable information, are
sent to each director not less than 3 days before the date of a Board meeting
to enable the directors to make informed decisions on the matters to be
discussed, except where a Board meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to
consider any urgent ad hoc matter.

The company secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board meetings,
drafts and final versions of which will be circulated to directors for comment
and records, respectively, and in both cases, within a reasonable time after
each meeting. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered
by the Board at the meeting and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the directors or dissenting view (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and open for inspection to any
director on request.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008

K

ZE - ERRERES o)
KRB ABIINTRBYIIENTEETESZ T 2EHY
AME HEBTEMRUIEAQRRMABIZET &
EERLEBE=ZF—ARARABREREFRE tHEER
VTERETISKSKEZETZHETE RNITHERED
FEH -

RNANEARHEFSALBZEHEST  EARF—H
MEMETAHEETNEZAROERHEBEER
AIRAEREB 22BN - AK EFGRETTR
SESEMOARERD (BEETRL LEHHA)
BRH BB -

EEEER

EXeSFRIBRTOREHERE  HEF—KR- 2
FEFTHeR AN EFOIFEREE - K
BEERLEGAFHLE - EFEREFTERES
TEREGE NEERZEERE - REAQXFMAY - £
MEEZRBHEZEEHAEBE T BARE  HIW
TREANEMBLURARE  2RENEFSTTE -

EEERER
CHEREZGTHERZBESERN R D4R E
H Mt Eseesd 2 BSenaBREAE
He ARMEMDEFS IR TERBEREIE -
BUEBEHIREREAMATANZEE B RERAHE
ARAAEEANZEAXHRBERINEFTEGHET
FHABRABNESFTE (RIEZTESEANERR
MATERNEZREIMEZIRZEAE  AIREEEREX
HREIRIRFMELESTFTE)  LEFEREAR
W2 EEELMBERTE -

RAMNERERTEZSERCE @R CHZ2OR
REERERBRAEZRZAENANNESEHN -
Minftara MELKRANEFEZE R BAY
EXEeN SR LMERECEERER ZREEHRER
FAZEE BREFRBZEMREIREZRY
BER(NE) EXeRRCEHRRAMNERT L8
BERARTEMEEEM -



Board Proceedings (continued)

All directors of the Company have access to the company secretary who is
responsible to ensure that Board procedures are complied with and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed. Directors have full and timely
access to all relevant information, including reports from the Board committees
and reports from the management. They are also provided with updates on
the latest developments of the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the directors in discharging
their duties as and when appropriate.

To assist the directors to discharge their duties, the Board has adopted written
procedures and circulated them to all directors to follow in the case any
director wishes to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance at the Company’s expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing pursuant to
the bye-laws of the Company on urgent matter which requires decision in a
tight timeframe and hence convening a Board meeting is difficult or not
practicable. In the case resolution in writing is circulated, sufficient information
and explanatory materials will also be provided to the directors at the same
time. During the nine months ended 31 December 2008, directors passed 10
times by circulation of resolutions in writing to approve different matters. All
these written resolutions were tabled for the directors’ review at the next
following Board meeting so that directors were given the opportunity to raise
any further comment (if any) on the relevant matters.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a matter
(including material transaction with connected persons) which the Board
determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting (as long as time is
allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider the relevant matter first
before any subsequent approval is given by way of circulation of resolution in
writing.

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been
arranged to protect the directors and officers of the Group.
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Attendances of Meetings

Enﬁﬁjﬁnaff_

Six Board meetings, two audit committee meetings and three remuneration @Zi_ ZEZNEF+A=+—H U:jﬂl RA#HBITRR
committee meetings were held during the nine months ended 31 December EER MABZZEERRIR=ZRTMEES
2008. Attendances of these meetings by directors are set out below: ’“‘3 FoTIHIRBSESEHRZEGA LB

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HEAERHE

Audit Remuneration
Director Board Committee Committee
BE EEE EREER FHEER
Non-executive Chairman FHITER
David CHU Shu-ho EREES 0/6 n/a n/a
Executive Deputy Chairman ERRERE
WONG Ying-wai FRE 6/6 n/a 3/3
Executive Directors i}Lﬁ§$
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho' REH 6/6 n/a 2/2
CHAN Ka-kui® Bok =% B 6/6 n/a n/a
Barry John BUTTIFANT* Barry John BUTTIFANT* 6/6 n/a n/a
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin KB 4/6 12 n/a
Independent Non-executive MHHTES

Directors

Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung’ e’ 6/6 212 11
Peter LAU Kwok-kuen 2 B #E 6/6 2/2 n/a
Abraham SHEK Lai-him VaEiE | 6/6 n/a 3/3

REAXER-_ZZNFTA-—ARABIFERTE

Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho was re-designated from an independent non-
executive director to an executive director with effect from 1 October 2008. He
resigned as a remuneration committee member but was appointed an executive
committee member with effect from the same date.

%.ﬂﬁci}lﬁ%% cENAABEIFMEZESKNEEE
ZERRTEEGHKE -

: MEEEER-_ZZNFTA-—HAREZERART

Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung was appointed a remuneration committee member with

effect from 1 October 2008. FMEEEXE -

? Mr. CHAN Ka-kui retired as the managing director, resigned as an executive ? REABHEBERE RRBALERTESHLE  FX
committee member, and was re-designated to a non-executive director after WITEZEENE —BEBAEENTES -
period end.

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT was re-designated to a non-executive director after ¢ Barry John BUTTIFANT 4t A4E R 7 BA 6 48 SR 1% SR (£ 3EE0 7T
period end. =

n/a  not applicable na TiEHA

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008



Four Board committees, namely, the executive committee, the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the committee of trustees for employee
share subscription scheme, are established pursuant to the Company’s bye-
laws, each of which is to assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities
and oversees particular aspect of the Group’s affairs. Each Board committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties properly, and holds
meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, its specific written terms
of reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of Board meeting.

Executive Committee

The executive committee of the Board is currently comprised of 4 members,
namely, Mr. WONG Ying-wai, Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho, Mr. LAW Wai-
tai (director of certain major subsidiaries of the Group) and Mr. Charles KAM
Yuk-fai (the Group’s financial controller). Mr. CHAN Ka-kui and Mr. Barry John
BUTTIFANT were members of the executive committee during the nine-month
period but have already resigned following their re-designations to non-
executive directors on 5 January 2009 and 19 March 2009 respectively.

The primary duties of the executive committee are to approve any matters
within the normal scope of business of the Company, banking matters, issue
of shares under any share schemes of the Company, and administrative issues
of routine nature (excluding notifiable transactions), with a view to assisting
the Board to discharge partially its executive functions.

The authority and duties of the executive committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference, the latest updates were approved by the Board on
5 December 2008. Full text of such updated specific written terms of reference
has been posted on to the Company’s website.

The executive committee shall meet as and when required depending on
business and operation needs. Members’ attendances may depend on the
importance of the matters to be transacted. During the nine months ended 31
December 2008, the executive committee held 22 meetings to discharge their
duties. Mr. WONG Ying-wai, Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho, Mr. CHAN Ka-kui
and Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT attended 4 times, 9 times, 20 times and 5 times
respectively of those meetings.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Board is currently comprised of Mr. WONG
Ying-wai (executive deputy chairman) as chairman and Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-
fung and Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him (both being independent non-executive
directors) as members. Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho was a member of the
remuneration committee until his re-designation from an independent non-
executive director to an executive director on 1 October 2008. In order to fill
the vacancy, Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung was appointed as a member of the
remuneration committee on the same date.

The authority and duties of the remuneration committee are set out in its
specific written terms of reference, the latest version of which was adopted by
the Board on 27 March 2008. Full text of the said specific written terms of
reference has been posted on to the Company’s website.
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Remuneration Committee (continued)

The remuneration committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of the
directors and senior management of the Company. Its duties are summarised
below:

(i) to conduct review of the remuneration policy and procedures regarding
the Company’s directors’ and senior management’s compensation;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
all remuneration of the directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration;

(i)  to determine the specific remuneration packages of all the executive
directors and senior management and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of the non-executive directors;

(iv)  to review and determine performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time;

(v)  to review and approve the compensation payable to the executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of office or appointment;

(vi)  to review and approve compensation arrangement relating to dismissal
or removal of directors for misconduct; and

(vi)  to advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any service
contract of director that requires shareholders approval under the Listing
Rules.

The remuneration committee shall meet at least once a year. During the nine-
month period ended 31 December 2008, three remuneration committee
meetings were held. Attendances of the meetings have been disclosed earlier
in this report.

Besides, during the nine months ended 31 December 2008, the remuneration
committee passed 3 times by circulation of resolutions in writing to approve
different recommendations. All these written resolutions were tabled at
subsequent Board meetings so that directors were given the opportunity to
raise any further comment (if any) on the relevant matters.
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Remuneration Policy of the Group

The Group now comprises Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”) (stock code:
02340) which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange. Owing to its separately listing status, Synergis is managed
separately and is responsible to set its own human resources policies to reward
staff of Synergis and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Synergis Group”). The
human resources policies adopted by Syenrgis for the nine months ended 31
December 2008 are disclosed in its annual report for year 2008.

The remuneration policy described below is therefore adopted by the Group
other than members of the Synergis Group (referred hereinbelow as the
“HCCG Group”).

The HCCG Group sets its remuneration policy by reference to the prevailing
market conditions and a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure that
the HCCG Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of the
highest caliber, essential to the successful leadership and effective management
of the HCCG Group. The performance measures are balanced between
financial and industrial comparatives. The components of remuneration
package are consisted of base salary, allowances, benefits-in-kind, fringe
benefits including medical insurance and contributions to pension funds, as
well as incentives like discretionary bonus, participation in share option and
share subscription schemes, and long-term rewards.

The remuneration packages of the directors of the Company are recommended
by the remuneration committee and determined by the Board (and in the case
of directors’ fees, subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting) except
that no director or any of his associates is allowed to make recommendation
on or determine his own remuneration package. Director’s remuneration is
determined by reference to each director’s duties and responsibilities in the
Group as well as the overall performance of the Company and the Group and
the prevailing market situation.

The remuneration packages of the senior management are recommended by
the managing director of the Company and determined by the remuneration
committee by reference to their respective responsibilities and accountability,
target achievements, business results and market competitiveness of the
Group. The remuneration packages of the managerial and support staff are
determined by the managing director of the Company.

Incentive bonus scheme for each major business segment is set up for senior
management staff and employees with significant contributions to the business
objectives. The scheme is business result oriented and performance based.
Share options are granted to the directors, senior management and other
employees based on individual performance and overall contributions to the
Group. The number and terms of share options granted to each grantee are
proposed by the executive directors (except for options granted to their own),
reviewed by the remuneration committee and approved by the Board.

The Group has sought to make the remuneration policy more transparent and
well communicated to its staff. Details of the remuneration payable to each
director of the Company for the nine months ended 31 December 2008 are
set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to
114 of this annual report.

*  For identification purpose only
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Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Board is comprised of Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung
(independent non-executive director) as chairman as well as Dr. Peter LAU
Kwok-kuen (independent non-executive director) and Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-
kin (non-executive director) as members. None of the audit committee
members are or have ever been a partner of the existing audit firm engaged by
the Company.

The audit committee is primarily responsible for conducting an independent
and objective review of the financial reporting process, internal controls and
audit function with emphasis on:

(i) appraising the quality of the audit work of the Company’s internal
auditor and external auditor;

(i) serving as an independent and objective party to review the financial
information presented by management to shareholders, regulators and
the general public;

(i) ascertaining the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system;
and

(iv)  serving as a useful channel of communication between the Board and
the external auditor and internal auditor on audit matters.

The duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific written terms of
reference, the latest updates were approved by the Board on 22 January 2009
to keep the provisions in line with the recent amendments to the Listing Rules.
Full text of such updated specific written terms of reference has been posted
on to the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the audit committee include, among other things,
recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment or removal
of the Company’s external auditor and on its remuneration; reviewing the
Company’s interim and annual financial statements and other financial reports
as prescribed in the specific written terms of reference; and reviewing the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures (including
monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function) and risk
management systems. The audit committee has explicit authority to investigate
any activity within its duties and responsibilities and the authority to obtain
outside legal or other independent professional advice if it considers necessary.

The audit committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the nine months
ended 31 December 2008, two audit committee meetings were held.
Attendances of the meetings have been disclosed earlier in this report.
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Audit Committee (continued)

During the audit committee meetings held in the nine-month period, the audit
committee had reviewed, with the participation of the internal and external
auditors and the management, the interim and annual results and the related
financial statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that these
financial statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The audit committee had also
considered the reports from the external auditor on the scope and findings of
its independent review of the interim and annual financial statements.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the audit committee’s view
on re-appointment of external auditor, and they both have agreed to
recommend the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s
external auditor for the ensuing year at the 2009 annual general meeting of
the Company.

Committee of Trustees for Employee Share
Subscription Scheme

The committee of trustees for employee share subscription scheme (the “2002
Share Scheme”) was established pursuant to the rules of the Share Scheme
adopted by the Company on 23 August 2002. The said committee is currently
comprised of Mr. WONG Ying-wai, Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho and Mr.
Charles KAM Yuk-fai as trustees to discharge the duties. Mr. Barry John
BUTTIFANT was a trustee of this committee during the nine months ended 31
December 2008 and has resigned following his re-designation to a non-
executive director on 19 March 2009. Mr. Charles KAM Yuk-fai, the financial
controller of the Group, was appointed a trustee of this committee to fill the
vacancy on 19 March 2009.

The duties of this committee as approved by the Board on 27 March 2008
include (i) administering and carrying out of the provisions of the Share
Scheme and authorising the issuance of share certificates under the seal of the
Company; and (ii) acting as custodian of the funds contributed by the
participating employees for the purpose of subscribing on behalf of those
participating employees shares of the Company.

Management Committee

The monitoring of business operations and implementation of business plans
and strategies adopted by the Board are performed by senior executives led
primarily by the managing director of the Company. As such, the management
committee for Hong Kong operations comprising key senior executives was
established and is chaired by the managing director of the Company, to take
primary responsibility for the oversight and management of the Group’s day-
to-day operations. The management committee holds monthly meeting to
review and discuss the Group's performance against budget, progress of
projects, business strategy and matters relating to environmental, health and
safety, human resources and information technology. There are other
management committees responsible for the day-to-day operations in Macau,
China and the electrical and mechanical business set up with regular meetings
to review and discuss the performance of the relevant business sectors.
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Tender Procedures for Construction Related
Business

The tendering department is responsible for reviewing business opportunities
and their associated risks; formulating viable business models; and deciding
the strategy and tactic towards each opportunity. The tendering director or the
managing director of the Company working together with the estimator, the
bid manager or other expertise shall review, discuss and approve business
proposals submitted by various business divisions.

Policy for Financial Risk Management

On 5 December 2008, the Group adopted a revised policy statement on
authorisation and approval of financial transactions, involving the assessment,
booking and monitoring of financial instruments to hedge exposures to
financial risks and in particular, liquidity risk, currency risk and interest rate risk,
with a view to further strengthening the financial risk management. As
Synergis became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company only by end
August 2008 and Synergis has its independent finance function, the aforesaid
revised policy statement is in the meantime not applied to members of the
Synergis Group.

The Company has its own internal audit function, forming part of its ongoing
effort to focus on greater efficiency within the Company and to quickly
respond to the management’s concerns and identify problem areas. The Group
has appointed its own internal auditor. Internal audit adopts a risk and control
based audit approach. The work plan of internal audit is reviewed and
endorsed by the audit committee of the Company. Examination of the
processes, practices and procedures of internal controls for business operations
and corporate functions of the Group has been performed on a regular basis.
Internal audit reports containing findings and recommendations on
improvements are submitted to the audit committee for review. During the
nine-month period ended 31 December 2008, the audit committee was
satisfied with the internal audit work performed.

Technical Audit

The technical audit function is overseen by the contracts services department,
which is independent of site operations, aiming at enhancing the production
of quality and error free products in the production process. The technical
audit plan is also formulated by the contracts services department, and the
results of the technical audit together with any recommendation on
improvement are reported to the relevant project director and executive
management for necessary action.
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The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s internal control system
and the assessment and management of risk. In meeting its responsibility, the
Board has defined a management structure with limits of authority that helps
achieve the business objectives; safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposition; ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information; and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations. Such management structure is regularly reviewed
to accommodate the defined or refined business objectives and changing
market conditions. The Board also aims at increasing the risk awareness across
the Group’s business operations and hence has put in place policies and
procedures that provide a framework for the identification and management
of risk.

Functional directors are appointed to the boards of all major operating entities
in the Group to oversee daily operations of those entities. Proper authorisation
procedures are put in place for review and approval of significant projects and
major capital investments. Budgets must be approved before adoption and will
be reviewed regularly. Proper controls are in place for recording complete,
accurate and timely accounting and management information.

The internal audit and technical audit functions described above also represent
two key components of the internal control system of the Group. The internal
audit function provides an independent assurance to the Board and the
executive management on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls
for the Group on an on-going basis.

During the nine-month period under review, the Board has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
discussion with the audit committee on any significant findings and control
issues. These procedures provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material errors, losses and fraud, and manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of
the Group’s business objectives.

New Code Provision C2.2 on Internal Controls
effective 1 January 2009

The Listing Rules have been amended under Rule 3.24 to remove the
requirement for a qualified accountant, and at the same time put in place a
new code provision C2.2 since 1 January 2009 such that a listed company is
required to review annually the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of its accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

Despite the relaxation of the Listing Rules on the requirement for a listed
company to have a named qualified accountant, it has always been the
Company's policy, as reflected in its organisational structure, that the finance
and accounting function is headed by a fully qualified accounting professional
who is supported by a team of qualified accounting staff. The head of the
finance and accounting function is Mr. Charles KAM Yuk-fai, the Group's
financial controller, who is an Authorised Supervisor of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. His biography is set out in the senior
management profile on page 18.
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Internal Control (ontinue)

New Code Provision C2.2 on Internal Controls

effective 1 January 2009 (continued)

There is a Continuing Professional Development requirement for qualified
accountants to renew annual membership with their recognised professional
bodies. This continuous training together with specific training needs as
identified individually in the annual staff appraisal process are encouraged by
the Company so that the quality of its finance team can be maintained.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial
Reporting

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group on a going concern basis. With
the support of the accounting and finance functions led by the financial
controller of the Group, the directors have ensured that the consolidated
financial statements for the nine months ended 31 December 2008 are
prepared in accordance with appropriate accounting policies applied
consistently save for those new and amended accounting standards as
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. To the best of
knowledge of the directors, there is no uncertainty relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

In preparing the interim and annual financial statements, announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the directors aim at
presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s
position and prospects. Financial information put before the Board for approval
by management is accompanied by sufficient explanation to enable the
directors to make an informed assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement of the external
auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements, is set out in pages 77 to 78 of this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s external
auditor, for services rendered for the nine months ended 31 December 2008
are set out as follows:

Services rendered
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Fees paid/payable

Frig AR S e ENER
HK$'000

BET T

Audit services LIRS 2,227
Non-audit services IEEAZ RS 1,765
3,992
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Non-audit services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers in the nine-month
period included, among others, the services rendered in the exercise of the
acquisition of a controlling interest in Synergis. Save for the aforesaid, the fees
incurred for other non-audit services in the nine-month period and review of
the Company’s interim results are considered insignificant. In general, it is
considered that the independence of PricewaterhouseCoopers have not
affected.

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
and press releases, updates on the Group’s developments are also provided on
the Company’s website stated below which is updated on a timely manner.

Comments and suggestions from shareholders or investors are welcome
through the following channels to the Company:

(i) by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of business at Hsin
Chong Center, 107-109 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong

(ii) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2516 6596
(i) by telephone at (852) 2579 8238
(iv) by email at info@hcg.com.hk

(vy  on the Company’s website at http://www.hsinchong.com under
“Inquiries”

Annual general meeting is deemed as a forum for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board members. In line with the recent
amendments to the CG Code, notice of 20 clear business days together with
detailed agenda is given to shareholders for the annual general meeting for
2009 of the Company. Separate resolution is proposed at annual general
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the election of each
individual director.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, any shareholder holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meeting shall have the right, by written requisition served to
the Board or the company secretary, to require a special general meeting to be
convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

Details of the right of shareholders to demand poll and procedures of poll
voting at general meeting are included in each circular relating to the
convening of a general meeting sent to shareholders. The chairman of meeting
will also explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance enhancement
including giving closer attention to any regulatory changes with a view to
maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics and integrity and increasing
shareholder value as a whole.
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The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of Hsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) have pleasure in submitting to the
shareholders their report and the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the nine months
ended 31 December 2008.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are building construction, civil
engineering construction, electrical and mechanical engineering installation,
renovation and fitting-out, property development and investment, provision of
construction/project management consultancy services, and provision of
property management and facility management services. The provision of
property management and facility management services is undertaken by
Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”) (stock code : 02340), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company listed separately on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associated companies
are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements and particulars
of its jointly controlled entities are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of segment information are set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The results of the Group for the nine months ended 31 December 2008 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 79 and the state of affairs
of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2008 are set out in the
balance sheets on page 80.

During the nine-month period, a distribution of HK$0.340744 per share by
way of “distribution in specie” of 149,588,284 shares of Synergis (“Synergis
Shares”) on the basis of 0.2230 Synergis Shares for every one share held in the
Company was made on Thursday, 13 November 2008, and an interim cash
dividend of HK2.0 cents per share was paid on Tuesday, 6 January 2009.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final cash dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share for the nine months ended 31 December 2008 (HK4.0
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2008). Subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming 2009 annual general meeting of the Company,
the proposed final dividend will be paid on Tuesday, 9 June 2009 to
shareholders whose names appear on the registers of members of the
Company on Tuesday, 26 May 2009.

*  For identification purpose only
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Together with the abovementioned distribution and interim cash dividend in
the period, total distribution and dividends for the nine months ended 31
December 2008 will amount to HK$0.380744 per share (total cash dividends
of HK9.5 cents per share for the financial year ended 31 March 2008). A
dividend payout ratio (calculated as dividend per share divided by earnings per
share) of 400.0% (2007/08: 49.7%) on the earnings for the nine-month
period.

The registers of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 21
May 2009 to Tuesday, 26 May 2009 (both days inclusive) (Hong Kong time)
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
ascertain shareholders’ entitlement to the attendance of the forthcoming 2009
annual general meeting of the Company and the proposed final dividend, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 20 May 2009 (Hong
Kong time).

The principal share registrars of the Company is Butterfield Fulcrum Group
(Bermuda) Limited at Rosebank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Road, Pembroke,
HMO08, Bermuda.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the nine-month period are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years and for the nine months ended 31
December 2008 is set out on page 160. This summary does not form part of
the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the nine-month period are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A summary of the properties of the Group held for investment/own use/sale as
at 31 December 2008 is set out on page 166.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the nine-
month period are set out in note 35(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2008, calculated
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
HK$46,178,000 (2007/08: HK$280,228,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
(the "Bye-laws") although there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the nine months ended 31 December
2008 and up to the date of this report were:

Non-executive Chairman
Dr. David CHU Shu-ho

Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Ying-wai (Executive Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho' (Managing Director)

Non-executive Directors
Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin

Mr. CHAN Ka-kui®

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT®

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him

Notes:

1 Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho was re-designated from an independent non-
executive director to an executive director with effect from 1 October 2008 and
further appointed as the managing director of the Company with effect from 5

January 2009.

2 Mr. CHAN Ka-kui retired from the position of managing director and was re-
designated from an executive director to a non-executive director with effect from
5 January 2009.

3 Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT was re-designated from an executive director to a non-

executive director with effect from 19 March 2009.

The brief biographical details of the directors of the Company who are in office
as at the date of this report are set out on pages 13 to 16 of this annual
report.

In accordance with Bye-laws 98(A) and 98(B) of the Bye-laws, Mr. CHAN Ka-
kui, Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin and Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him shall retire by
rotation but, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming 2009 annual general meeting of the Company. Save for the
aforesaid, all other directors of the Company would continue in office.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008
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The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and considers that all the independent non-
executive directors are independent in accordance with the terms of the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

None of the directors offering for re-election at the forthcoming 2009 annual
general meeting of the Company have entered into a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

A business service framework agreement dated 15 April 2008 (the “MHGCL
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and Mission Hills Golf
Club Limited (“MHGCL") in connection with the provision of services by the
Group to MHGCL, its subsidiaries (other than the Group) and associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) (collectively, the "MHGCL Group”). MHGCL is a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and is
indirectly wholly owned by Dr. David CHU Shu-ho, the non-executive chairman
of the Board. Therefore, Dr. David CHU Shu-ho is materially interested in the
MHGCL Agreement by virtue of his aforesaid indirect shareholding interest in
MHGCL.

Save as disclosed above, there were no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of or at any time during the nine-month period.

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the

Company and Its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") contained in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position interests in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company

Number of shares of HK$0.10 each held

EERITHRAINAEALQSF
FEE 2R - HER

Al &%
7 &&=

H

75 HF 22 N V-
FHEEZREmR KA
RZFTFNFF+_A=+—8 REEFHKAEKERM
([FHFRBEGEA]) BI2ERARAATHFEZET
il Prac 8% - SRR £ AR AP 8%+ P8 B AT
ANEFETELRZNRETA([RETA]) BB
MARNF R  RAREEERITHARIRES
ZBMBANKAG XL TABERIE(EELESR
BMEIRGIEXVE) 2 Bkfp - HEARD RESFHEE 2
e RARIT:
RARBDRDREEARD 2 BER

FIEERAEBB0I0OTZRAEE
Percentage
Number of of interest in
Name of Personal Family Corporate Other  underlying the issued
director Capacity interests interests interests interests  shares held Total  share capital
BEZ HE T
HE R4 Bz
EEER 51 (PN RIRER EEER Hih = #HE #wit EEESWL
(note ii) (note iv)
(B 5T i) (B 5Eiv)
David CHU Interests in — — 375,921,240 — — 375,921,240 56.01%
Shu-ho controlled (note i)
ENEED corporations (M3
LB ER
WONG Ying-wai Beneficial owner 20,000,000 — — — 6,000,000 26,000,000 3.87%
FRE E=mEAA (note iii)
OBt i)
Edmund LEUNG Beneficial owner — — — — 3,000,000 3,000,000 0.45%
Kwong-ho E=mEAA
RER
Kenneth CHU Beneficial owner — — — — 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.15%
Ting-kin E=mEAA
REhE
CHAN Ka-kui Beneficial owner 6,000,000 — — — 2,000,000 8,000,000 1.19%
PR = 50 EmlEAA
Barry John Beneficial owner — — — — 2,400,000 2,400,000 0.36%
BUTTIFANT EREBA
Jeffrey LAM Beneficial owner — — — — 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.15%
Kin-fung EHEAA
2 2
Peter LAU Beneficial owner — — — — 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.15%
Kwok-kuen E=#EAA
21 = 1
Abraham SHEK Beneficial owner — — — — 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.15%
Lai-him BEREBA
A
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

(continued)

Long position interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

These shares were held by Carrick Worldwide Limited (“Carrick”). Dr. David CHU
Shu-ho indirectly and beneficially owned the entire issued share capital of Carrick
and was therefore deemed to be interested in these 375,921,240 shares held by
Carrick in the Company as at 31 December 2008 by virtue of the SFO. Further
details of the indirect interest of Dr. David CHU Shu-ho in Carrick are disclosed in
the paragraph entitled “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” below.

The interests in the underlying shares represented share options granted pursuant
to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 22 May 2008.

These 20,000,000 shares were transferred to Mr. WONG Ying-wai by Carrick, a
controlling shareholder of the Company, at a total consideration of HK$1.00 to
reward the services rendered by Mr. WONG Ying-wai to Carrick.

There were 671,173,662 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2008.

Long position interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the associated corporations of the Company
(a) Upper Luck Holdings Limited
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ZE Rt Carrick Worldwide Limited ([ Carrick]) ¥
B ABZELRBERESEACCarrickz 2800 317
B B RIEE SRS GO E BES Carricki®
—ETNEF+ A=+ —HHA 2375921240 R A A
ARG 2% - ABEAE R T R Carrickz =
ZE—THE RTXEEEZERIRERARMN K
HERNPEAEZEZRAE ] —BNEE -

HEROTHEEZEGEDEREAR
AAZ+ZRRM R +§wmz H%E

ZENF

20,000,000 f% f% 1 & f Carrick (B AR A Z R IR IR 5 ) 8
ETTHRBEXE BREA/BHK 10T AWMEETRE
B & ERMIRF T Carrick ©

ARRR_BRNF+-_A=+—-RHZEBETENLA
671,173,662 % °
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(a)

Upper Luck Holdings Limited

Number of shares of US$1.00 each held
FESREEI1.0ZETZRMEE

Percentage of

Number of interest in
Name of Personal Family  Corporate Other underlying the issued
director Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total share capital
BEZ he &7
HER D BRA&Z
EEEHE 5164 BAER XRKkEz ZEEx HEEz #E wat EREDL
(note ii)
(B Eii)
David CHU Beneficial owner 10,000 — — — — 10,000 100.00%
Shu-ho (note i)
FHES BEmnfEAA
(B &)
Notes: B 5

(i) Upper Luck Holdings Limited (“Upper Luck”) is the ultimate holding
company of the Company, and is 100% beneficially owned by Dr. David
CHU Shu-ho.

(ii) There were 10,000 shares of US$1.00 each of Upper Luck in issue as at 31
December 2008.

(i) Upper Luck Holdings Limited ([ Upper Luck]) A&
KRR ZREERAT - W KB = EL100%
BHMEA -

(ii) Upper LUGkRZZZN\F+-_A=+—H2ZE%
1TR% 1 A 10,000 % & B E E1.00E T ©
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests %%& HEIZRAXATRERE

and Short Positions in the Shares,

/ilZHﬁﬁ} R0 RE S

Underlying Shares and Debentures of the EP REZERRKXE =
Company and Its Associated Corporations

(continued)

Long position interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the associated corporations of the Company

(continued)

(b) FRIYIZ B = EH R A

fD
S

4}5;

P N/NECT
mE 2 ()

ﬂﬂ>

ﬁﬁﬂﬁlzﬂxﬁ}&ﬁ 28 i 17

(b) IR B R = EH R A

Registered capital in RMB held

AR ZEMELR
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of Personal Family = Corporate Other underlying registered
director Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BEZ 1k &
AE B AR 42 EAXz
EEEB 5145 (PN RIxER EEER H R = #E @t EEEIHL
(note ii)
(B &EiD
David CHU Interests in — — 5,100,000 — — 5,100,000 75.00%
Shu-ho controlled
ENEIES corporations
(note i)
2R A E
(B &ED)
Notes: Bt & -
(i) As at 31 December 2008, FYIREERATEGR AT ("BRBEE") (i) RZZEZNF+_A=+—8 RIXEEHR

was a 75% owned subsidiary of FIIEHHEEAHEERA A
(Shenzhen Guanlanhu Golf Club Co. Ltd.) (“SGGCL"), whereas SGGCL
was a wholly owned subsidiary of MHGCL and MHGCL was a wholly
owned subsidiary of Upper Luck. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. David CHU Shu-
ho was deemed to be interested in the registered capital of RMB5,100,000

in BUBEE as at 31 December 2008 through his controlled Al BREIZIHFRBAEMRM
corporations, Upper Luck, MHGCL and SGGCL.

M@@ﬁﬁﬁ’&?(f%ﬁfﬁzﬁﬂ@@”ﬁ R 3 #05
MeBRAXRgARIAA(RIBER NS R X
Heg)EARESZHBAR - mAEINE
MHERBARIGAMHGCLZ 2 BB EME R
@l » MHGCLBI AUpper LuckZ%ﬁ%ﬁFﬁ%’&

RZBENF+

A=+—H %#ZEBLtERER ﬁ/j&l§JUpper
Luck * MHGCLE RYIBR B mBRIREWE A
HEHEBR AT ESEMEARARES100,0007T 2

st -

(i) The total registered capital of EUR#% i was RMB6,800,000 as at 31 (ii) BRERER-_ZETN\F+A=+—RHzx
ﬂﬁﬁ$%@%ﬁ%)\ﬁaﬁ% 800,0007T °

December 2008.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

(continued)

Long position interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the associated corporations of the Company

(continued)

(c) FINBERHEBEEFXRGBIRA A

EERTT
“ﬁ‘}iZHﬁﬁ} *ﬁ@%ﬂ’iﬁ

BAIRARNAREM

&%

FHEAEZRERERKXE w

Registered share capital in RMB held

AR 2EMBRA
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of Personal Family = Corporate Other underlying registered
director Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total share capital
BEZ 1 =
HER D RA 2z
EEEB g7 BAEZ XEEzE ZTEEZ HaEx B i EmADIL
(note ii)
(B &EiiD
David CHU Interests in — — 89,576,151 — — 89,576,151 83.00%
Shu-ho controlled
e corporations
(note i)
HEEEE R
(B &ED)
Notes: B 5%

(i)

As at 31 December 2008, J&YIIELRAERE TERMNBER AT ("EUHNE
EE%") was held by MHGCL and SGGCL for shareholding interests of
78% (registered share capital of RMB84,179,997) and 5% (registered
share capital of RMB5,396,154), respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Dr.
David CHU Shu-ho was deemed to be interested in LB #HE2 5 & % for an
aggregate interest of 83% (registered share capital of RMB89,576,151) as
at 31 December 2008 through his controlled corporations, Upper Luck,
MHGCL and SGGCL.

The total registered share capital of 5558 5 &2 was RMB107,923,073
as at 31 December 2008.

(ii)

RZTETZNF+=_A=+—8" Lﬂl\%ﬁiﬁﬁ;ﬁﬂﬁs
FEEBRMNBERAR(BRENBEEEX] A
MHGCL N R I 83058 4 = B8 oK Bk A/‘EIJ%EHQZK
T 78% (7T it AR 2 A R % 84,179,997 7T ) K 5%
(?HHHQKAEM53961S47E) BEFES RS
EGA - RZTEZN\EFF+_A=+—8 K
%Tﬁiiﬁiﬁﬁ ?xﬁlUpper Luck ~ MHGCLE
FNBER PR AREREAEEEREEE
EHEA H83% (MR A ARS9,576,1517T) 2
%ﬁ“

BHYBREEENR_TZZENF+=-_A=+—8H
Zé‘fﬂ%ﬂﬂiﬂ”ﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%107,923,07371 o
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EEEgRE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

(continued)

Long position interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the associated corporations of the Company

(continued)

(d) FYI &

BYERBEB R A

EERTHAINEAQXFR
EEE KRG HERO R

iz
=

,IITH)IHI

RFHEE 2R RRE @

Registered capital in RMB held

AR ZEMER
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of Personal Family = Corporate Other underlying registered
director Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BEZ 1k &
HER G B
EEEB 47 BAEZ XE#EE ZTEEZ HaEx B st EmADIL
(note ii)
G
David CHU Interests in — — 4,500,000 — — 4,500,000 90.00%
Shu-ho controlled
FNIES corporations
(note i)
(HE&ED
Kenneth CHU Beneficial owner 500,000 — — — — 500,000 10.00%
Ting-kin (note i)
R BEmEAA
(HaED)
Notes: B 5

(i)

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

As at 31 December 2008, RIS WERBAR AT ("ESWE") was
owned as to 90% by FYEFEHEIEREER AR (“SZ Guanlanhu
Properties”) and 10% by Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin, whereas SZ
Guanlanhu Properties was a wholly owned subsidiary of Mission Hills
Properties Holdings Limited (“MH Properties”) which in turn was an wholly
owned subsidiary of MHGCL. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. David CHU Shu-ho
was deemed to be interested in B2 %)% for an interest of 90% as at 31
December 2008 through his controlled corporations, Upper Luck, MHGCL,
MH Properties and SZ Guanlanhu Properties, whereas Dr. Kenneth CHU
Ting-kin held a direct interest of 10% in the said company.

The total registered capital of 4= #)% was RMB5,000,000 as at 31

December 2008.

Annual Report 2008

(ii)

RZZENF+ZA=+—8 RIESDER
BERAR([SEaWE]) ARIBEREELE
FEERAR(NRINBERAEME]) RASE
HEDRIHA 0% R 10% 2 A YIE T
J5 #b B # Mission Hills Properties Holdings Limited
(['MH Properties]) 22 EHEWE 2 & - MH
PropertiesBl AMHGCLZ 2 &AM B AR - 1R
BEFLBERDN RZZEZENF+A=+
—H - S REEBEZEAEUpper Luck
MHGCL * MH Properties N % JI| &35 5 F5 th 2 1
REBEEERYEI% 2= - MRk SEEA
REZERNTEEFRE10% 2 °

BEWER_SENFEF+_A=-+ Az
ﬁzﬁﬁ@gﬁi\ﬁ/\EMS,OO0,000TE"



Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests EERTHAEAIZNRETATAKREM
and Short Positions in the Shares, *ﬁiiZH'Etﬁ} *ﬁ@%ﬂ’iﬁ & &
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the H#EEZEZRKXE @
Company and Its Associated Corporations

(continued)

Long position interests in the shares and underlying 7 78 2 & 48 Bx B < &7 &k HE R0
shares of the associated corporations of the Company H#EB 22 #E = (&)

(continued)

(e) Yangtze China Investment Limited (e) Yangtze China Investment Limited
Number of ordinary shares of US$0.10 each held
FFIEEREEIIETZEEREA
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of Personal Family  Corporate Other underlying issued share
director Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BEZ HE T
HER 5 Bz
EESER 514 AR RikER EEER Hib s #H aet ERADL
(note ii)
(M 3EiD
David CHU Interests in — — 12,820,000 — — 12,820,000 50.51%
Shu-ho controlled
EEES corporations
(note i)
REEEE
(MF3EDD

Notes: B 5
(i) As at 31 December 2008, 12,820,000 ordinary shares in Yangtze China (i) RZZEZENF+_A=+—H8 MHGCLZzZ &
Investment Limited (“Yangtze China”) were held by Excellent Rise ¥ 5 Mfi BB X A]Excellent Rise Investments Limited
Investments Limited (“Excellent Rise”), a wholly owned subsidiary of ([Excellent Risel) #F % 12,820,000 % Yangtze
MHGCL. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. David CHU Shu-ho was deemed to be China Investment Limited ([ Yangtze Chinal) 2
interested in the said 12,820,000 ordinary shares of Yangtze China as at TRKR - BREFHFLBERN R=ZZZTN\F
31 December 2008 through his controlled corporations, Upper Luck, TZA=+—H KRBT EBEZEEE
MHGCL and Excellent Rise. Upper Luck »+ MHGCL 2 Excellent Rise #18 & # &
£t 12,820,000 % Yangtze China i fi% 2 2 °
(i) There were 25,380,010 ordinary shares of US$0.10 each of Yangtze China (ii) Yangtze ChinaR—_ZEZNF+_A=+—H2Z
in issue as at 31 December 2008. BERTERRK /*—525 380 010k & R E1E0.10 3

JC °
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EEEgRE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

(continued)

Long position interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the associated corporations of the Company
(continued)

(f) BEEREEXER LA

ESRITHRAZRAQRAREM
EE B 5 - MERG R ES
THREECEERKXE @

AR D B G B 2 IR 4D R AR B R D
FEEZHEER @

(f) BEEBEEXERLA

Registered capital in RMB held

AR zEMER
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of Personal Family  Corporate Other underlying registered
director Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BEZ 1k &
HE R4 BEXxz
ESEB =i} BAEZ XEEE ZTERER HitEz B Bt EREDL
(note ii)
G
David CHU Interests in —_ —_ 9,000,000 —_ —_ 9,000,000 90.00%
Shu-ho controlled
NS corporations
(note i)
X EE R
(B aED)
Notes: it EE -

(i) As at 31 December 2008, BHEBEEEEBR AR ("EEEE") was
owned as to 90% by BB SEMEMEERART ("REBREHE"),
whereas FREEH# 5 E HE was a wholly owned subsidiary of MH Properties.
By virtue of the SFO, Dr. David CHU Shu-ho was deemed to be interested
in the registered capital of RMB9,000,000 in /SR8 ¥ as at 31 December
2008 through his controlled corporations, Upper Luck, MHGCL, MH
Properties and H 25 5 EHE.

(i) The total registered capital of /2% #! was RMB10,000,000 as at 31
December 2008.

56 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008

(i) R-ZBZN\F+-_A=+—H EHEETzx
ERAFB(EMEBR AR THRREHER
BERAR([RRBREME]) HAE0%Z#E
= MEEE R EMEAMH PropertiesZ 2 &
HEEMBLAR - REBLHFRBEERM BRZ_F
ZNF+ZA=+—B AEHZBELITERER
254 ® Upper Luck * MHGCL * MH Properties &
REREEMERRRAEASEEERIMER
AR #9,000,0007T 2 ## °

(i) BEEBEER-_ZZNF+_A=t+—RAz=f
AR5 B AR 10,000,0007T ©



Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

(continued)

Long position interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the associated corporations of the Company
(continued)

(9) BEBEEEXRBRLA]

EERTHRARNARRREAM
“%‘FéZHﬁﬁ} *EE%HQ@&E#
FHEAEZRERERKXE w

T ME B ‘}ilzﬂxﬁ}&ifﬁ B8 B 17
ﬁ%f—é‘ifﬁ & (@)

Registered capital in RMB held

AR z2EMER
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of Personal Family  Corporate Other underlying registered
director Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BEZ 1 =
HER D EXz
= 37 BAEZ XkE#Ez ZTEREzZ HaEz # A Fa EEEOL
(note ii)
(B &ED
David CHU Interests in — — 9,000,000 — — 9,000,000 90.00%
Shu-ho controlled
ENEIES corporations
(note i)
REE S
(B &ED)
Notes: it EE -

0] As at 31 December 2008, FHBBEELEER AR ("/EMEE") was
owned as to 90% by HZEFE S F HZE . By virtue of the SFO, Dr. David CHU
Shu-ho was deemed to be interested in the registered capital of
RMB9,000,000 in /GBS as at 31 December 2008 through his
controlled corporations, Upper Luck, MHGCL, MH Properties and 55284 5
BHEE.

(ii) The total registered capital of /2% % was RMB10,000,000 as at 31
December 2008.

(i) R-ZZEZN \F+_A=+—H0 SHBE2EE
ERAR(EE%EE ) BREREFHERS
Wi - BEFLHRIPERD  RZZTZT
NEF_A=+—B Az LtEBREZE
3% B Upper Luck ~ MHGCL * MH Properties & 3 22
%ﬁ%%mfi%&z?ﬂ%%ﬁ@ﬁ FEFAMERAAR
# 9,000,000 7T 2 # &%

iy BERER-_FTENF+_A=t+-—HZEfM
B EE R AR 10,000,000 ©
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EEEgRE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

(continued)

Long position interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the associated corporations of the Company
(continued)

(h) EHEEIEEFER LA

EERTHRARNARRREAM
EE 2z R *ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’iﬁ&%#
FHEAEZRERERKXE w

NI~
%Ezﬁﬁﬁ & (%)

(h) BEEEEXBRL A

Registered capital in RMB held

AR z2EMER
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of Personal Family  Corporate Other underlying registered
director Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BEZ 1 =
HER D EXz
= 37 BAEZ XkE#Ez ZTEREzZ HaEz # A Fa EEEOL
(note ii)
(B &ED
David CHU Interests in — — 9,000,000 — — 9,000,000 90.00%
Shu-ho controlled
ENEIES corporations
(note i)
REE S
(B &ED)
Notes: B 5%

(i) As at 31 December 2008, BHMBEEEERR AR ("WEMERE") was
owned as to 90% by HZEFE S HZE . By virtue of the SFO, Dr. David CHU
Shu-ho was deemed to be interested in the registered capital of
RMB9,000,000 in /G EE{= as at 31 December 2008 through his
controlled corporations, Upper Luck, MHGCL, MH Properties and 55284 5
EHEE.

(i) The total registered capital of /& {5 was RMB10,000,000 as at 31
December 2008.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008

(i) R-ZBENF+_A=+—0 SEH®BEE%E
ERAA(EEBE) ARTEEEMERSE
0% - BEFHRBPERD RZZTT
NEFZA=+—H8 A LEBREZE
% B Upper Luck ~ MHGCL * MH Properties & 8 52
REEHERRABEASEEEAMERAR
9,000,000 7T Z ##E &5 ©

(i) BEBEER-ZTZNF+-A=+—8Bz=f
AR B A AR 10,000,0007T ©



Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

(continued)

Long position interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the associated corporations of the Company
(continued)

(i) BHEKEZERAA

EERTHRARNARRREAM
*ﬁiiZHﬁﬁ} *ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’ifﬁ&%#
RPHEAEZREBERKXE &

2

RA R BREEE 2 R0 REER G
¢MEzﬁF@ & (4)

(i) BEFEKEXRERL A

Registered capital in RMB held

AR zEMER
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of Personal Family  Corporate Other underlying registered
director Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BEZ 1k =
HE R4 EExz
ESEB =i} BAEZ XEEE ZTERER HitEz B Bt ERADL
(note ii)
G
David CHU Interests in —_ —_ 9,000,000 —_ —_ 9,000,000 90.00%
Shu-ho controlled
EEES corporations
(note i)
X ?I /f @ *E m
(M 5ED)
Notes: B &

(i) As at 31 December 2008, BEFEKEZBR AR ("EMEEK") was
owned as to 90% by EZeE S EHIE. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. David CHU
Shu-ho was deemed to be interested in the registered capital of
RMB9,000,000 in /G EE5k as at 31 December 2008 through his
controlled corporations, Upper Luck, MHGCL, MH Properties and 5528 5
EHEE.

(if) The total registered capital of 2R % >k was RMB10,000,000 as at 31
December 2008.

(i) R-ZEZN\F+-_A=+—H BE®BKEZ
BERAR(MBEEX] ) BRERZEHERS
%2 i - IREFH REBEEM - E"_gg
NEFZA=Z+—R0  kExELE S
7% Upper Luck * MHGCL + MH Properties&ﬁ%
BREREHWERRAEASEBEKAMELAAR
#9,000,0007T Z #E 3 ©

(i BEBEXR-ZZTETZNFF+A=+—HBz=f
AR B 5 A AR 10,000,0007T ©
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Report of the Directors
EEgRE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

(continued)

Long position interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the associated corporations of the Company
(continued)

(j) BEHEXEXBRLA]

EERTHRARNARRREAM
EE 2z R *ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’iﬁ&%#
FHEAEZRERERKXE w

*ﬁ‘ ﬂ%)ﬁ#& 5 (&)
(j) BHEEXEZHFRANF

Registered capital in RMB held

AR zEMER
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of Personal Family  Corporate Other underlying registered
director Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BEZ 1k &
HER G BEXxz
ESER =7} BAEZ XEEE ZTERER HitEz B Bt EREDL
(note ii)
G
David CHU Interests in —_ —_ 9,000,000 —_ —_ 9,000,000 90.00%
Shu-ho controlled
FNEES corporations
(note i)
X ?I /f @ *E m
(M £
Notes: Bt & -

(i) As at 31 December 2008, BEEXEEBR AR ("EMEE") was
owned as to 90% by EZe5 S EHIE. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. David CHU
Shu-ho was deemed to be interested in the registered capital of
RMB9,000,000 in /B3 as at 31 December 2008 through his
controlled corporations, Upper Luck, MHGCL, MH Properties and 5528 5
EHEE.

(i) The total registered capital of /8F% X was RMB10,000,000 as at 31
December 2008.
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(i) R-ZBZENF+-_A=+—H BHEXETZ
ERAR([BEEX ) BRE=REFHERS
0%z - BEFBHRPERD R_ZTF
NEFZA=+—HB Azl LtEBREZE
3% B Upper Luck ~ MHGCL * MH Properties & 3 52
SREEHERRAEASERNAMERAAR
# 9,000,000 7T Z # 5 °

(i) BEEXR_TEINF+_A=+—RZaEM
AR B AR 10,000,000 7T ©



Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

(continued)

Long position interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the associated corporations of the Company

(continued)

EERTT A &
ﬁﬁiﬁZHﬁfﬁ R0 RE S

BBBRAEART

FHEAEZRBERKXE w

2 ([ 43E )
\m= )/

;EZ % 10 & A5 B8 R 10
=

Number of shares of HK$0.10 each held

FEeREEREY10TZRBHE
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of Personal Family  Corporate Other underlying issued share
director Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BEZ hHE &7
HER G RA 2
EEEB 47 BAEZ RkEzx ZEEE HttEzs # A st EBREDL
(note ii)
G
David CHU Interests in — — 252,947,213 — — 252,947,213 76.19%
Shu-ho controlled
FNGES corporations
(note i)
25 B
( B 5Ei)
WONG Ying-wai  Beneficial owner 4,460,000 — — — — 4,460,000 1.34%
FEE BnEAA
CHAN Ka-kui Beneficial owner 1,338,000 —_ —_ —_ —_ 1,338,000 0.40%
R 2% 50 EmEAA
Notes: B 5

U]

(i)

Synergis is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. By virtue of the SFO, Synergis is an
associated corporation of the Company. As at 31 December 2008, Carrick,
which held approximately 56.01% interest in the Company, was itself a
100% owned subsidiary of MHGCL. As at 31 December 2008, Carrick held
83,830,436 shares in Synergis and Smart Lane Holdings Limited (“Smart
Lane”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, held another
169,116,777 shares in Synergis. Therefore, by virtue of the SFO, Dr. David
CHU Shu-ho was deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 252,947,213
shares in Synergis though his controlled corporations, Upper Luck, MHCGL,
Carrick, the Company and Smart Lane. Notwithstanding the aforesaid, on
29 December 2008, an agreement had been entered into by Carrick to
dispose 16,024,000 shares in Synergis to a placee procured by Quam
Securities Company Limited. Completion of the disposal took place on 13
January 2009.

There were 332,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each of Synergis in issue as at
31 December 2008.

(ii)

HEEEARARA ﬂ#ﬂ;&ﬁﬁ_ﬂaﬂitﬁ?z#%ﬁ
HEAHKEAR - RIEF %&ﬁﬂhﬂww WEE
BAARNBZHEEEE RZ_F /\i‘ffﬁ
=+ —H ' Carrick BMHGCL 100% % & [ B A
Al BAARRQFN601% 2 EE RZTE)N
F+=-H=+—H " Carrick# 583,830,436 I&
MEELA ) - MSmart Lane Holdings Limited
(ISmart Lane) (—RARA2EHBWBA
ﬂ)E\Jhﬁjﬁ\ww116777&%&%%@%’7}°
CRIBEESH REE GO %ﬁ%f@iiﬁ;@ﬁ
y\? % @ Upper Luck * MHGCL ~ Carrick ~ AR
K Smart Laneff&zﬁﬁmﬁﬁ & #£252,947, 213ﬂx3§ﬁ
EEERG - -BEMME —OHRZTZNF
+:ﬂ:+7lEIEEICarr|cknTiZT£%n§ LA &
16024oooﬁx%ﬁ ﬁi@ﬁxﬁ%mﬁ;%%%‘%ﬁ

AEARBEZER  YER-_FTAF-AT
:EImﬁJZHj%
MEEER-_TENF+-_A=t—RHZE#%

g
7T B& 5 /332,000,000 B% & iR E B & #0.107T °

.
Im
i
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1991 Option Scheme

An executive share option scheme (the “1991 Option Scheme”) was adopted
by the shareholders of the Company on 19 July 1991, which had already
expired on 18 July 2001. No options had further been granted under the 1991
Option Scheme after expiry. However, outstanding options granted under the
1991 Option Scheme prior to expiry remained exercisable and were fully
exercised pursuant to the rules of the 1991 Option Scheme in the nine-month
period. There were no outstanding options under the 1991 Option Scheme as
at the end of the period.

Pursuant to the 1991 Option Scheme, the Directors, at their absolute
discretion, made offers to grant options to eligible persons who included
director, senior executive, manager or employee of the Group (“the Group” in
the context describing the 1991 Option Scheme shall apply the definition
ascribed to it under the rules of the 1991 Option Scheme) to subscribe for
shares of the Company (the “Shares”). The number of Shares issued to all the
grantees under the 1991 Option Scheme had not exceeded the maximum limit
of grant permitted by the rules of the 1991 Option Scheme. A consideration of
HK$10.00 was received for each grant of option. The exercise price for Shares
under the 1991 Option Scheme was determined by the Directors at their
absolute discretion provided that such price was not less than the higher of (i)
the nominal value of a Share; or (i) an amount equal to 80% of the average of
the closing price of a Share on the Stock Exchange for each of the five trading
days immediately preceding the day on which the option was granted.

Details of movements in the options under the 1991 Option Scheme during
the nine-month period and options outstanding as at the beginning and end
of the period are set out in note 35(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

2002 Option Scheme

An executive share option scheme (the “2002 Option Scheme"”) was adopted
by the shareholders of the Company on 23 August 2002, which was
terminated on 22 May 2008. There were no outstanding options under the
2002 Option Scheme on termination.

Pursuant to the 2002 Option Scheme, the Directors, in their absolute
discretion, made offers to grant options to eligible persons who included
executive director, senior executive, manager or employee of the Group (“the
Group” in the context describing the 2002 Option Scheme shall have the
definition ascribed to it under the rules of the 2002 Option Scheme) to
subscribe for Shares. The number of Shares issued to all the grantees under
the 2002 Option Scheme had not exceeded the maximum limit of grant
permitted by the rules of the 2002 Option Scheme. A consideration of
HK$10.00 was received for each grant of option. The subscription price for
Shares under the 2002 Option Scheme was determined by the Directors at
their absolute discretion given that such price was not less than the highest of
(i) the nominal value of a Share; (ii) the closing price of a Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the day of which the option was
granted, which must be a business day; or (iii) the average of the closing price
of a Share on the Stock Exchange for each of the five trading days immediately
preceding the day on which the option was granted, which must be a business
day.
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2008 Option Scheme

The share option scheme currently in force was adopted by the shareholders of
the Company on 22 May 2008 (the “2008 Option Scheme”). A summary of
the rules of the 2008 Option Scheme is set out below:

(@) Purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme is to provide an Eligible
Person (as defined below) with the opportunity to acquire equity
securities in the Company, thus enabling them to participate in
the prosperity of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or any
invested entity (which refers to any entity in which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries holds any equity interest) (“Invested
Entity”) and consequently such opportunity is an incentive for
such Eligible Person to contribute further to the success of the
Company and/or its any subsidiary and/or any Invested Entity.

(b) Participants of the 2008 Option Scheme
The Board (or a duly authorised committee thereof) shall, at its
absolute discretion, make an offer to grant option to any person
(“Eligible Person”) belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to subscribe for Shares:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Company, its any subsidiary or any Invested Entity,
including any executive director of the Company, its
subsidiary or any Invested Entity and for the avoidance of
doubt, including any employee employed or to be
employed by the Company, its any subsidiary or any
Invested Entity in The People’s Republic of China;

(i) any non-executive director (including any independent
non-executive director) of the Company, its any subsidiary
or any Invested Entity; or

(i)  the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the
discretionary objects) of which includes any of the persons
mentioned in subparagraphs (i) and (ii) above.

(c)  Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the
2008 Option Scheme
The maximum number of Shares available for further grant of
options under the 2008 Option Scheme (together with Shares to
be alloted under the 2002 Share Scheme described below) shall
not exceed 23,828,033 Shares, representing approximately
3.55% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of this annual report.
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(d RE-ZENFRAREFESTLEERA

(d) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the

2008 Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in any
12-month period which, if exercised in full, would result in the
total number of Shares already issued to such Eligible Person
under all the options previously granted to him/her which have
been exercised and, issuable to him/her under all the options
previously granted to him/her which are for the time being
subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of the total number of
issued Shares on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting with such
Eligible Person and his/her associates abstaining from voting has
been obtained.

Period for and consideration payable upon acceptance of
an option

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within the
time period specified in the relevant offer letter. A sum of
HK$10.00 is payable as consideration upon acceptance of the
offer. Such amount shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Subscription price for Shares

The subscription price for Shares shall be a price to be determined
by the Board and notified to each grantee but shall not be less
than the highest of:

(i) the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date, which
must be a business day; and

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which
must be a business day,

provided that in the event of fractional prices, the subscription
price shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise
There is no minimum holding period for which an option must be
held before exercise pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme. The
commencement date of the period during which an option may
be exercised shall be determined by the Board and specified in
the offer letter in respect of the option.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008
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2008 Option Scheme (continued)

(h)

Remaining life

The 2008 Option Scheme shall remain in effect for a period of 10
years commencing from 22 May 2008, its date of adoption,
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the
2008 Option Scheme.

Details of movements in the options under the 2008 Option Scheme
during the nine-month period and options outstanding as at the
beginning and end of the period are set out in note 35(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of options granted under the 2008 Option Scheme during
the nine-month period is set out in note 35(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Synergis Share Option Scheme

A Synergis Share Option Scheme (the “Synergis Option Scheme”) was adopted
by the shareholders of Synergis, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, on 19 September 2003. Pursuant to the Synergis Option Scheme,
the board of directors of Synergis (the “Synergis Board”) may, at its absolute
discretion, make an offer to grant option to any person belonging to any of
the following classes of participants to subscribe for Synergis Shares.

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the Synergis Option Scheme

The Synergis Option Scheme is set up for the purpose of
recognising and motivating the contribution of the Synergis
Eligible Persons (as defined below) to Synergis and/or any of its
subsidiaries and/or any Synergis Invested Entity (as defined
below).

Participants of the Synergis Option Scheme
Synergis Eligible Persons entitled to participate in the Synergis
Option Scheme (the “Synergis Eligible Persons”) include:

(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of Synergis,
any of its subsidiaries, or any entity in which Synergis or
any of its subsidiaries holds an equity interest (the
“Synergis Invested Entity”); including any executive director
of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested
Entity but excluding any employee employed or to be
employed by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Synergis Invested Entity in The People’s Republic of China
("PRC") (which, for the purposes of the Synergis Option
Scheme, shall exclude Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan);
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Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued)

(b)

(9]

(continued)

Participants of the Synergis Option Scheme (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

any non-executive director (including any independent
non-executive director) of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries
or any Synergis Invested Entity;

any shareholder of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Synergis Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any Synergis
Invested Entity who has, in the opinion of the Synergis
Board, made contribution to the business growth of
Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested
Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods and/or services to Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity;

any business collaborator, business consultant, joint
venture or business partner, or technical, financial, legal
and other professional advisers engaged by Synergis, any
of its subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity;

any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
directors or the substantial shareholders of Synergis, any of
its subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity who has, in
the opinion of the Synergis Board, made contribution to
the business growth of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or
any Synergis Invested Entity; or

the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Synergis
Board, the beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the
discretionary objects) of which includes any of the
abovementioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the Synergis Option Scheme, the options
may be granted to any company wholly owned by one or more
of the above Synergis Eligible Persons.

Maximum number of Synergis Shares available for issue

under the Synergis Option Scheme

The maximum number of Synergis Shares available for further
grant of options under the Synergis Option Scheme shall not
exceed 25,500,000 Synergis Shares, representing 7.68% of the
issued share capital of Synergis at the date of this annual report.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued)

(d)

(continued)

Maximum entitlement of each Synergis Eligible Person
under the Synergis Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Synergis Eligible Person in
any 12-month period which, if exercised in full, would result in
the total number of Synergis Shares already issued to such
Synergis Eligible Person under all the options previously granted
to him/her which have been exercised and, issuable to him/her
under all the options previously granted to him/her which are for
the time being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of the
share capital of Synergis in issue on the last date of such
12-month period unless being approved by the shareholders of
Synergis in general meeting.

Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of Synergis, or any of
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would
result in the Synergis Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options already granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) and to be granted to such person in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of the
proposed grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total number
of Synergis Shares in issue for the time being; and

(i) the aggregate value of which, based on the closing price
of the Synergis Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of the proposed grant,
is in excess of HK$5.0 million, such proposed grant of
option shall be subject to prior approval of the shareholders
of Synergis in general meeting in which all connected
persons for the time being of Synergis (if any) (except
where any connected person intends to vote against the
proposed grant of option and his/her intention to do so
has been stated in the circular) shall abstain from voting at
such general meeting and at which any vote taken shall be
taken on a poll.
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Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued)

(e)

U]

(9)

(h)

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

(continued)

Period for and consideration payable upon acceptance of
an option

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted by a Synergis
Eligible Person (and by no other person except the Synergis
Eligible Person) in respect of all the Synergis Shares for which the
offer is made. Acceptance shall be made by such Synergis Eligible
Person by signing and returning the duplicate of the offer letter
together with the payment of a consideration of HK$1.00 for
such grant to Synergis within the time period specified in the
offer letter.

Subscription price for Synergis Shares

The subscription price in respect of any option granted under the
Synergis Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the
Synergis Board and notified to each grantee and shall not be less
than the highest of (i) the nominal value of a Synergis Share; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the Synergis Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date on which an offer
for grant of an option (the “Synergis Offer Date”) is made to a
Synergis Eligible Person; and (iii) the closing price of the Synergis
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the Synergis Offer Date which must be a business day, provided
that the subscription price shall be rounded upwards to the
nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise
There is no minimum holding period for which an option must be
held before exercise pursuant to the Synergis Option Scheme.
The commencement date of an option period shall be specified
by the Synergis Board in the relevant offer letter.

Remaining life

The Synergis Option Scheme shall remain in effect for a period of
10 years commencing from 19 September 2003, its date of
adoption, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the
rules of the Synergis Option Scheme.

Annual Report 2008

e

Sk

5

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

29 8B IR AR 8 )
5400 1L B PR R A B

HMEEEREBMALT(TH RZHEER
BERALUINNEMAL) I HER
CHERET2HXFEERBROENGHER
HBRENEZD ZMEHAREORMG
BERRAN AZTEERaERALE
BHHNHFRIATABRZIWEREE1.007T
FRERBRLZREROHEER -

HEEERDABEE

RipHEETEBB I AR DB RE
WRBEEHTEEREECTEETLA
MEARAN  EARERTIN=ZFFN&K
mEC(VFEEBKRMHZHEE  (NNEE
EHBEREEOTHEERAEKRALR
HOENEH D AEEXENEER
B EMXMEARERMEL 2 FHRT
B RAGNREVNBEH (BWAREER)H
EEERNEBIMERBRERMAIAZR
mE HEREETR (NS ERMELZE
BEREEZ — Bl -

BRETENAFEZHERR
REFSEEBRESS - BRENITE
A A REHMRZER - ITEHAMH
HAMBHEEREETENAFELRM
NFETE °

£ T HA R

BRE S EEBRES S ZRA T UK
o HEEREREA R _TT=F
NANA+TNAB (BIE RS B ) &5 + & 5
MAEREEFTER -



Share Option Schemes (continues)

Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of movements in the share options under the Synergis Option
Scheme during nine-month period and options outstanding at the
beginning and end of the period are set out in note 35(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Employee Share Subscription Scheme
An employee share subscription scheme (the “2002 Share Scheme”) which is
in force was adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 23 August 2002.
A summary of the rules of the 2002 Share Scheme is set out below:

(1) Summary of the 2002 Share Scheme

The purpose of the 2002 Share Scheme is to provide Qualifying
Employees (as described in sub-paragraph (b) below) with the
opportunity to acquire shares in the Company (”Shares”), thus
enabling them to participate in the Company’s prosperity and
consequently, such opportunity is an incentive for them to
contribute further to the success of the Company.

The Directors may make offers to subscribe for Shares to full time
employees and executive directors (excluding non-executive
directors) of the Group (“the Group” in the context describing
the 2002 Share Scheme shall have the definition ascribed to it
under the rules of the 2002 Share Scheme) who have worked for
the Group for a period of not less than six months immediately
before the commencement of any operating period whereas
operating period refers to every six month period either from 1
January to 30 June or from 1 July to 31 December.

The maximum number of Shares available for making offers for
subscription of Shares under the 2002 Share Scheme (together
with any Shares to be issued under the 2008 Option Scheme)
shall not exceed 23,828,033 Shares, representing approximately
3.55% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of this annual report.
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(1) Summary of the 2002 Share Scheme (continued)

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

A Qualifying Employee may elect to utilise not less than 1% nor
exceed 20% of his/her basic monthly salary to subscribe for
Shares during each relevant operating period (as explained
above).

No offer may be made to any Qualifying Employee which if
accepted in full would result in the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon offers already accepted or to be accepted
by such Qualifying Employee (including both accepted and
outstanding offers) in any 12-month period immediately
preceding the date of such new offer exceeding 1% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of such new offer. Any grant of further
offer above the aforesaid limit shall be subject to separate
approval by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting
with such Qualifying Employee and his/her associates obtaining
from voting.

An offer for subscription of Shares may be accepted by an
Qualifying Employee by giving notification of his/her decision in
prescribed form to the Company within the time period specified
in the offer letter prior to the commencement date of the
relevant operating period. No payment is required to be made on
acceptance of an offer.

Shares subscribed under the 2002 Share Scheme shall be allotted
to the relevant Qualifying Employees within one month following
the expiration of each relevant operating period. The subscription
price for Shares to be allotted shall be such price notified by the
Directors to the relevant Qualifying Employees, which shall be the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the day on which the Shares
are allotted, which must be a business day; and (i) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the day on which the Shares are allotted, rounded down to avoid
fractions of one Hong Kong cent. If the subscription price so
determined is below the nominal value of a Share, Shares shall be
allotted at par.

The subscription money shall be deducted from each Qualifying
Employee’s payroll during the relevant operating period in such
installments and in such manner as the Directors may determine.
Such subscription monies shall be pooled together in a trust
account earning interest for the relevant Qualifying Employees.
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Employee Share Subscription Scheme (ontinueq)

(1) Summary of the 2002 Share Scheme (continued)

The 2002 Share Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing from 23 August 2002, its date of the
adoption, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the
rules of the 2002 Share Scheme.

(2) Movements under the 2002 Share Scheme
No Share was issued and allotted pursuant to the 2002 Share Scheme
during the nine-month period.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

During the nine-month period, the Company operated three share option
schemes and an employee share subscription scheme pursuant to which
options and offers may be granted and made to the directors of the Company
for subscription of shares in the Company. Certain directors of the Company,
being also directors of Synergis, are also eligible to participate in the Synergis
Share Option Scheme pursuant to which they may be granted options for
subscription of shares in Synergis. Details of the 1991 Option Scheme, the
2002 Option Scheme, the 2008 Option Scheme, the Synergis Share Option
Scheme, and the 2002 Share Scheme are set out in the paragraphs entitled
“Share Option Schemes” and “Employee Share Subscription Scheme” above.
Further details of options granted and/or shares allotted or transferred to the
directors of the Company are disclosed in the paragraph entitled “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and Its Associated Corporations” and
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the nine-month period was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
Dr. David CHU Shu-ho and Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin are directors of Mission
Hills Golf Club Limited (“MHGCL"). MHGCL is also 100% beneficially and
indirectly owned by Dr. David CHU Shu-ho. The principal businesses of MHGCL
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) comprise, among other things,
property development (the “Relevant Business”) and property and facility
management services (the “Excluded Business”). As such, Dr. David CHU Shu-
ho and Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin are regarded as interest in these competing
businesses of the Group. The Directors believe that as the size of the Relevant
Business is not insignificant when compared with the property development
business of the Group, it is likely that the Relevant Business may compete with
the property development business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEg®RE

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
(continued)

The Relevant Business is operated and managed by MHGCL or its relevant
members (other than the Group) with independent management and
administration. On this basis, the Directors believe that the Group is capable of
carrying on its property development business independently of the Relevant
Business and at arm’s length from the Relevant Business.

On the other hand, as the size of the Excluded Business is insignificant when
compared with the size of the property and facility management services of
the Group, it is unlikely that the Excluded Business may compete with the
property and facility management business of the Group.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants
or Similar Rights

Other than the 1991 Option Scheme, the 2002 Option Scheme, the 2008
Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Scheme described in the paragraphs
entitled “Share Option Schemes” and “Employee Share Subscription Scheme”
above and in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as
at 31 December 2008. Other than those disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, there was no issue or exercise of any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the nine-month
period.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the nine-month period.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participated in two defined contribution retirement schemes,
namely, Hsin Chong Group Retirement Fund Scheme (the “Hsin Chong
Retirement Scheme”) and Hsin Chong Group Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme") during the nine-month period. On 18 December
2008, the Company and its relevant subsidiaries served notices to the trustees
of the Hsin Chong Retirement Scheme advising their cessation of participation
in Hsin Chong Retirement Scheme with effect from 1 January 2009. With
effect from 1 January 2009, all the employees of the Group have participated
in the MPF Scheme. Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note
3(s) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2008, the interests or short positions of the following
substantial shareholders (other than persons who were directors and chief
executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Long position interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company

=
)

FTERRREADARG REER
HRERZEERAR

RZZZNE+_A=+—8 REZEHFLBHEENH

FIB6HEARRABTHFEEZECMAEE THES

BER(ARAAESERITHRARBRIN RARQ GRS KHE
RO FHEECERIAB T T:

t

AR REBERDPES 25

Tk
é._
T
<x>>

B

Percentage of
interest in the

Number of issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held capital
HEBRTREAZ
BRERER g4 BERGHA EZEIE
(note ii)
OBt i)
Upper Luck Holdings Limited Interests of controlled corporations 375,921,240 56.01%
(note i)
REEEE (K 3ED)
Mission Hills Golf Club Limited Interests of controlled corporation 375,921,240 56.01%
(note i)
EEERER Qi=ap
Carrick Worldwide Limited Beneficial owner 375,921,240 56.01%
(note i)
ERnlAA (K 3ED)
Notes: B EE
(i) Carrick is a wholly owned subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation of (i) Carrick BMHGCLZ 2 8 M B I B & & - Lt 78 &

MHGCL. MHGCL is a wholly owned subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation
of Upper Luck. Upper Luck is wholly owned by Dr. David CHU Shu-ho, the non-
executive chairman of the Board whose interests in the shares of the Company are
disclosed in the paragraph entitled “Directors and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
and Its Associated Corporations” above. By virtue of the SFO, both Upper Luck
and MHGCL were deemed to be interested in the same lot of 375,921,240 shares
held by Carrick in the Company as at 31 December 2008.

(ii) There were 671,173,662 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2008.

MHGCLZ %4235 - MHGCL&Upper LuckZz 2 & A
B AR > ALt I8 AUpper Luckz 25 @  Upper
LUCkBESEHFUTEELABZE LT 2885 - K
%Tﬁiﬁé$@aﬂHﬁ1ﬁ2$§§ﬁétﬂ%%§%r§$&ﬁ
HEHNARA REBBEZEZRG - BEKY
1&%‘:PT?’E7EZ$E®&/J<FJ*EXT&E§ c RIEEF R
E1EH - Upper Luck RMHGCLY R BB R —#t A
CarrlckE"_7 ZNEFE+ZA=Z+—HABEERARAR
375,921,240 % iR 17 2 25 ©

(ii) RZZZENF+ZA=+—H  ARaIZ2BE#1TKRH
671,173,662 % °
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company «ontinves)

Long position interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the Company had not been
notified of any other persons (other than persons who were directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the nine-month period, the Group entered into (or continued to be a
party to) certain transactions under the MHGCL Agreement described in the
paragraph entitled “Directors’ Interests in Contracts” above. Terms used in this
paragraph have the same meaning as defined in the above paragraph.

As MHGCL is a controlling shareholder of the Company, therefore, members
of the MHGCL Group are connected persons of the Company. Those
transactions entered into by the Group with the MHGCL Group pursuant to
the MHGCL Agreement for the nine-month period constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company and are subject to the annual review
and reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further
details were announced by the Company in the announcement dated 15 April
2008 and disclosed in a circular dated 6 May 2008 issued by the Company.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2008, the Company had,
pursuant to the MHGCL Agreement, provided construction related services to
the MHGCL Group for a value (in terms of revenue recognition) of
HK$2,105,000. Such amount is within the relevant annual cap (the “Annual
Cap”) for the period as approved by shareholders of the Company on 22 May
2008, adjusted for the change of the financial year end date of the Company.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) of the
Company have reviewed and confirmed that all the continuing connected
transactions with the MHGCL Group mentioned above conducted in the nine
months ended 31 December 2008 were entered into on the following basis:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

() in accordance with the relevant agreements governing these
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008
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The external auditor of the Company has confirmed to the Board in writing
that all the continuing connected transactions described above:

(i) have received approval of the Board,;

(i) were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if the relevant
transactions involved provision of goods or services by the Group;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing these transactions; and

(iv)  the total value for the nine months ended 31 December 2008 has not
exceeded the Annual Cap of HK$150,000,000 for the nine-month
period.

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for 72% (2007/08: 82%)
of the Group’s total revenue and the largest customer of the Group accounted
for 47% (2007/08: 39%) of the Group’s total revenue for the nine-month
period.

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% (2007/08:
less than 30%) of the Group’s total purchases for the nine-month period.

None of the director, any of their associates or shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers.

ZINN TZQI\HH?%IEWEﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁéw'
Ptz PR ¥ A R

(i) CBMBESHGUE:

(i) ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁ&Hﬂ$%l%,\f§ m RS - T
REREERZ EEBHE

(iy DNRBEREZZTIHZEEBHET R

(v, RAEASR SEELRBBAHRZ_FFN
FHTZAZt-RALEAEAZEFRLRER
150,000,000 7C

E’\\\Mﬂﬁﬁﬁ AEEBZARAMNEFRHASEB B E
ZNR%B (T TN\FE 82%) MAEBEBZK
ERAMEAREBBEKZRZ47%(ZBE+ /ENFE :
39%)

RAERAHE AREERALUEERGASEZZ
REFIR0%B(ZZFZL/ ZNFE : PR30%) °

%$ CEARECBMBEAXBRR(BESAAES X
RABBETHAEB%E) BERAEEZTAALE
PR EAER -

The particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and AEESRHR _ZEZNF+_A=T—BEZZFZEN
31 March 2008, respectively, were as follows: FZRA=1+—HZBITEEFBHOT -
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENE —TENF
+=HA=+—H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET R BT T
Short term bank loan, secured BEMEHETER 10,000 —
Short term bank loans, unsecured PR BRITER 60,000 —
Long term bank loan for which an analysis RERITER - HERH
of the repayment schedule is set out DIMER IR E M BHRE
in note 32 to the consolidated MfsE32 — A 4E
financial statements — secured 150,000 —
220,000 —

MERESEERAR  F#2008



A proforma combined balance sheet of certain affiliated companies with major
financial assistance and the Group’s attributable interest in these affiliated
companies are set out on page 161.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2008, donations made by the
Group for charitable and other purposes amounted to HK$1,266,000
(2007/08: HK$216,000).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the nine-month period.

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and to the best of knowledge of its directors.

The retiring auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has expressed its willingness to
offer for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
2009 annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company for the ensuing year
and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

David CHU Shu-ho
Non-executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 1 April 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHENHRES

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORMKBEETWERLR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD.
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 79 to 159, which comprise the consolidated and
Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the nine months then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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BYRBERES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the nine months then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 1 April 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement
MEERE

For the period from 1 April 2008 to 31 December 2008
ZEENFHNA—BEZZEENF+A=+—HBILHHE

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENE —EELF
mA—RAZE MA—BZ
—EEN\F —ET)N\F
+=B=t+-8 | =A=t-A
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 BET T BT T
Revenue W 25 6 1,836,740 2,494,727
Cost of sales 5 & AR 8 (1,604,945) (2,276,210)
Gross profit EF 231,795 218,517
Other income N 7 26,152 48,337
General and administrative expenses THAX 8 (126,883) (118,378)
Other operating expenses HfhE &5 X 8 (19,658) (23,979)
Other charges Hibh 9 (84,840) (2,642)
Operating profit # A 26,566 121,855
Finance costs & A 10 (1,815) (1,686)
Share of (losses less profits)/ e (BEREF)
profits less losses of i AR s 18
— jointly controlled entities — HFEEHEE (5,225) 13,259
— associated companies — B o 472 2,557
Profit before income tax Ffr 45 ¢ A A 19,998 135,985
Income tax expense Frisfim= 13 (14,180) (14,946)
Profit for the period/year AERE S F SR 5,818 121,039
Dividends % & 15 26,869 63,738
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEfR &R (EE)
Equity holders of the Company KARERFEA 14 6,742 123,922
Minority interests LHBRRER (924) (2,883)
5,818 121,039
Basic earnings per share (cents) BREARRR (L) 16 1.0 19.1
Diluted earnings per share (cents) FREERF () 16 1.0 18.7
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Balance Sheets
BEEBEX

As at 31 December 2008

—EENFF+_A=t+—HKEE
Group &8 Company &4 T
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2008 2008 2008 2008
—EENE —EENEF —EENE —EENE
+=ZB=+—-H =B=+—H +ZHB=+—-H —f=+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(o3 BETRT BET T BRI BET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BBENRE 18 96,371 56,846 9,000 1,318
Investment properties wREWME 19 69,000 124,500 — —
Prepaid premium for land lease BRNLHEEER 20 81,435 39,737 — —
Intangible assets B EE 21 156,275 1,350 — —
Goodwill EES 22 18,753 — — —
Investment in subsidiaries MEAAEE 23 - — 61,669 65,618
Loans to a subsidiary EXF-—KHEBAR 23 — — — 50,000
Associated companies B 5% 24 3,003 1,110 — -
Jointly controlled entities HRESEE 25 89,606 49,300 — —
Held-to-maturity financial assets BRIHHBEE 26 5,871 11,393 5,871 11,393
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEEZHBEE 27 3,265 3,502 — —
Deferred income tax assets ELEAMEHEE 31 340 226 — —
523,919 287,964 76,540 128,329
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries =N e 23 — — 489,917 442,689
Loans to a subsidiary BERT-—HBAA 23 — — 50,000 —
Stocks and contracting work-in-progress 77 & Jr # i2 fh T 72 28 176,569 228,432 — —
Receivables and prepayments JEWETRTENS 29 379,978 368,513 3,751 3,185
Held-to-maturity financial assets BRI UBEE 26 8,039 13,241 8,039 13,241
Deposits, cash and bank balances BEH - HeRETERE 30
— restricted — XRH 3,889 6,938 — —
— unrestricted — TZR 673,832 628,744 4,188 36,662
Current income tax recoverable AU E BT EE — — — 275
1,242,307 1,245,868 555,895 496,052
Current liabilities ,?EEJEF D T e L
Short term bank loans REBHRITER 32 (70,000) — (40,000) —
Payables and accruals ERNEFRETER 33 (944,093) (835,924) (21,533) (10,745)
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN @ 23 — — (253,323) (81,141)
Amounts due to minority shareholders T DR R A 34 (22,496) (27,028) — —
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAR (16,939) (10,868) — —
(1,053,528) (873,820) (314,856) (91,886)
Net current assets RBEEZRE 188,779 372,048 241,039 404,166
Total assets less current liabilities EEABARBEE 712,698 660,012 317,579 532,495
Non-current liabilities krma® |
Long term bank loan REARITER 32 (150,000) — — -
Long service payment liabilities R H R ﬁ& $EE (3,246) — (134) —
Deferred income tax liabilities EEEHAaRE 31 (27,311) — — —
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELE (180,557) — (134) —
Net assets BEFE 532,141 660,012 317,445 532,495
Equity B
Capital and reserves attributable EREERBEEA
to the Company’s equity holders BHEEARG#E
Share capital R 7 35 67,117 67,061 67,117 67,061
Other reserves Hhf %1 36 225,645 326,160 204,150 363,034
Retained profits 1R & i 7 36 99,773 234,436 32,755 75,576
Proposed dividend BIERE 36 13,423 26,824 13,423 26,824
405,958 654,481 317,445 532,495
Minority interests PR FES 126,183 5,531 - -
Total equity AT 532,141 660,012 317,445 532,495

WONG Ying-wai T &
Director EF

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

Annual Report 2008

Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho

Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEREMNER

For the period from 1 April 2008 to 31 December 2008
ZEENFNA—BEZETNFT_A=T—HIHEA

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EEN\E T HF
mA—RAZE mMA—B=ZE
—EENEF ZETN\F
+=ZA=+—AH =A=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BET T ok e
Operating activities REEK
Net cash inflow generated from operations KEEX RS RANFRE 42(a) 278,721 132,798
Interest received 2 U AE 8,373 23,719
Interest paid EESRAESS (1,770) (1,221)
Dividend income from financial assets B i A T EE A F sk
at fair value through profit or loss BlECMBEEERE — 79
Income tax paid BB (10,026) (6,736)
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEBECRERNFHE 275,298 148,639
Investing activities REXHK
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEDE  HERRE (21,652) (5,624)
Addition in an investment property AL EYE (1,767) —
Proceeds from the disposal of property, HEME  HBEX
plant and equipment BABFTIS X 954 1,113
Proceeds from the disposal of HE—HKEEHEREMENR
a jointly controlled entity 425 —
Purchase of held-to-maturity financial assets BERBZIBCUBEE — (5,967)
Redemption of held-to-maturity financial assets BEOHEZINH VB EE 10,850 12,090
Dividend income from associated companies B B 5% AR B 36 7,862
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired WEE—KI B AR - HBRFTULES
2B 43 (197,447) —
Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary & i& — [ff B A A &= (165,640) —
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of HEWB AR HKBRAEEZEES  420) 321 —
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits BB =M@AZEITER
over three months wA (3n) 42,289 (41,719)
Advance from/repayment from an associated RE—BHAEREHEE Y
company and jointly controlled entities BREREER 1,270 14,259
Advance to/repayment to jointly KTHRAEHEEZER S
controlled entities BRER (46,809) (36,909)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEB2RERHFE (377.170) (54,895)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow before financing BEANZRE(RE) ARAZE (101,872) 93,744
Financing activities &
Proceeds from bank loans RITERFTE K 240,000 —
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (20,000) (25,000)
Issue of shares BITHTRR 448 25,662
Repayment to minority shareholders BELERERER (2,401) (7,914)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders IR #H R R AR E (3,097) (4,466)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders B R AN A 7 AR AR B (26,847) (101,033)
Distribution in specie of shares in a LBEeREMDIR
subsidiary settled by cash —MEBAFRG (127) —
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing BMEZHRERA (FH) BE 187,976 (112,751)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  IR& RIRE&ZFE &M, ORd) 86,104 (19,007)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning REY,/ FyzBEehREEE
of period/year 587,025 599,894
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents RekReEBEEL R 703 6,138
Cash and cash equivalents at the end RER " FERZEERBESEE
of the period/year 673,832 587,025
Analysis of the balances of cash and RERREZEEFZIN
cash equivalents
Deposits, cash and bank balances TR ReRBITESF
— unrestricted — NER A 673,832 628,744
Less: Time deposits over three months B BHHABBA=@A ZRITEXK - (41,719)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end RER " FRZEERESEE
of the period/year 673,832 587,025
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GREERBER

For the period from 1 April 2008 to 31 December 2008

—EENFENA-BEC

ZNF+_A=+—HBLHMH

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company

BRAEXAREZEREA
Share Minority Total
capital Reserves interests equity
2>
;&N ®E LY £ R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
(Note 36)
(FI=E36)
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZ+FMIMA—H 63,922 522,593 8,834 595,349
Exchange differences fE X =% — 7,977 5,432 13,409
Profit/(loss) for the year KEEHN,/ (BE) — 123,922 (2,883) 121,039
Total recognised income and expense RAFEERZBA KR
for the year L — 131,899 2,549 134,448
Issue of shares BITHAR 3,139 — — 3,139
Premium arising from issue of shares BTHEEEA 2% B — 22,523 — 22,523
Equity settled share-based AR RERZ
transactions RIEFEERZ S — 11,438 — 11,438
Distribution 7 e — — (1,386) (1,386)
Dividends paid 2R S — (101,033) (4,466) (105,499)
3,139 (67,072) (5,852) (69,785)
At 31 March 2008 RZZETNF
=A=+—H 67,061 587,420 5,531 660,012
At 1 April 2008 R-ZZEZEN\FMWA—H 67,061 587,420 5,531 660,012
Exchange differences fE X =% — (8,349) 366 (7,983)
Profit/(loss) for the period RNEARE R (EE) — 6,742 (924) 5,818
Total recognised income and expense RAHRERZ WA R
for the period X 2% — (1,607) (558) (2,165)
Issue of shares BITHR 56 — — 56
Premium arising from issue of shares EITHI ﬁﬁ% b 7%E —_ 392 —_ 392
Equity settled share-based LARR 1 m B 2
transactions % #E 4% % 2z % — 21,604 — 21,604
Acquisition of a subsidiary W EE — M B A — — 103,620 103,620
Additional interests acquired in a subsidiary &8 — B A ET R — — (89,045) (89,045)
Disposal of subsidiaries & Bt B8 2 A — — (2,091) (2,091)
Distribution in specie of shares in a subsidiary A Z¥5 k — M B A 58k H — (228,698) 109,692 (119,006)
Distribution bl — — 2,131 2,131
Interim dividend declared EEIRFHRKRE — (13,423) — (13,423)
Dividends paid 2R R B — (26,847) (3.097) (29,944)
56 (246,972) 121,210 (125,706)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZZEENE
+=ZHA=+—8H 67,117 338,841 126,183 532,141

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

Annual Report 2008



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R MR

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are engaged in building
construction, provision of construction/project management consultancy
services, civil engineering construction, electrical and mechanical
engineering installation, renovation and fitting-out, property
development and investment, and provision of property management
and facility management services. During the period, the Group
completed the acquisition of shares (“Synergis Shares”) in Synergis
Holdings Limited (“Synergis”). Details of which are referred to note 43.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda. The Company has its primary listing on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
board of directors of the Company on 1 April 2009.

During the period, the Company resolved to change the date of its
financial year end from 31 March to 31 December in order to align with
the financial reporting dates within the Mission Hills Group in which the
Company is one of the subsidiaries. The consolidated financial
statements presented for the current period therefore covered nine
months period from 1 April 2008 to 31 December 2008. The
corresponding comparative amounts shown for the consolidated income
statement, consolidated cash flow statement, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and related notes cover twelve months period from 1
April 2007 to 31 March 2008 and therefore may not be directly
comparable with amounts shown for the current period.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the period/years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinances and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

FEEEEEBERAR(TARQA]) REKBA
Rl(EBEIAE®E ) REEFEE  Ritgs/
BEREEBEMERE  TARITREEE HELRE
TR -EEREEIRE DEZEREE U
DREVESELREETERSE - REAR - K
EEERNKREFNEEREEERAA(HESE
BDzBRHO(THEEERD]) - BHFBEEL
BB 5E43 -

ARAAERBREFMRLZABR QG - s
it F JE 1o ik & Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda ° &N 2 &) A F /8 Bt &
REGMBER AR ERIEE— L -

BREENRN AEAMBRENEET TR
BRIR - ARREZRCR_TTNFOA
—ARETIEAGEMBRE -

HRARAAERREEAMNBAR Z— Bt —
HEB2HBRHREY  RBAR - ARFEBE
HEVBRFREEERRA=ZA=T REHA/ T
“A=t+—B - At ABMEJNNES P BR
RREH_ZTENFHUA-RE_ZTNF+
“A=+t-BMNLBEAHE - MiEaBERE
FARERER HEAEZRZIXRNABME
FAHELREERER _TZTLFOA—
FE-ZZN\F=ZA=+—HH+ @A HHE
Btk NI SRR REEERFLR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

(a) REER @)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving an higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 5.

HKICPA has issued certain amendments and interpretations to
existing standards (the “New Standards”) which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2008 but they
are not relevant to the Group’s operations.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets

(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

The following standard, revised standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been published that are
mandatory for the accounting periods of the Group beginning on
or after 1 January 2009 or later periods that the Group has not
early adopted:

Effective for

accounting

periods

beginning

on or after

HKAS 1 (Revised) 1 January 2009
“Presentation of Financial Statements”

HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs” 1 January 2009

HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and 1 July 2009

Separate Financial Statements”
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 (Amendments) 1 January 2009

“Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation”
HKAS 39 (Amendment) 1 July 2009
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items”
Amendments to 1 January 2009
HKFRS 1 — First-time adoption of HKFRS
and HKAS 27 — Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements — Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) “Share-based Payment 1 January 2009
— Vesting Conditions and Cancellations”

HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations” 1 July 2009
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” 1 January 2009
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 “Agreements for the 1 January 2009

Construction of Real Estate”
HK(FRIC)-Int 16 “Hedges of a Net Investment 1 October 2008
in a Foreign Operation”

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008
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(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
Improvements to HKFRSs — Amendments to:

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after

HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial
Statements”

HKAS 7 “Cash Flow Statements”

HKAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors”

HKAS 10 “Events After the
Balance Sheet Date”

HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”

HKAS 18 “Revenue”
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs”
HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements”
HKAS 28 “Investments in Associates”
HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”
HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
HKAS 38 “Intangible Assets”
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement”
HKAS 40 “Investment Property “

HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations”
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

1 January 2009

1 January 2009
1 January 2009

1 January 2009
1 January 2009

1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009

1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009

1 January 2009
1 July 2009

1 January 2009

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these new
standards, amendments and interpretations on its results of
operations and financial position but is not yet in a position to
state whether they would have a significant impact on the results
and financial position of the Group. However, the adoption of
HKAS 1 (Revised) and HKFRS 8 may result in new or amended

disclosures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

(b) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008
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(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external to
the Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains
and losses for the Group that are recorded in the
consolidated income statement. Purchases from minority
interests result in goodwill, being the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associated companies
are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in
associated companies includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group's share of its associated companies’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associated company equals or exceeds its
interest in the associated company, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associated company.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to their joint control and
none of the participating parties has unilateral control over
the economic activity.

Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for
by the equity method of accounting. The consolidated
income statement includes the Group’s share of the results
of the jointly controlled entities for the period/year, and the
consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s share of
the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at period-end/year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets such as equities classified as
available-for-sale are included in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

— income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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(d) Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose identified
according to operating segment.

Trademarks and trade names

Separately acquired trademarks and trade names are
shown at historical cost. Trademark acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date.

Trademarks and trade names that have a definite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademarks over their estimated
useful lives of 5 years.

Trademark that has indefinite useful life is not amortised. It
is subject to impairment testing annually and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired.

Secured contracts

Secured contracts acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The secured
contracts have a finite useful life and carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life of the
contracts of 5 years.

Client relationships

Client relationships acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The client
relationships have a finite useful life and carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life of the client
relationships of 9 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

(e) Properties

(f)

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

(i)

(ii)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the companies in the Group, is classified as investment
property. Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined annually by
external valuers.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific assets. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are determined
annually by external valuers or management.

Subsequent expenditure is recognised to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are charged in the income
statement.

Prepaid premium for land lease

Prepaid premium for land lease are up-front payments to
acquire long-term interests in leasee-occupied properties.
The premiums are stated at cost and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the lease period to the income
statement.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient
to write off their cost less accumulated impairment over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Property 5%
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of
the lease
Plant and machinery 10%-50%
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment 10%-50%

Motor vehicles 25%-30%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
other than investment properties is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in the income statement.

Stocks and contracting work-in-progress
Stocks are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales
proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost incurred plus an
appropriate proportion of profits after deducting progress
payments and allowances for foreseeable losses. Cost comprises
direct materials, labour and overheads expenses incurred in
bringing the work-in-progress to its present condition.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid by
customers and retention are included within trade and retention
receivables. The Group presents as a liability the gross amount
due to customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

(h) HHEE

(h) Financial assets

92

The Group classifies its investments in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-
maturity financial assets and available-for-sale financial assets.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to
be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(i) Held-to-maturity financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s management have the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If the
Group were to sell other than an insignificant amount of
held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole category would
be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale financial
assets. Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in
non-current assets, except for those with maturities within
12 months of the balance sheet date which are classified
as current assets.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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(h) Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Held-
to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are
presented in the income statement in the period in which they
arise.

Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised in the income statement as part of other
income when the Group’'s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in income statement, translation
differences on non-monetary securities are recognised in equity.
Changes in carrying amount are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the income statement.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. For financial assets that are not traded in an active market
(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by
using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option
pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs and
relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered
an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the income statement — is removed
from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the income statement.
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FEMBHRRMT

(h) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

()

In case of debt securities classified as held-to-maturity financial
assets, significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor or a
breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments are considered objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to recover the carrying value of the
investments and a provision for impairment will be made.

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the
item being hedged.

The Group does not designate any derivate as a hedging
instrument.

Certain derivative instruments which do not qualify for hedge
accounting are accounted for as derivatives at fair value through
profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
instruments are recognised immediately in the income statement
within “other income/(other operating expenses)”.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as operating
leases.

(i) The Group is the lessee
Payments made under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessors are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
periods.

(i) The Group is the lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the
asset is included in the balance sheet based on the nature
of the asset. Lease income from operating lease is
recognised over the term of the lease on a straight-line
basis.
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(k)

0)

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset'’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of
the provision is recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturity of three months or less from the date of
investment.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies, jointly controlled
entities and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade payable

Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly controlled entities
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred taxation
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
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(gq) Provisions (continued)

(r)

(s)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be
a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefits

The Group contributes to two defined contribution
retirement schemes, namely Hsin Chong Group Retirement
Fund Scheme (“RFS”) and Hsin Chong Group Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF"”). The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. The Group’s
contributions to RFS and MPF are based on rates ranging
from 5% to 10% of employees’ salaries depending on
length of service and are expensed as incurred in the
income statement. The contributions to RFS are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Such forfeited amounts are retained in the
funds for the benefit of other employees. On 18 December
2008, the Company and its relevant subsidiaries served
notices to the trustees of the RFS advising their cessation
of participation in RFS with effect from 1 January 2009.
With effect from 1 January 2009, all the employees of the
Group have participated in the MPF.
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(s) Employee benefits (continued)
(i)  Retirement benefits (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), the subsidiaries in
PRC participate in the municipal government contribution
scheme whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible
employees. The municipal government of the PRC is
responsible for the entire benefit obligations payable to
the retired employees. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing
contributions required by the scheme. The Group's
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred.

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(iii) Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market service and performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time period).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total amount expensed is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement with a corresponding adjustment to

equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are exercised.
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(u)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either: terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal plan
without possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy.

(v) Profit sharing and bonus plans
Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in the
period/year in which they are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Contract costs are recognised when incurred. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are likely to be recoverable. When the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable
that the contract will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in contract revenue to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based on the stage
of completion of the contracts, provided that the stage of
contract completion and the gross billing value of contracting
work can be measured reliably. The stage of completion of a
contract is established by reference to the gross billing value of
contracting work to date as compared to the total contract sum
receivable under the contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

(u) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)

Income from sale of stock of property is recognised when the
risks and rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers,
that is upon completion of the sale and purchase agreements.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of leases.

Property management and facility management services fees are
recognised when the services are rendered and in accordance
with the terms of agreements. There are two types of property
management and facility management agreements, namely
management remuneration contracts (“MR Contracts”) and lump
sum contracts (“LS Contracts”). Under a MR Contract, the Group
is remunerated by way of a fixed fee equal to a fixed percentage
on top of the costs involved in the management of the property
or facility as the management remuneration and only such fee is
recognised as revenue for the Group. Under a LS Contract, the
Group is paid a lump sum fee which normally covers the costs
involved in the management of the property or facility, thus the
whole of lump sum fee is recognised as revenue for the Group.

Revenue from provision of other supporting services for the
management of the property or facility is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Plant and plant staff hire income, secondment fee income,
secretarial and accountancy fee income, consultancy fee income,
services centre charges and building management fee are
recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Interest income on held-to-maturity financial assets is recognised
on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting and
operating activities, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format and
geographical segments as secondary reporting format.
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(v)

(w)

(x)

(y)

Segment reporting (continued)

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets
consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, prepaid premium for land lease, intangible assets,
goodwill, available-for-sale financial assets, stocks and contracting
work-in-progress, receivables and prepayments and deposits,
cash and bank balances. Segment liabilities comprise bank loan,
payables and accruals, amounts due to minority shareholders,
long service payment liabilities and exclude taxation. Capital
expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and goodwill.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenues are
presented based on the country in which the customer is located
and total assets and capital expenditure are presented based on
where the assets are located.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary holder of the guarantee (i.e. the holder) for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The Group does not recognise liabilities for financial guarantees
at inception, but perform a liability adequacy test at each
reporting date by comparing its carrying amount of the net
liability regarding the financial guarantee with its present legal or
constructive obligation amount. If the carrying amount of the net
liability is less than its present legal or constructive obligation
amount, the entire difference is recognised in the consolidated
income statement immediately.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
equity holders. The dividend declared after the year is not
reflected as a dividend payable in the financial statements but will
be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the
following year.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(v)

(w)

(x)

(y)

TEBE @
KO AREREBUES - pEAE
TERENE KEREE REME.
AN THEAEER EREE BB A
HEEREEE FERERH IR -
BEREZRENSRER B RETE
TooNMARBERAER BHEXE
R EA - B OBRBESE  EHRE
SEE MABEME  EAMEXBE
BAZYE HERBE RAEAVE &
WAEREE -

ERMESERSE kB NRRBREFPME
BRE2H MEEEREAMHAXREE
FrEZ27 -

MBEREN
BBEREREODERETA(BERRE
A BRE-HEBTAZER B —HE
BEARERDHRERRANE TS
ERE - MEEEREGQKEIFA A (H
ERBAEN)BBERZ -HALN -

SERAYBERZEBIEVHRER 2
REeEHRSAREMBERZEBFED
REERARITEAEREER T 2 HHE
TAERERENS BEEREFED
FEHERENERTEEREEREFZH
HE BE2HERAR2BEERNES
Bk R -

72K IR B
MARBREHEITEADIKRZREERSE
RAREEHFAEARLEZHHEREE Y
MBBRETERLEE EFHERERZ
B B AR HMER AR B ENES
MR RF R BREENDIK

iR <

ERBRDBEAER BEEBRENBEITHK
MARBREZ ML AR ERF I RAE
RIBZMBIAR (NBHE) -

F 47 2008

101




102

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BEHRME

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative
instruments to hedge foreign exchange risk exposures.

() Market risk

M

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Macau
and the Mainland China. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

The Group monitors foreign exchange exposed by
proper synchronisation of receipts and payments in
different operating currencies, and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure by
using foreign exchange forward contracts when the
need arises. At period end, the Group has
outstanding forward exchange contracts of HK$17.9
million including the Euro dollar (“EURO") and
Great Britain Pound (“GBP"). The Group is also
exposed to Renminbi (“RMB”) fluctuation, the net
investment of which has not been hedged.

As at 31 December 2008, if RMB, EURO and GBP
had strengthened/weakened by 2%, 10% and 10%
(31 March 2008: 5%, 10% and 1% respectively)
respectively against Hong Kong dollars with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the
period would have been approximately HK$3.4
million (2007/08: HK$8.6 million) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gains/
(losses) on translation of foreign currencies
denominated trade and other receivables, cash and
bank balances and trade and other payables,
together with forward contracts against EURO and
GBP.
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(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Market risk (continued)

(2)  Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest-rate risk arises mainly from
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk due to fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the
Group'’s Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings.
Subsequent to the period end, the Group entered a
new interest rate swap contract for a nominal sum
of HK$150.0 million for hedging its long term
borrowings.

At 31 December 2008, if interest rates on Hong
Kong dollar denominated borrowings had been 100
basis points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group's profit for the period
would have been approximately HK$0.6 million
lower/higher. There were no bank borrowings in the
prior year.

Apart from bank borrowings, the Group has held-
to-maturity financial assets which bear fixed interest
rates but the exposure is not considered as
significant.

(3)  Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
through investments held by the Group classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. The Group
considers the price risk exposure is not material.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group arises from deposits, cash and
bank balances, held-to-maturity financial assets and
receivables.

To manage the credit risk associated with deposits, cash
and bank balances and held-to-maturity financial assets,
most of the deposits, cash and bank balances and held-to-
maturity financial assets are held in banks with minimum
short-term rating rated as Prime-2 by Moody’s unless
otherwise approved by the Board of Directors. Prime-2
indicates that they have a strong ability to repay short-term
debt obligations.

To manage the credit risk associated with receivables the
Group adopts risk control to assess the credit quality of the
customers and debtors, taking into accounts of their
financial position and past experience.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRME

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management
which includes maintaining sufficient bank balances and
cash, and having available funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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Group £ B
Less than Between Between
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 Years Total
LPR—F —FE-F —FEEREF FEY-6)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
At 31 December 2008 RZ=-ZZEN\F
+=ZA=+-—8
Bank loans RITER 75,757 64,824 92,559 233,140
Payables and accruals ERERRETER 831,484 35,022 818 867,324
Amounts due to FEAS D SR R IR
minority shareholders 22,496 — — 22,496
Total 1B 929,737 99,846 93,377 1,122,960
At 31 March 2008 RZZEZNF
—A=+—H
Payables and accruals JERTBR R FEET E =2 764,572 20,892 2,884 788,348
Amounts due to FEAS D B R R IE
minority shareholders 27,028 — — 27,028
Total FREE] 791,600 20,892 2,884 815,376
Company A& A 7]
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2andb5 years Total
LPR—F —FE-F —FEZRF FER-C)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
At 31 December 2008 R-ZTEN\F
+=ZA=+—H
Bank loan RITER 40,168 — — 40,168
Payables and accruals ENERKEFTER 21,533 — — 21,533
Amounts due to FE AT BT B 2 B 5R IR
subsidiaries 253,323 — — 253,323
Total oK 315,024 — — 315,024
At 31 March 2008 i 2/\¢
=A=+—H
Payables and accruals & H EE,TA st & 10,745 — — 10,745
Amounts due to JFE 5B BB A B) FR A
subsidiaries 81,141 — — 81,141
Total FEReE 91,886 — — 91,886
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(b) Capital risk management

(@

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to
capitalisation ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt (calculated
as total bank borrowings) divided by total capital (calculated as
total equity plus total debt).
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The calculation of debt to capitalisation ratios at 31 December RZZBEZENF+_A=+—HE=F g)\

2008 and 31 March 2008 were as follows: FZA=Z+—HZEBEHERL TN
W

31 December 31 March

2008 2008

—EENEF —EENF

+=A=+-8 =A=+—-H

HK$'000 HK$'000

B¥T T BT T

Total debts wEE 220,000 —

Total equity B 532,141 660,012

Total capital FEREWIN 752,141 660,012

Debt to capitalisation ratio BEHEANL X 29.2% 0.0%

As at 31 December 2008, the Group was able to maintain a net RZZEZENF+ZA=+—8 AEE#%

cash position of HK$457.7 million (31 March 2008: HK$635.7
million). Net cash position is the sum of deposits, cash and bank
balances (including restricted and unrestricted) less bank loans.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of accounts
receivable and the carrying value of accounts payable
approximate their fair values due to their short term maturities.
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The Group make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions having a
significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are
discussed below:

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

Construction contracts

As explained in note 3(u), revenue recognition on a project is
dependent on management’s estimation of the total outcome of
the construction contract, as well as the work done to date. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract claims prepared for
each construction contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted
construction income is determined in accordance with the terms
set out in the relevant contracts. Budgeted construction costs are
prepared by the management on the basis of quotations from
time to time provided by the major contractors, suppliers or
vendors involved and the experience of the management. In
order to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date, the
management conducts periodic review on the management
budgets by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual
amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in estimating
the total contract revenue, contract costs, variation works and
contract claims which may have impact in terms of percentage of
completion and job profit taken.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts
The allowances for bad and doubtful debts of the Group is based
on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer.

Impairment of trading stocks

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of trading stocks
according to their estimated net realisable value based on
assessment of past experience and net sales value based on
prevailing market conditions. Provision is made when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be realised. The assessment requires the use of judgement
and estimates.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 3(m). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
("CGU") have been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates (see note 22).
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(d) Impairment of goodwiill (continued)
An impairment charge of HK$73.9 million arose in the CGU in
property management and facility management services segment
during the current period, resulting in the carrying amount of the
CGU being written down to its recoverable amount.

A considerable amount of judgement and assumption is required
in estimating the recoverable amount of goodwill, including
growth rate, gross margin and weighted average discount rate
applied to the discounted cash flows.

The Group is engaged in building construction, provision of
construction/project management consultancy services, civil engineering
construction, electrical and mechanical engineering installation,
renovation and fitting-out, property development and investment, and
provision of property management and facility management services.
During the period, the Group completed the acquisition of Synergis
Shares. Details of which are disclosed to in note 43.

Revenue represents gross billing value of contracting work to third
parties, property management and facility management services income,
sales proceeds from stock of properties, rental income from stock of
properties and investment properties and rental related income as
follows:

(d) BERE @
EAHERN DESTERIEBEERS
/IR & FE A B 7 3R R E 7 85 73,900,000
T BYHRSEABEMMEAERBRZ
HalE 45 -

EREEEa KO BRERE - F
MEREANBRRERE Z INETHE
BE  HAEEHEEREMHE RRE -

AEERFRFEE RHEE HEEER
MRS tARAIRREE HRELXKRIRE =
REEIR DEZRERE URRHDE
EREREEERS - REA - AEETRRE
BHEBTERND - FHAFABERENRML43 -

WEDHREEHETFTE=ZFZ2AHTRERE
MEEBRRBEERBWA  DEFEZH
EFER DEFELRREDEZHSRAR
EHEMEBZBA - FRWT

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENF —ETLE
A—HBZ MA—HBZE
—EENE —ZEENF
+=B=+—H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
Contract revenue AHI R 1,625,100 2,440,449
Property management and MEERRFEE IR
facility management services income PR 75 e A 166,621 —
Sales proceeds HE TSR
— stock of properties — MEEFE 22,759 27,207
Rental income & WA
— stock of properties — MEFE 2,370 2,789
— investment properties — KREME 15,793 17,939
Rental related income HEEMRA KA 4,097 6,343
1,836,740 2,494,727

Primary reporting format: business segments
The Group is organised into five major business segments, being
building construction and civil engineering, electrical and mechanical
installation, provision of property management and facility management
services, property development and rental and other operations (mainly
associated companies). Provision of property management and facility
management services are the principal activities of Synergis, a subsidiary
the Group acquired during the period.

TEDERE XBOE
ARBEDARALEEG  HAABTRE
BAATR BEZEIR RBEMEEER
RIEERR  MEHERBERE MRS (E
TREY)  REMEEERBEERRE A
EERHAKEANBATN 2 HEER Y EE
%7 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

Primary reporting format: business segments FEFERE EBI2B W
(continued)
Property
Building management
construction Electricaland  and facility Property
and civil mechanical management development Other
engineering installation services and rental operations Total
BFEE BWE YEEER MERR
RtARIRE ZEIRE REEERK EHE Hit 5% i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BET T BET T BET R BET T
Nine months ended —EEN\F+=A
31 December 2008 =+—HLAMEA
Revenue Wees 1,441,028 184,072 166,621 45,019 — 1,836,740
Segment results Pap e 99,942 10,973 (67,815)" 10,335 (15) 53,420
Finance income BRI A 7,364
Unallocated corporate expenses, A& E AR
net of income WA (34,218)
Operating profit e m 26,566
Finance costs BhE AR (1,815) —_ —_ — —_ (1,815)
Share of results of FEIG 4R
— Jointly controlled entities — HEEHEE (5,253) —_ 28 — —_ (5,225)
— Associated companies — BtSR — — 216 54 202 472
Profit before income tax FT{S A8 19,998
Income tax expense FrisfiEx (14,180)
Profit for the period REAREF 5,818
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEZENE
+=A=+-~H
Segment assets NEEE 778,251 212,143 358,602 296,004 4 1,645,041
Associated companies i —_ — 1,703 301 999 3,003
Jointly controlled entities HEZEHEE 89,606 — — — — 89,606
Deferred income tax assets EXERMEHREE 157 — 183 — — 340
Unallocated assets ROBEE 28,236
Total assets mEE 1,766,226
Segment liabilities SEEE (861,075) (157,489) (66,223) (44,253) (8)  (1,129,048)
Unallocated liabilities KOBEERE (60,787)
Current income tax liabilities SHIFFSHABE (16,939)
Deferred income tax liabilities EBEFRESHAE (27,311)
Total liabilities HWAE (1,234,085)
Capital and reserves attributable & Q &1z HH A
to the Company’s equity holders i 165 & 7 % 4 18 (405,958)
Minority interests DR RS (126,183)
Total equity and liabilities wEakEE (1,766,226)
Nine months ended BE—FZ)N\Ft+=8
31 December 2008 =+—HLAEAR
Capital expenditure BEAMHAY (16,779) (221) (255,740) (3,336) — (276,076)
Depreciation e (3,080) 97) (1,327) (4,221) — (8,725)
Amortisation i — (450) (4,664) (1,127) — (6.241)
Fair value gain/(loss) on EREBZIREYE
investment properties NFEHFEF
in Hong Kong (E8) — —_ (80) 233 —_ 153
Impairment loss on stocks of EREEMNzWE
properties in Guangzhou, PRC  F & R EE & — — — (10,975) — (10,975)
Impairment of goodwill BERE — — (73,865) — — (73,865)

#

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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Included HK$73.9 million impairment of goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Synergis.
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Primary reporting format: business segments FEFERE X B @
(continued)
Building
construction Electrical and Property
and civil mechanical development Other
engineering installation and rental operations Total
BFEREER HE MEER
TARTR TR kg E i %75 4z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BB T BT BB T
Year ended 31 March 2008 HE_ZTZTN\F=A
=t+—BLEFE
Revenue g 1,973,425 467,024 54,278 — 2,494,727
Segment results DHEER 82,284 22,069 22,135 (13) 126,475
Finance and securities income B REHBA 21,495
Unallocated corporate expenses, ROMAFIRAE
net of income B YA (26,115)
Operating profit #8255 T 121,855
Finance costs b & B AR (1,661) (25) — — (1,686)
Share of results of FEIG ¥4
— Jointly controlled entities — HEESEE 13,259 — — — 13,259
— Associated companies — B 5 —_ —_ 163 2,394 2,557
Profit before income tax 15 B4 Al s %1 135,985
Income tax expense R i (14,946)
Profit for the year A 0 F 121,039
At 31 March 2008 RZZE)N\F
—A=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 869,908 221,280 327,452 41 1,418,681
Associated companies ik — — 247 863 1,110
Jointly controlled entities HEEH B 49,300 — — — 49,300
Deferred income tax assets BEFMEHEE 226 — — — 226
Unallocated assets AOBEEE 64,515
Total assets BEE 1,533,832
Segment liabilities NEEE (624,736) (164,121) (63,342) (7) (852,206)
Unallocated liabilities KoL BE (10,746)
Current income tax liabilities EHIMEHAaE (10,868)
Total liabilities wEE (873,820)
Capital and reserves attributable AABIEERFEA
to the Company’s equity holders BB AR K (654,481)
Minority interests LHBRRE R (5,531)
Total equity and liabilities HERREE (1,533,832)
Year ended 31 March 2008 HEZTZTN\F=A
=+—HILEFE
Capital expenditure AARMERRE (5,544) (80) — — (5,624)
Depreciation e (1,435) (128) (5,012) (1) (6,576)
Amortisation g — (600) (936) — (1,536)
Fair value gain/(loss) on RN BT,
investment properties, net (E518) - F58
— in Hong Kong — &8 — — 7,529 = 7,529
— outside Hong Kong — BB AN — — (4,306) — (4,306)
Write back of impairment loss on ENtHHEEER
prepaid premium for land lease B 1B &5 18 B B — — 3,010 — 3,010
Impairment loss on a property EBEBZME
in Hong Kong BEEE — — (4,352) — (4,352)
Impairment loss on stocks of ERBEEIMNZ W
properties in Guangzhou, PRC GEREESR — — (2,642) — (2,642)
Write back of impairment loss EEBCEMWE
on stocks of car park FERERIE
properties in Hong Kong ] 4 — — 1,733 — 1,733
MELESEARDR  F32008
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Secondary reporting format: geographical

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

4,

MBI RRE - HEIRE

segments
Capital
Revenue Total assets expenditure
W = BmEE EARMR X
1/4/2008 to 31 December 1/4/2008 to
31/12/2008 2008 31/12/2008
—EENF —EENE
A—RBZE A—RZE
—EENF —EENE —EENE
+=—A=+-BH +ZHA=+—-B +ZHA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Hong Kong B 830,340 1,308,948 (275,274)
Macau R P 895,733 96,492 (42)
PRC 2] 71,550 228,844 (760)
Other H 39,117 10,757 —_
1,836,740 1,645,041 (276,076)
Associated companies Bk 5% 3,003
Jointly controlled entities TR A 89,606
Deferred income tax assets BEFREHEE 340
Unallocated assets ADEREE 28,236
Total assets REE 1,766,226
Capital
Revenue Total assets expenditure
Wz mEE BEARMRAZ
1/4/2007 to 31 March 1/4/2007 to
31/3/2008 2008 31/3/2008
—ETLF —TTLF
mMA—RZE mA—BZE
—EENF —EENF ZEENF
—A=+—H —A=+—H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Hong Kong BB 1,093,941 981,733 (5,376)
Macau B P 1,059,312 182,558 (244)
PRC Fh 309,420 246,572 (4)
Other Hi 32,054 7,818 —
2,494,727 1,418,681 (5,624)
Associated companies Bk 5% 1,110
Jointly controlled entities R 2 ) E AR 49,300
Deferred income tax assets BLEMBHEE 226
Unallocated assets ADEEE 64,515
Total assets wEE 1,533,832

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

Annual Report 2008



1/4/2008 to

1/4/2007 to

31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENF —TELF
A—HBZE mA—HZ=E
S 18 —TENF
+=B=+—H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Other gains — net Hnmhd — #8E
Gain on disposal and redemption of B M EE RR A FEE AR A
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss NEBZMBEERN — 59
Fair value gain on an investment property TEBEBZREME
in Hong Kong ~FE R A 233 10,750
Net gain on disposal of property, LEME  HWERLE
plant and equipment i A FFE 735 252
Net exchange gain P& 3 W 2 ) 58 6,519 1,004
Write back of impairment loss on AN THEEER
prepaid premium for land lease B & 18 B — 3,010
Write back of impairment loss on stocks of EEBZEUWE
car park properties in Hong Kong FERERER# — 1,733
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A mlE 2,394 —
9,881 16,808
Other Hth
Plant and plant staff hire income WS EEE R
M Bl B 3B R WA 2,576 2,065
Bank interest income RATH BUA 7,364 22,134
Dividends income from financial assets at BATFEE A& A 5k
fair value through profit or loss EBREZVBEEREKA — 79
Secondment fees received from WaiRMHESERRE T
jointly controlled entities HEAZEHEEZ WA 3,570 —
Service centre charges received from R&EFOERKB
— related companies — BEBERF — 492
— ajointly controlled entity — —HRAEHEE 540 676
— third parties —E8=F 152 354
Building management fee income from laPEEMNZMEZ
a property in Guangzhou, PRC EBRERKA 549 1,225
Miscellaneous H A, 1,520 4,504
16,271 31,529
26,152 48,337
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENEF —ETLF
A—HBZE MA—BZ
—EENF —ZEENF
+=B=+—8H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETR BT T
Cost of construction EiE A 1,449,329 2,246,322
Cost of property management and MEEE RS IERE
facility management services Z KA 135,052 —
Cost of stock of properties sold MEFEHE 2 KA
— land cost — THIEK A 546 1,355
— bank interest — RITHE 941 1,358
— other construction costs — HMhEERA 13,742 24,494
Depreciation e
— building on medium term leasehold land — RHIEY L EF 3,936 4,944
— owned property, plant and equipment — EBEEME  MRRZE 4,789 1,632
Amortisation of prepaid premium for land lease YA+ TS B PR g 1,127 936
Amortisation of intangible assets W EE#HE 5,114 600
Impairment loss on a property in Hong Kong EEBEZVEREEIE — 4,352
Fair value loss on investment properties REWELATEERE
— in Hong Kong — &B 80 3,221
— outside Hong Kong — BB — 4,306
Auditor’s remuneration 1% AN B & 2,227 1,925
Legal and professional fees FEREREEER 5,082 3,286
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings T RBFzEEHNES 5,376 6,040
Outgoings in respect of THMEZEBRX
— investment properties in Hong Kong — EBEBZREME 4,631 6,271
— owned property in Hong Kong — EBAABZBEME 3,235 3,114
Staff costs (note 17) B TR A (B 5E17) 90,702 81,872
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets B E B EERE
BB 237 2,227
Net provision for impairment of receivables JE W2 AR BRI B B B F R 2,204 7,271
Write off of receivables JE L2 R KM 8H 26 —
Fair value loss on foreign currency forward contracts INEERBIE N A TFEERE 3,142 —
Loss on disposal of a jointly controlled entity HE—HRAEFEEZEE 363 —
Others H 19,605 13,041
Total cost of sales, general and administrative, HEKAR ~ ITH R
and other operating expenses g E M aE 1,751,486 2,418,567

Other charges for the period are related to the impairment of goodwill
of HK$73,865,000 arising from the acquisition of Synergis during the
period and an impairment provision of HK$10,975,000 made for an
unsold property stock in the PRC. Loss for last year was related to a

trading stock in the PRC.
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1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENF e
A—RZE MA—BZ
—EENE —ET)NF
+=—HA=+-—H =A=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable BARAFAEBHEEZ
within five years and overdraft HITERLEZHE 1,815 770
Others Hib — 916
1,815 1,686
The remuneration of the directors for the nine months ended 31 BEEEFRBE_ZENFT_A=+—HIA
December 2008 is set out below: BAMMSIT
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and benefits to retirement Share-based
Fees in kind Bonus scheme compensation Total
E2 0 I 32/ EARER PN
EEHe REYPRE AL STEIfR ERcwE wmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of directors EEpA BETT BT BET BETT BT BET
David CHU Shu-ho EN e 209 - — — — 209
WONG Ying-wai THRE 194 1,628 228 4 2,651 4,705
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho 2R (D
(note i) 151 900 — 3 781 1,835
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin KR 150 — — — 766 916
CHAN Ka-kui (note i) B R B (P REii) 186 4,227 1,731 133 4,584 10,861
Barry John BUTTIFANT Barry John BUTTIFANT
(note iii) (P i) 189 — — — 1,267 1,456
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung PN 150 — — — 766 916
Peter LAU Kwok-kuen 2 [ 1 150 — — — 766 916
Abraham SHEK Lai-him VaRi -t 150 — — — 766 916
1,529 6,755 1,959 140 12,347 22,730
Notes: AT
i) Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho was re-designated from an independent (i) REREER_TTNF+A—AREBILF
non-executive director to an executive director with effect from 1 October HOTESFHEIRBTES U SIRZZZTAN
2008 and further appointed as the managing director of the Company F—ATRBREZAERARRERTRERE -
with effect from 5 January 2009.
(ii) Mr. CHAN Ka-kui retired from the position of managing director and was (ii) RRBEER_ZSTNF-AAEBRRIEES
re-designated from an executive director to a non-executive director with BRI IBHRATESAHTRENTES -
effect from 5 January 2009.
(iii) Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT was re-designated from an executive director to (iii) Barry John BUTTIFANTA AR —ZEZTAF = A+
a non-executive director with effect from 19 March 2009. NBRAVITEFTHERIENTESE -
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FEMBHRRMT

The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31 March 2008 is

set out below:

BREERBE_ZZTN\F=A=+—BILFE
BB mT

Salaries,
allowances and Contributions to Share-based
Fees  benefits in kind Bonus  retirement scheme  compensation Total
B =3¢l BRER AR5 7
EEHWE REDW &= TE4r B R W2rE wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of directors EEME BETT BEFT BETT BT BETT BETT
David CHU Shu-ho KR (R-ZZTLHF
(appointed on 19 December 2007)  +— A +71 HEZT) 57 — — — — 57
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin RER(KRZZTTLF
(appointed on 19 December 2007) + = A+ L EEZ(T) 57 — — — — 57
WONG Ying-wai THRE(RZ-TTLF
(appointed on 19 December 2007) + = A+ /L BEZT) 57 — — — — 57
YEH V-nee H@pzx (R-_TTLF
(resigned on 28 December 2007) +- A=+t N \BE&E) 148 626 — 20 — 794
Barry John BUTTIFANT Barry John BUTTIFANT
(resigned as an Alternate (R=—ZZ+&+=A
Director to YEH V-nee on ZtN\RETEEEL
28 December 2007 and EREZRN-_ZTN\F
appointed on 22 February 2008) —A-t+-HBEZT) 21 — — — — 21
CHAN Ka-kui ] 200 3,343 5,127 162 5,418 14,250
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung iz es 200 100 — — — 300
Peter LAU Kwok-kuen 2B f 200 100 — — — 300
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho ZEFH(N-_ZEN\EFE
(appointed on 23 January 2008) —A-t+=BEZT) 38 — — — _ 38
Abraham SHEK Lai-him AER(RZTENEF
(appointed on 23 January 2008) —B-+=HEZT) 38 — — — — 38
Tobias Josef BROWN Tobias Josef BROWN
(resigned on 23 January 2008) (R=—ZEZENF
—AZ+=ZH&T) 162 100 — — — 262
Herbert HUI Ho-ming HEA(R-ZBENE
(resigned on 23 January 2008) —BZ+=8#&1F) 162 100 — — — 262
KWONG Ki-chi BEE(R-ZTLEF
(retired on 17 August 2007) NA+EBERL) 75 — — — — 75
1,415 4,369 5,127 182 5418 16,511
No allotment of shares was made to directors of the Company under BTN NFMUWA—HZE )\fF‘f' — A=

the two executive share option schemes of the Company adopted on 23
August 2002 and 22 May 2008 respectively during the period from 1
April 2008 to 31 December 2008 (2007/08: allotment of 6,768,000

shares).

No benefit (2007/08: Nil) arose on shares issued and allotted to directors
of the Company under the employee share subscription scheme of the
Company adopted on 23 August 2002 as no such share allotment was
made for the period from 1 April 2008 to 31 December 2008.

None of the directors have waived their rights to receive emoluments

for the period.

Annual Report 2008
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There were two directors (2007/08: one) whose emoluments were AEBLUGEaTWEETEEMUES(ZE
among the five highest in the Group and included in the analysis set out Tt/ ENFEE—N) EMESERBERKFEN
in note 11. A e

HR =M (ZZZL / ZENFRUM) &= HH
At EBUYFARFEZEERAKED
Us=HMERS  HBSFAWT

Details of the emoluments paid to the other three (2007/08: four)
individuals, who are not directors but whose emoluments were among
the five highest in the Group are as follows:

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EEN\F —ETLF
A—RZE MA—HB=Z
S Lt —EENE
+=ZHA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other allowances N % Ho b BE 5,372 9,176
Bonuses 4T 1,460 336
Contributions to retirement scheme RAIREFIGT SR 97 340
Share-based compensation ARty B ER 2 /IE 2,880 1,141
9,809 10,993
Number of
individuals in each band
EE A"

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENF —ETLHF
A—HBZE MA—RB=
—EENF —EENEF
Emolument bands [ R | +=—BA=+—8 =A=+—H
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 75 ¥ 2,500,001 70— # 3,000,000 7T 2 3
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 78 1 3,000,001 7T -4 ¥ 3,500,000 7T — 1
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 75 ¥ 3,500,001 70— # 4,000,000 7T — —
HK$4,000,001-HK$4,500,000 75 54,000,001 7578 # 4,500,000 7T — —
HK$4,500,001-HK$5,000,000 75 #5 4,500,001 7T -8 # 5,000,000 7T 1 —
3 4

MEZRES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (31
March 2008: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the period/
year after application of available tax losses brought forward. Taxation
on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the period/year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated

income statement represents:

RITHEHE -

FreB—RAME, FE M ERTEFN
BEFRAZHBRERTED 2 AR (=
ZENF=ZA=1+—"RAREDZ T LHL)RH
BRENSHER AKBZ2EMENHBZIE
AEE FEGFTERTEMNAELLLEBER

EmeaBaRAk/ GIA)ZREHRAT

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENF ZETLF
A—BZE mA—H=E
—EENE ZET)NF
+=A=+-—8 =A=+-~8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Hong Kong profits tax BEAEFER
— provision for the period/year —ARHRM S FERE 4,634 2,637

Overseas tax N IR

— provision for the period/year —RNHM S FERE 10,857 11,232
Over provision in prior years AFEBREREE (776) (837)
Deferred income tax (note 31) BIEFTIFH (M EE31) (535) 1,914
Income tax expense Fris®if X 14,180 14,946

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home

country of the Company as follows:

AEBBBAGHAIGEMN 2 MBHEBRERAR
ARARTBERZBEMAE 2 ERMNE 2 E5E
N

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—ETNF ZETLF
A—BZE mA—H=
—EENF —EENF
+=ZA=+—8 —A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T Vok: e
Profit before income tax (excluding share of results BT 15 8 B oa A (7 8 4E fE 1R
of jointly controlled entities H R 12 ) A2
and associated companies) KB SREE) 24,751 120,169
Calculated at a taxation rate BB E165% (ZFTT)\F
of 16.5% (31 March 2008: 17.5%) ZA=+—H:175%)
FAEZHE 4,084 21,030
Effect of different taxation rates in other countries HMBERTRB R 28 (4,512) (8,734)
Over provision in prior years AFEEHBERE (776) (837)
Income not subject to taxation EmARTIA (3,999) (7,914)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes AAMMzAX 18,539 7,041
Re-measurement of deferred tax BN ERERIE
— change in Hong Kong tax rate — BEMNEES) 12 —
Temporary differences not recognised ABEHMAZERZR (696) (559)
Tax losses not recognised REBRZFAE 2,435 7,020
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses FRRAAEBRAZHME (907) (2,101)
Income tax expense e 14,180 14,946
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The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the nine
months ended 31 December 2008 is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of HK$31,866,000 (2007/08:
HK$40,544,000).

The dividends paid during the nine months ended 31 December 2008
were HK$26,847,000 (2007/08: HK$101,033,000).

Bz N \F+_A=+—HIENABAAKE
B ARRAMBEREZARAEZ T A AR
165 % N &8 #31,866,000 L (— 2T+ E)N\F
7575 40,544,000 7T ) ©

BE_ZZ)\F+-_A=+—BIthERELE
ER PR B A E 26,847,000 (Z 22+ /E
J\4F A&7 #101,033,0007T) °

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENF —ETLHF
A—HBZE MA—BZE
—EENE —EENF
+=ZA=+-—A8 Z—A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Interim dividend declared in respect of the HE-_ZZENF+_A=+—HI1t
nine months ended 31 December 2008 : NEAZEER+ BHKREFR
HK2.0 cents (year ended 31 March 2008: TakBsEg220l (222N
paid HK5.5 cents) per ordinary share FZA=T—HLFE: 2k
7 ¥ 5.510) 13,423 36,884
Proposed final dividend in respect of the Bz \F+-_A=+—H1
nine months ended 31 December 2008: NEAZEBERBREGRE B
HK2.0 cents (year ended 31 March 2008: BE2UL(BE=Z2TNF=A
HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share =+ —BIEFE : BEL00) 13,423 26,824
Additional prior year dividends FFAZCAMNEBEREB B
arising from the increase in number of 38 hn T FEHNK B 2 IR B
ordinary shares in issue on the record date 23 30
26,869 63,738

At the board meeting held on 1 April 2009, the board of directors of
the Company has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per ordinary share for the nine months ended 31 December
2008. The proposed final dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in
the financial statements until it has been approved by the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, but will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31
December 2009.

RZZTZNFOA-RAETZEZTEEH
ARAEFGEEARBE _TTN\F+ A=
T-RALENEASERERMEESREBK
FE 2,010 o ik B R B AR B30 R A AR B 7 %
NRBAENKRE  BEEZRERARQAE A
BITZBERBFRGLERRILERTEAR
HERRABE_—_TTEAFT _A=+—HIt
FRZREBRNDIK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$6,742,000
(2007/08: HK$123,922,000) and the weighted average of 670,962,000
shares (2007/08: weighted average of 650,115,000 shares) in issue
during the nine months ended 31 December 2008.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$6,742,000
(2007/08: HK$123,922,000) and the weighted average of 670,962,000
shares (2007/08: weighted average of 663,597,000 shares in issue after
adjusting for the potential dilutive effect in respect of outstanding share
options during the year) in issue during the nine months ended 31
December 2008. Diluted earnings per share for the period ended 31
December 2008 is same as basic earnings per share for the period
ended 31 December 2008 because there was no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

BRERBMNDIEARNBERFE ARG
FEHEGT74200 T (ZEE L/ TNFAEBE
123,922,000 7)) kB E T N\F+ A=
+—BHUENEARLEEE BT ZMEFHBRE
670,962,000 (—ZZ+ /T )\ &E AN FHK
#(650,115,000% ) 57+ & -

BREFTRMNDEARBEZFE ARG G
& 86,742,000t ( — T2+ /T N\FABE
123,922,000 ) Kk B E_ZTZENF+ A =
+—BLENBEREEEHTZMEFAHREY
670,962,000/ (—Z T T+ T NEFHKRITERK
BB ER BT EELABRE2ERBEHITM
77 5 I8 #663,597,000% ) 5t & - HE—_ZZ N
F+_A=Z+tHLHRHzEREERFEE
GEANZFZER - LI RRZEMTELE
BYEZEEDHTEER -

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to

31/12/2008 31/3/2008

—EENF —ETLF

A—HZ MA—HB=Z

—EENE —ET)NF

+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Wages, salaries and allowances T4 - ¥ &2k

(including directors’ emoluments) (BEREEEHS) 623,538 600,804
Write back of annual leave provision FRB R (3,018) (1,264)
Termination benefits BIERBER 39,342 3,368
Long service payment RERB2EBA 2,932 —
Contributions to retirement scheme RAKAE AT B4 5 20,299 18,065
Share-based compensation AR D B ERE 2 /iE 21,604 11,438
704,697 632,411
Charged to cost of sales B X EHERAF (613,995) (550,539)
90,702 81,872
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Group %@

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
Property improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HE B BE
/S MELE BHRE RERZE AE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT BETT AT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2007 RZZZ+EMNA—A
Cost B AR 122,143 21,435 42,547 24,710 2,398 213,233
Accumulated depreciation  EREFE R
and impairment (62,822) (20,356) (41,767) (22,993) (2,284) (150,222)
Net book value BHEFE 59,321 1,079 780 1,717 114 63,011
Year ended BHEZZTN\E
31 March 2008 ZA=t-BLFE
Opening net book value EYEmEE 59,321 1,079 780 1,717 114 63,011
Additions AE — 3,163 695 989 777 5,624
Depreciation e (4,944) (314) (440) (752) (126) (6,576)
Impairment A (4,352) — — — — (4,352)
Disposals HE — — (10 (189) (662) (861)
Closing net book value FREMFE 50,025 3,928 1,025 1,765 103 56,846
At 31 March 2008 BT\ F=A=1—H
Cost DN 122,143 24,598 41,870 24,918 1,293 214,822
Accumulated depreciation  ZFEHE RHIE
and impairment (72,118) (20,670) (40,845) (23,153) (1,190) (157,976)
Net book value BREFE 50,025 3,928 1,025 1,765 103 56,846
Period ended BZ-EZN\f
31 December 2008 +ZA=t—-HLHE
Opening net book value HEmFE 50,025 3,928 1,025 1,765 103 56,846
Additions NE - 8,111 7,518 5,086 937 21,652
Transfer of investment RIFEEE ANE
property to property 16,675 — — — — 16,675
Acquisition of a subsidiary U —IHE AT
(note 43) (PfiFx43) - 12 - 9,888 488 10,388
Depreciation nE (3,936) (2,035) (738) (1,872) (144) (8,725)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR
(note 42b) (FizE42b) - — - (231) (89) (320)
Disposals HeE — — (55) (64) (100) (219)
Exchange difference EXEE — — - 58 16 74
Reclassification i — (12) — 12 — —
Closing net book value BREmFE 62,764 10,004 7,750 14,642 1,21 96,371
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE+ZA=1+-H
Cost A 138,818 32,709 44,158 39,214 1,533 256,432
Accumulated depreciation  ZREHERHME
and impairment (76,054) (22,705) (36,408) (24,572) (322) (160,061)
Net book value REFE 62,764 10,004 7,750 14,642 121 96,371
MEEERERRA %7 2008




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRME

. e o an ,
18. Property, plant and equipment «ontinues 18. 1% - HBRRE =
Company A2 7
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
e B BE
MEEE EERRE RE “m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BET T BETT BET T
At 1 April 2007 R-ZE+EMA—A
Cost B A 7,275 9,015 1,172 17,462
Accumulated depreciation 2B E (6,646) (8,536) (1,171) (16,353)
Net book value REFE 629 479 1 1,109
Year ended HE-_ZZ)N\F
31 March 2008 ZA=+—HILEFE
Opening net book value FEEEEE 629 479 1 1,109
Additions NE 17 696 757 1,470
Depreciation neE (168) (314) (96) (578)
Disposals & — 21 (662) (683)
Closing net book value FREEZE 478 840 - 1,318
At 31 March 2008 R-EEN\FZA=1-H
Cost XA 7,292 9,598 47 16,937
Accumulated depreciation Z2RnE (6,814) (8,758) (47) (15,619)
Net book value REFE 478 840 — 1,318
Period ended HZ-_ZIN\F
31 December 2008 tTZA=+-BLHEH
Opening net book value HORERE 478 840 - 1,318
Additions nNE 7,305 1,410 110 8,825
Depreciation nE (822) (286) (35) (1,143)
Closing net book value HAREEFE 6,961 1,964 75 9,000
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEENE+=-A=1+-H
Cost AR 14,597 10,928 147 25,672
Accumulated depreciation ZRITE (7,636) (8,964) (72) (16,672)
Net book value REFE 6,961 1,964 75 9,000
19. Investment properties 19. REY =
Group &
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENFE —ZETNF
+=ZHA=+—8H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At the beginning of the period/year REW), E ) 124,500 121,277
Additions H#n 1,767 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 43) U B — B 8 & B (B 5E43) 2,080 —
Transfer of investment property to property, MREMEBAYE -
plant and equipment and prepaid premium for S N R MTER L
land lease (note a) HEEAR (HMita) (59,500) —
Fair value gain NFEE T 233 10,750
Fair value loss AFEEE (80) (7,527)
At the end of the period/year REIR EXR 69,000 124,500
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The Group’s interests in investment properties are analysed as follows:

BREMERRONOT

Group %
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENF —ETNF
+=A=+-—8 =ZA=+-~8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETR BT T
In Hong Kong, held on leases of EEE  HHE2HBEH
below 10 years (note b) D104 (i sEb) 67,000 65,000
In Hong Kong, held on leases of between 10 years EHE HHE2HEE
and 50 years (note b) NF10FE504F (HisEb) 2,000 59,500
69,000 124,500
Notes: BT -

Following the acquisition of Synergis, the property leased to Synergis by
the Group was reclassified from investment property to property, plant and

equipment and prepaid premium for land lease respectively.

The properties were revalued on the basis of its open market value by an
independent professional firm of surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited.

WEHEEHRR AKESETHEEE LY
XMEEMESHOBRADE KERKIFHER

ANTHEEERET -

MERBLEEXHNSMITRDBEAMITAERD

AAERHAMEER -

Group £
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENF ZETNF
+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At the beginning of the period/year RER¥) 4] 39,737 37,663
Transfer of investment property to prepaid premium RIEEMESE A
for land lease ENTHEEER 42,825 —
Amortisation - Eis (1,127) (936)
Write back of impairment pERIENEEE —_ 3,010
At the end of the period/year NEIR ER 81,435 39,737

The Group’s interest in prepaid premium for land lease is analysed as

AEBEBRNLMEEERERINET :

follows:
Group £
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EEBNEF —EE)N\F
+=A=+-8H —A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
In Hong Kong, held on lease of below 50 years ERE FE2HEES
LRAE+F 81,435 39,737

e s
MEZRES

BHERAT  F2008
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Notes to the Consolidated
FEMBHRRMT

Financial Statements

Group 58
Other
trademarks and Total
Secured Client trade names
Trademark contracts  relationships (note b)
(note a) (note a) (note a Hitig & @t
2 BEEH EFBE Sub-total RERER
(MiEta) (MiEta) (MiEta) Nt (H&Eb)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Year ended 31 March 2008  EHZ_TZ)\F
ZA=ZTRLFE
Opening net book value FOEEFE — — — — 1,950 1,950
Amortisation B — — — — (600) (600)
Closing net book value FRREEFE — — — - 1,350 1,350
At 31 March 2008 R-22)\F-A=T—H
Cost B — — — — 3,000 3,000
Accumulated amortisation ESf 5 — — — — (1,650) (1,650)
Net book value REFE — — — — 1,350 1,350
Period ended Bz_%2)\5
31 December 2008 TZA=+-BLEHH
Opening net book value BOEEFE — — — — 1,350 1,350
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ YeEE — KB A
(note 43) (P3E43) 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 — 160,039
Amortisation iz — (2,032) (2,632) (4,664) (450) (5,114)
Closing net book value HAE@FE 58,469 28,465 68,441 155,375 900 156,275
At 31 December 2008 R_BBNE
TZRA=+-
Cost 7K 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 3,000 163,039
Accumulated amortisation ES: 4§ — (2,032) (2,632) (4,664) (2,100) (6,764)
Net book value FEFE 58,469 28,465 68,441 155,375 900 156,275
Notes: ML
(a) Intangible assets arising from acquisition of Synergis included trademark, @ WEHEEBEMEACZEREE  REBAE.
secured contracts and client relationships totalling HK$160,039,000. The MEEHREFBE & 5% 160,039,000
trademark has an indefinite useful life as there is no foreseeable limit to Lo EMIEWRBRTEAIERAFE  LIARE
the period over which the trademark is expected to generate economic CHAEEMEENKERIRLZAAERKN
benefits to the Group. HABR
The estimated useful lives of secured contracts and client relationships of 5 RNBEHAREPBE 2B AI{FERFBHRIRIE
and 9 years respectively are based on contractual life of existing contracts BRENARELHEHESRFTIARFRNAF -
and historical data.
(b) The use of trademarks and trade names is under the Trade Mark Licence (b) FREERTERZE T RAERAREHLZ
Deed for the purpose of continuity of the brand name — “Hsin Chong Bl RATHEEEZE_ZT—ZSFLAZAHF
Aster” in the electrical and mechanical industry in Hong Kong, Macau and THARESE BRFIRAPBREZBRETRE
the Mainland China for a fixed period of 5 years up to July 2010. NFEFERAIERMHEI2REER -
The amortisation for the period is included in other operating expenses REMEH T ARG BERR 2 EMEEH
in the consolidated income statement. XHET

Group
£
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 April 2008 RZZETNF —A -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 43) WE—MBAR ﬁ 5£43) 139,894
Additional interests acquired in a subsidiary R — M BN Rl R 71,603
Distribution in specie of shares in a subsidiary B » IR —K B AR Z &% (118,879)
Impairment loss i E B8 (73,865)
At 31 December 2008 w® NE+ZA=+—H 18,753

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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Goodwill is allocated to the “Property management and facility HERIEERMEEERREEEBRE DA

management services” segment, a separate cash-generating unit BACZAEERSELEN BRMEEEM
("CGU") identified according to operating segment. The carrying EEEZFTK TEBEAXBEZIRERR] Bt
amount of the segment has been reduced to its recoverable amount ZEBOIREED & B HERE B EB R
through recognition of an impairment loss against goodwill, following a LPEHEATKECE WEEBEBEREERAE
significant decrease in market capitalisation of Synergis, which mRPEMS AT -

constituted an “impairment indicator” to the goodwill. This loss has
been included in ‘other charges’ in the consolidated income statement.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use iﬁ/i:i VSRR @kf% BIREEREETE -
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based AETARKBHEERESRUALE-FT
on financial budgets approved by Synergis’ board of directors covering a it % —A-HEZZ - F+ — A= + —H JJ:
three-year period from 1/1/2009 to 31/12/2011. Cash flows beyond the ZZFHMBBREZBARE N R Al o HBi8
three-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate % = F 8 E’E fﬁ? it B PR A 2A T i 2 1% Eni' 17 =
stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average —?— fE Tﬁ B oZ f ﬁ KB IB %ﬁl TELBEME
growth rate for the property management and facility management BoMEEBERIBERRBEHB  RBFES
services business in which the CGU operates. BRE-
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows: TREBHEZEFZRENOT
Property
management
and facility
management
services
NEEER
R EE R
Gross margin S 17.5%
Growth rate B 0%
Weighted average discount rate InAE S RE IR X 17.9%
The budgeted gross margin was based on past performance and EEEMNEDBREATRALREMSEENTE
expectations for the market development. The weighted average REE - IERANIMETORRBERRBATL X
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the WkBYEEBERZHEEERE > BEOETR
property management and facility management services segment. % o
Company XA 7
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
ZEENF —EE)N\F
+=HA=+—8 —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
B¥T T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMIRA KA 210,468 210,468
Less: impairment in value W ORE (148,799) (144,850)
61,669 65,618
Loans to a subsidiary BERT—WEBAR 50,000 50,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG R 673,770 549,407
Less: provision o B AR (183,853) (106,718)
489,917 442,689
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE BT BB R Bl 5K IAB (253,323) (81,147)
MEZEEBEEBRAT #2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

Loans to a subsidiary as at 31 December 2008 are unsecured, interest
bearing at 3 months of HIBOR plus 1% per annum and repayable within
one year. The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were
2.60% per annum for a loan of HK$20,000,000 (31 March 2008:
3.32%) and 1.85% per annum for a loan of HK$30,000,000 (31 March

2008: 2.82%).

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an amount due from
a subsidiary of HK$55,323,000 (31 March 2008: HK$65,243,000) which
bears interest at Hong Kong prime rate less 1.5% (31 March 2008:
Hong Kong prime rate less 2.5%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate

their fair value.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44.
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Group &

31 December 31 March

2008 2008

—EENF —ZETNE

+=A=+-8 =A=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Share of net assets BIEEEFE 2,521 598

Loans to associated companies BT 27 27

Amount due from an associated company JEUS —B 55 A 455 485

3,003 1,110

Net balances due from associated companies of HK$482,000 (31 March FE S Bt 5% 45 82 F FE B % 482,000 L (ZE T NF

2008: HK$512,000) are unsecured, non interest bearing and not =A=+—HABE512,00070) BEER - &

repayable within one year. The carrying amounts approximate their fair SREFT—FRNER FREEREQFEMR -

values.

During the period, dividend received from an associated company RERAE Yk IR B A B 36,000 (Z ST+

amounted to HK$36,000 (2007/08: HK$7,862,000). S ENFE BB M 7,862,000 JL) °

AEEREBEZEE AEREERALEE

The Group's share of assets and liabilities and results of associated

124

companies are summarised below: R
Group £
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENE —ET)N\F
+=—A=+—H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE¥T T BT T
Assets BE 4,051 1,305
Liabilities BE (1,530) (707)
Net assets BEFE 2,521 598

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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24. Associated companies (ontinued) 24. BESR (a0

Group %
1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENF ZETEF
HmA—BZE mA—H=
—EENF ZET)N\F
+=A=+-8 =A=+-~8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Revenue g 25 366 361
Profit before income tax T 15 B B & F 615 2,568
Income tax expense FTig B < (143) (1
Profit for the period/year AEREF s R 472 2,557
Details of principal associated companies are set out in note 44. REBZ FEBFEERFIRM T4 -
. . S—
25. Jointly controlled entities 2. HEEHER
Group £
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—zEnf —TT)E
+=ZB=+-8 =A=+—8
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYETR BT
Share of net liabilities EiEaBEFE (73,277) (68,024)
Net amounts due from jointly controlled entities FE UG H R I REF R 162,883 117,324
89,606 49,300
The Group’s share of assets and liabilities and results of jointly controlled AEBEGEREFHERBZ2EE  ABERER
entities are summarised below: MORmENT
Group £
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
ZEENF —ZEENF
+=A=+-8 =A=+-~8
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ET T BT
Current assets mENE E 202,155 129,372
Non-current liabilities FEmEBEE (171,181) (124,376)
Current liabilities nBBE (104,251) (73,020)
Net liabilities BEFE (73,277) (68,024)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R RRMEE
Group £
1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENF —ETLF
A—R=Z MA—HZE
—EENF —ETNF
+=ZA=+-—H =RA=+—8H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Income A 212,331 275,715
Expenses =3 (217,556) (262,456)
(Loss)/profit for the period/year NHW (B8) FEHF (5,225) 13,259
Net amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, non- FERHERESEEFEDEER 2ERKES
interest bearing and not repayable within one year. —FRNEE-
During the period, no dividend was received from jointly controlled RERERRERZEHEEBZRE(ZEZ2 1/
entities (2007/08: Nil). BNFE ) o
Details of the Group’s interests in the jointly controlled entities are as AEBEREAPAEGERZESFBNOT
follows:
Place of incorporation Effective percentage of
Name and operation Principal activity interest held Proportion of voting power
£8 AR EEHE TEEH BEEREZZAAL EREEZADM
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2008 2008 2008 2008
ZEENE ZZENF ZEENE —Z2EN\F
t=8 =5 +=8 =5
=+-H =f+-H =t+-H =t+-H
Hsin Chong — Yau Lee Joint Venture (note)  Unincorporated joint venture Building construction 50% 50% 50% 50%
FE—EFHALLE (M) operating in Hong Kong BTER
EREREZFBEEz AERE
Hsin Chong Construction Company Unincorporated joint venture Construction 60% 60% 50% 50%
Limited & Taylor Woodrow operating in Hong Kong management
International Limited Joint Venture EERLZ B EE A RE REEE
for Kowloon Station (note)
(B )
Leighton — Hsin Chong Joint Venture (note)  Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 50% 50% 50% 50%
BE—HEAELE(ME) operating in Hong Kong TAIR
EERRE FREEAC R E Y
Maeda — Hitachi — Yokogawa — Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 20% 20% 25% 25%
Hsin Chong Joint Venture (note) operating in Hong Kong TAIR
AE—RU—®A—HMEHE (MiF) EFBLEzEREEC GERE
MBH Joint Venture (note) Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 20% 20% 33.33% 33.33%
MBHA & % (FifaE) operating in Hong Kong TARIE
EERLRE EREE G E Y
Note: B 5%
Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreements, the profit sharing for each BIEAZEENZIGEHR  AAEHEREERF 2O
year of the jointly controlled entities shall be distributed to the joint venturers in KB EEEREG 2 Bm R OB

proportion to their respective interests.
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Held-to-maturity financial assets represent bonds that are denominated
in United States dollar (“US$") and have a maturity of between 3
months to 1.3 years (31 March 2008: 1 month to 2 years) with nominal
amounts of HK$5,890,000, equivalent to US$760,000 (31 March 2008:
HK$11,470,000, equivalent to US$1,480,000) maturing more than one
year and HK$8,060,000, equivalent to US$1,040,000 (31 March 2008:
HK$13,330,000, equivalent to US$1,720,000) maturing within one year.

The fair value of held-to-maturity financial assets is based on quoted
market bid prices of HK$14,214,000 (31 March 2008: HK$25,332,000).

There is no provision for impairment of held-to-maturity financial assets
as at 31 December 2008 (31 March 2008: Nil).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying amount of held-to-maturity financial assets and coupon interest
receivable.

The Group has not reclassified any financial asset measured at amortised
cost out of the held-to-maturity financial assets during the period
(2007/08: Nil).

During the period there were no gains or losses realised on the disposal
of held-to-maturity financial assets (2007/08: Nil).

BEIHUBEERRAEZELAEMNZE
5 TRZEAZE—FTZNEAREH(==
ZNF=ZA=+—HAE—BAZMTFAN) ' &
EEHERE BB — F ®E A% 5,890,000 5T
ZLEFEL760000( CETNE=ZA=+—HA
7 #11,470,000 7T © % fE 3% 701,480,000) & R
— F N F B & A8 #8,060,000 7T 0 FE X
701,040,000 = EZENF=A=+—HABK
13,330,000 T * % {E3%7C1,720,000) °

BEMSMmEREFE  BEINHZUBHE
ERATEAB14214007T (ZEZENEF=A=
+—H A8 %25,332,0007T) °

RZBZENF+ A=+ —HREINHZHH
EEVYEREREBE(ZZEZNF=ZA=1+—8H:
&) -

RAFRA  AEBEARZEREERRBEF
ERHZYBEERZRELAEZERAE -

PRHI A & B I S IR SR AN G2 2 B
BEAERKZIHR2MBEETPENHE(ZF
ZEFTBNFE) -

RPATERHEREINNZBBEEME S
ERERE(ZZZLFE /TNF &) o

Group %
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENF —ETN\F
+=A=+-~8 =A=t+—~
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
At the beginning of the period/year RE, F ) 3,502 5,729
Impairment loss A E B (237) (2,227)
At the end of the period/year REIR S F R 3,265 3,502

The impairment loss charged for the period is included in other

operating expenses in the consolidated income statement.

AHENRESBRREFAEGABRER ZHEM
BERXEAT -

MERESEERA AT F# 2008
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FEMBmRMET
27. Available-for-sale financial assets 27. i HEZUBEE »
(continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets include the following: AHEEZHBEEERBENTSIE
Group %
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENF ZETNF
+=ZBA=+—8H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
Equity securities B’ A 3% 5
Unlisted, at fair value LT BAFE 3,265 3,502
The fair value of unlisted securities are based on cashflows discounted kEMEFH A BERIRER ﬁ% & RHEMH
using a rate based on the market interest rate and the risk premium FZURIFETEFBRNEAREE(ZTTN
specific to the unlisted securities (period ended 31 December 2008: FTZA=1+—HILHHAE:S 7% e )\$
5.7%; year ended 31 March 2008: 6.2%). ZA=+—HILFE :62%)BHFTE -
28. Stocks and contracting work-in-progress 28. FEREEZEH T E
Group £
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EEN\F —ET)NF
+=ZBA=+—H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Gross amounts due from customers for contract work EWEPZ TIERBEER
(note) (P #E) 118,750 144,336
Raw materials, at cost B KA 1,256 1,811
Stocks of car park properties, at cost BUMEFE @ LA T s6235 | 60,184
Less: impairment in value B ORE (28,452) (30,853)
Stocks of car park properties, at net realisable value BAUMETE  RAER
FE 27,783 29,331
Stocks of commercial properties, at cost HEHWEFSE  BEKK T 49,268 """""-21-8_,@_1'
Less: impairment in value Ao ORE (20,488) (9,513)
Stocks of commercial properties, at net realisable value HEYEFE  KRA#EIR
FE 28,780 38,678
Stocks of residential properties, at cost and FEMEFTE  BREAR
net realisable value T84 5 F (B — 14,276
176,569 228,432
Note: =% -
Cost plus attributable profit less foreseeable losses B S D0 FE 1R & FRL AT FB R
&8 3,065,402 4,348,467
Less: progress payments received and receivable o B B TR AR K (3,017,951) (4,251,707)
Contracting work-in-progress Bl T2 47,451 96,760
Representing: Rk
Gross amounts due from customers for contract work FEREEPTIRRBETAE
included in stocks and contracting work-in-progress BWERPZIEKIBELR 118,750 144,336
Gross amounts due to customers for contract work ERERREFERET
included in payables and accruals BEENEPZ
ITEFIEESE (71,299) (47,576)
47,451 96,760

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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As at 31 December 2008, retentions held by customers for contract
work included in receivables and prepayments amounted to
HK$166,834,000 (31 March 2008: HK$152,446,000).

RZZEZNEFE+ZA=+—B BEREREAE
NERTEREEPREZIRBANRESS

=t /A7 166,834,000 7T (

H /&% ¥ 152,446,0007T ) °

— ==

NE=ZA=+—

Group @ Company &2 7]
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2008 2008 2008 2008
—BEN\E —EENEF —BENF —EENF
+=B=+-R | =ZA=+-8 | t=A=+-R | =ZA=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BET R BETT
Trade receivables B RBERR
— third parties = 162,663 190,666 — —
— related company —BRERT 1,891 — - —
— jointly controlled entity — RS TS 922 2,004 — —
— provision for impairment — BB (423) — —
Retention receivables EWRES
— third parties =1 166,793 152,219 — —
— jointly controlled entity —HREHEE 166 354 — —
— provision for impairment — R B BB (125) (127) — —
Other receivables H i 2 U AR 3K
— subsidiaries -MEBRA — — 174 59
— third parties =] 35,803 42,539 296 883
— related company —~HBERT — 48 — 48
— associated companies — B R 29 — 19 —
— jointly controlled entities — ARG E S 10,012 3,550 - —
— provision for impairment —RERE (17,092) (25,439) — —
Deposits and prepayments (note i) e REME (H5E) 19,339 2,664 3,262 2,195
Foreign currency forward contracts SN & B A 49 (BT 3Eii)
(note ii) — 35 — —
379,978 368,513 3,751 3,185
Notes: B &
(i) In the Company’s balance sheet, the balance included a deposit of (i) MRARRIZEEABRAN &4 EEKHE

HK$1,856,000 (31 March 2008: HK$1,226,000) due from a subsidiary.

(ii) Foreign currency forward contracts represent derivatives used for hedging
foreign currency risk. These contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting
and therefore were recognised as derivative financial instruments at fair

value through profit or loss.

DA 2R EB1,856,00 T (ZEENF=A=

+— R A&#E#1,226,0007T) °

(i  SNEERHMAKREREINEEEE R %5
MITETR - BEENTHERBE T
At BERAEATFEF NS AERZTED

BT A -

MEZEEEERAT

£ 77 2008
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AEBERARBREERRANSKREENT

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s receivables and

prepayments are denominated in the following currencies:

SIEHREM

Group & Company &2 7]
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2008 2008 2008 2008
—EENF ZIZTN\EF —BEN\F ZETNF
+=A=+-8B | =ZA=+-8 | t=ZA=t+-8 | =A=t+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT B¥TT AT T
Hong Kong dollar ks 308,056 233,519 3,525 2,789
Renminbi AR 55,627 42,999 - —
Macau pataca S P s 5,413 83,006 — —
Other Hib 10,882 8,989 226 396
379,978 368,513 3,751 3,185

(@) Trade and retention receivables

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

The aging analysis of trade and retention receivables at the

(a) EZ REREZEWRERM
i A

(i)

NEE

balance sheet date is as follows: ZHREBRASTWNT
Group £ @
Not yet 1t030 31t0 90 91 to 180 Over 180
due days days days days Total
—XZE =+-X At+-XE —-BNATRK
REH =+X EhAtXR —-BNATX Mt wEm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETr A%Tr A%Tr AETr B%Trx
Balance at —EENE
31 December 2008 +tZA=t+—H#&&% 233705 18,640 17,800 20,965 40,777 331,887
Balance at —EENE
31 March 2008 “—RA=+t—H#&% 203,958 92,723 5,839 4,939 37,657 345,116

As at 31 December 2008, for the receivables which are not
yet due, there is no indication that they will be non-
performing as there was no history of default of the
customers.

The Group’s credit terms for a contracting business and
property rental are negotiated with and entered into under
normal commercial terms with its trade customers.
Retention money receivables in respect of contracting
business are settled in accordance with the terms of
respective contracts. Rental income is billed in advance of
the rental period.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to

trade and retention receivables, as the Group has a large
number of customers.

Annual Report 2008

(i)

(i)

(iv)

RZZEZNE+_A=+—H &
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EETZER -

AEBEEANEBRMEREZ
EERHEREZR -REBEGERER
FPE#NLER - EEAHNZEKRF
BeRBENENZHGREE - H
BRARNEAEEHMAERE
AU -

HRAEBEEFPABRTL &
EREBEERLBEES
[ g

25
hz



(a) Trade and retention receivables (continued) (a) ,g” ZEREEEWERR @)
(v)  Depending on the credit history and financial position of REBUEFPFP 2EER ’ﬁ‘ K B 7 iR
individual customer, trade and retention receivables that RME - BSRRESERERS
are less than 180 days past due are not considered HORIBOARTHR AKLEZE - 1
impaired. As at 31 December 2008, trade and retention —EZNEFE+A=+—H EH
receivables of HK$40,777,000 (31 March 2008: AR l%ﬁ”&%m?‘%}%ﬁ%@ 777,000
HK$37,657,000) were past due over 180 days but not F(—EENFE=A=+—AABE
impaired. These relate to a number of independent 37,657,000 7T ) 4 2 11 B 2 #8180 K
customers for whom there is no recent history of default BYEELRBE HERBIR %
and there is no objective evidence that the receivables are B3B8 BB R B ﬁ‘ ok Ava
not fully collectible. P MEXBEBRETRZEER EE
FEEZHKE o
(viy  As at 31 December 2008, trade and retention receivables Vi) RZZEZENF+=-_A=+—H8"
of HK$548,000 (31 March 2008: HK$127,000) were %'J)SU%I%FEHAZE% X B 548, 00071:
impaired and provided for. The balance was aged over 180 (ZEZENF=ZA=1+—8: BBK
days. 1nmﬁﬂ%a§ﬁﬁ¢@ﬁoﬁ
BT BEEIRI180K -
(vii)  Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and iy BZRRESEBERZRERE
retention receivables are as follows: 2T :
Group £ H
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENF —EENF
+=ZA=+-—8 Z=A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
At the beginning of the period/year REE9 127 127
Provision for impairment B 548 —
Amount written off as uncollectible Bts AUk E 2z RIE (127) —
At the end of the period/year REIR EX 548 127
(b) Provision for impairment of other (b) H it FEUYW BRI < R B & &
receivables
Movements on the provision for impairment of other receivables BEMEWERZREREZESHNOT ¢
are as follows:
Group &
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—ETNF —EENF
+=A=+—H —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BB T T
At the beginning of the period/year REFY E 4] 25,439 16,681
Exchange differences PE 5 =88 287 1,659
Provision for impairment DoRIERE 1,709 7,451
Amount written off as uncollectible B 75'5 AR E 2 KB (10,290) (172)
Amounts recovered Uy 8] 3K 18 (53) (180)
At the end of the period/year RNEIR E R 17,092 25,439
As at 31 December 2008, except for an amount of HK$5,672,000 RZEZENF+TZA=+—H BEEENE
included in payable and accruals being held as security against a trade KR ERT BB IE T A %5,672,0007T 2 © 8 E
receivable of HK$5,241,000 (31 March 2008: nil), the Group does not IR — B E 5 IR 318 85,241,000 (Z 2 Z )\
hold any collateral. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting FZA=1+T—B BRI XEELEFET
date is the carrying amount of receivables less the amount of MEFRD - RAFHRA AEEBAZZ2H&KE
HK$5,241,000 secured. The carrying amounts of the receivables B [ B A FE YRR 512 BR T (E 71O 8 155,241,000
approximate their fair values. TZEERSE BRERZEEEHERTFAE

GEES

FEBEEEERAT 4152008 131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BEHRME

Group & Company &2 7
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2008 2008 2008 2008
—EENE ZTT)N\F —EENF —ETNEF
+=ZRA=+-—H —A=+—8H +ZA=+-—H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BET R BETT
Cash at bank and in hand RITEFER S 78,133 77,568 682 1,166
Short term bank deposits (note i) %2 B $8 17 17 3¢ (M 55i) 595,699 509,457 3,506 35,496
673,832 587,025 4,188 36,662
Time deposits over three months 2| EA BB @ =@ A =
RIT IR — 41,719 — —
Unrestricted deposits, TEZRENZEFER
cash and bank balances Be RIBITERF 673,832 628,744 4,188 36,662
Restricted bank deposits (note i) 2 B8 I 2 R 17 17 7k
(Bt &) 3,889 6,938 — —
677,721 635,682 4,188 36,662

Deposits, cash and bank balances are denominated in the following

TR BEeRRITEFUATIEEREM

currencies:
Group & Company &2 ]
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2008 2008 2008 2008
—EENE —EENF —EENF —EENF
+=ZHA=+-—-H —A=+—8 +=ZHA=+-—H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT BET R BT
Hong Kong dollar o 457,278 307,803 4,084 31,446
United States dollar ETT 1,695 155,740 68 5,176
Renminbi AR 135,571 120,717 — —
Macau pataca SR 68,678 38,675 - —
Singapore dollar ¥ ot 9,066 9,726 — —
Other H 1t 5,433 3,021 36 40
677,721 635,682 4,188 36,662
Notes: BT -
(i) The short term bank deposits of the Group and the Company have original (i) AEBEARRZEHBETERZVNEHA A
maturities of three months or less. “EASKAT
(i) Restricted bank deposits represent: (ii) SZREZBITERTY ¢
— Proceeds received from the sale of residential properties in PRC — MR REEREFEEDMEZHEN
where the fund is confined to the usage of construction work until TR BBEBFERZABEIBHARER
the right of the whole development is properly obtained by the TR BEEASETIAESEEDE
Group. TR
— A deposit given to a bank for providing guarantee to the - A 1A)R PYRF B AT BR [ BRAT 1B B R
Government of Macau SAR in obtaining labour agency licence in F—WEBARERMESBENBAT
Macau by a subsidiary. B RMmmIRITHE T 2FR e

— A deposit given to a bank in favour of Inland Revenue Authority of
Singapore for Goods and Services Tax registration.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the deposits, cash and bank balances mentioned

above.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (31 March

2008: 17.5%).

The movement of the deferred income tax liabilities/(assets) is as follows:

BEEMSHRAABEEIREERERIERE
165%(ZETENF=A=+—HAE175%) 2
BB -

BIEFREHaE/ (BE) ZEHWT :

Group %
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
S L8 —2ENF
+=B=+-8 =A=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ok e
At the beginning of the period/year REIR,F (226) (2,140)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WY iE—B B A Al 27,732 —
Deferred income tax (credited)/charged to A BEEREA (GFA)
consolidated income statement (note 13) kR 2 IEEFTIS AT
(MF=E13) (535) 1,914
At the end of the period/year REIRER 26,971 (226)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred
income tax assets in respect of tax losses amounting to
HK$187,252,000 (31 March 2008: HK$175,080,000) which can be
carried forward against future taxable income.

The movement in deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the

period/year is as follows:

MEEH HIBRELMEHREERR  UIEBE
MEFHSEBAEEEBRRERBREF &R
HEABR AKEEAERELCHESHAEAE -
JR BT B 187,252,000t (T ETENE= A=
+— B A% #175,080,0007T ) © H 0] 45 8 LUK
RIREZRFLIA ©

HE/ FRELEREH(BE) AE22E (8H
[ — i@z AR AT) 0T

Group 58
Deferred income tax liabilities Deferred income tax assets
BEEFBHAR EEREHER
Accelerated Accelerated
tax  Intangible Fair value tax

depreciation assets gains Total  depreciation Tax losses Total

IR ESE BYEE  AVEKRE BE  MERENE B aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BRI BETT BETT BETT BB BB

At 1 April 2007 RZZTLEMA—H 34 — — 34 (339 (1,835) (2,174)
Charged to consolidated EGABERNAR

income statement 22 — - 22 57 1,835 1,892

At 31 March 2008 RZZENF=A=1-H 56 - - 56 (282) - (282)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 43) B — B E (Fi:43) 1,470 26,407 50 27,927 (195) - (195)
Charged to consolidated ERABEENIR

income statement 12 — — 12 139 — 139
Credited to consolidated EGREBEREMTA

income statement - (768) (16) (784) - ) (V)]

At 31 December 2008 R-2BN\E+-A=1-A 1,638 25,639 34 2731 (338) @ (340)

MEEEREABRAT  F¥#H2008
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate

BEEAERMNAUSEEARAEERARARER
B - MEERSHY RE — B RE - Bl
AREERSHEAERREMSHEETHE
e AR ABEERER  TIERERAEE

offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet: BERASE :
Group &8
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENF —EENF
+=B=+—8H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Deferred income tax assets FEEFTSREE (340) (226)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFSTAE 27,311 —
Group % Company 78 A &]
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2008 2008 2008 2008
—EENF —EENF —EENF —ETENF
+=ZB=+—8 =RA=+—H +=BA=+-H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
Bank loans, wholly payable BERAFENEHEE
within five years ZHBITER
— secured —FHA 160,000 — — -
— unsecured — 4 4 60,000 40,000 —
220,000 - 40,000 —
The repayment schedule of RITERZ
bank loans is as follows: BRBHIAMT
(i) within one year (A —FREH
— short term bank loan, —HEACEH
secured BITER 10,000 — — -
— short term bank loans, —EER R
unsecured RITER 60,000 — 40,000 -
(i) in the second year (i) R = F N3 H
— long term bank loan, —BERZEH
secured RITER 60,000 — - —
(iii) in the third to (iIVNE=FFRE
fifth years, inclusive aER
— long term bank loan, —FHERZRE
secured RITER 90,000 - — —
220,000 — 40,000 —
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The bank loans of the Group and the Company were denominated in
Hong Kong dollar and carried at weighted average interest rates at

3.1% and 3.5% per annum respectively.

The bank loans are secured by way of first floating charge over all the

property, assets and rights of the Company.

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair value.

RITERZBEEERER

FAEA -

REBMEARNRZBRITERUNBE BEMLHE
MEFHFFNED R A3.1% K%3.5% °

RITERANARBZMEME - BERENE
FE—F B -

Group & Company 7= 2 7]
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2008 2008 2008 2008
—EENE e YA —EENE e AN
+=ZBA=+-—H =A=+—H +t=ZBA=+-—-H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB BT T BB T
Trade payables B 5 ENERR
— third parties o = 540,577 523,133 — —
Retention payables ENRES
— third parties —8=% 152,527 146,283 — —
Other payables, HMENER &
deposits and accruals RETER
— third parties - = 234,424 165,008 8,110 9,245
— related companies —BBERA — 1,500 — 1,500
Interim dividend payable FE < AR HA RS B 13,423 — 13,423 —
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ 4NE R B & 4 3,142 — —_ —
944,093 835,924 21,533 10,745

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s payables and
accruals are denominated in the following currencies:

AT EEEREML :

AEBERARBBNERREFER ZKREE

Group & Company X A 7]
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2008 2008 2008 2008
—EENF ZTENF —EENF —ET)N\F
+=A=t+-H =A=+—H +=A=+-A8 =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT BETT AT
Hong Kong dollar bt 715,829 612,185 21,533 10,745
Renminbi AR 72,913 79,320 — —
Macau pataca SRPGHS 146,717 139,280 — —
Others Hib 8,634 5,139 — —
944,093 835,924 21,533 10,745
FELEEEMERAT 432008 135
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The aging analysis of trade and retention payables at the balance sheet REER BHRRESENERZERD T
date is as follows: T
Group 58
Not yet 11030 3110 90 91 to 180 Over 180
due days days days days Total
—XE =t—-%X At—-kXE -BNATX
REH =+ X EAtTXR —BNATX BAE wEm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BET T BB T T BET T BB
Balance at 31 December 2008 —EENF+=A
=t+—-B#&H% 651,133 13,502 7,648 9,534 11,287 693,104
Balance at 31 March 2008 —TEN\F=A
=t—B#&#H 645,098 13,525 140 588 10,065 669,416
Amounts due to minority shareholders are unsecured, non-interest ERLVEBRREREDERR 2EREETE
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts RE - HEEmEREAEQNFEREI
approximate their fair value.
(a) Share capital (@) B
1/4/2008 to 31/12/2008 1/4/2007 to 31/3/2008
—EENFNA-HE —ETLFENA—RE
“EENF+ZB=t-H —EZN\F=ZA=+—H
Number of Number
shares HK$'000 of shares HK$'000
B4 EE BT T k88 BETT
Authorised: EERAK :
Ordinary shares of BRE AR
HK$0.1 each BEE0TT 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Ordinary share, issued ERITRABE
and fully paid: TERMD :
At the beginning of the RERR) 4 H)
period/year 670,613,662 67,061 639,215,662 63,922
Shares issued pursuant RIETHAE
to executive share R AR 5
option scheme' BT RMD 560,000 56 31,398,000 3,139
At the end of the periodiyear — P EAR 4 K 671,173,662 67,117 670,613,662 67,061
! These shares were issued and allotted pursuant to the exercise of ! BREARAR—AN—FEAT+
options granted under executive share option schemes adopted by (T=hh—FREHETE ] &/32
the Company on 19 July 1991 (*1991 Option Scheme") and/or on TE-_FNA=+=H U_ 2T
23 August 2002 (“2002 Option Scheme”). Further details are set R EE DN ZITHAB R
out in note 35(b). ,ﬁﬁZE@ﬂQ%%?ﬂiﬂﬁ%ﬁ&HE%
AR o HE— B F1E A FE35(b) ©

No share was issued and allotted pursuant to the employee share

subscription scheme adopted by the Company on 23 August 2002
("2002 Share Scheme™). Further details of the 2002 Share Scheme

are set out in note 35(c).
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(b) Share options

1991 Option Scheme

The 1991 Option Scheme was adopted by the shareholders of
the Company on 19 July 1991 which had already expired on 18
July 2001. Pursuant to the 1991 Option Scheme, the directors, at
their absolute discretion, had made offers to grant options to
eligible persons who included executive directors, senior
executive, managers or employees of the Group (“the Group” in
the context describing the 1991 Option Scheme shall apply the
definition ascribed to it under the rules of the 1991 Option
Scheme) to subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company.
Notwithstanding expiry, options granted under the 1991 Option
Scheme prior to expiry remain exercisable pursuant to the rules of
the 1991 Option Scheme.

Details of movements in the options under the 1991 Option
Scheme during the period and options outstanding as at the
beginning and end of the period are as follows:

(b)

IR

— NN —FRRETE
—AN—FRBREFI IR -AA-FL
ATNWABRARRBRRRSY  YER=-F
T-FLATN\BHm - RE-NN—F
RS EFFRUNEHETIRNAE
BAL BEAKE(AEE]IZEER
— AN F R ZHARNEP R E
B—hN—FREHESSRAE T Z&
BIZHTESF SR ITHRAER KB
BE RERXLAIRERDARANGERH
ZREEEN -BECDE®  RE-NA
—ERBESEZRR RERAR N
N—FREEABTRD ZR1TEBIE
A F LATTE o

K= —FRIEET 2 BBRESRA
23 RPNV RBRZ RITERRES
BT :

Number of
Number of options held
options held Changes during the period asat Exercise
as at LilalA 1] 31 December price  Exercisable
Name of participant  Date of grant 1 April 2008 Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2008 per share period
RZZBN\F RZENF
mA-B +ZA=t+-H
"EZ "EZ
SEALER BREBH RAREHE B (x4 %% i ABREHE SROEE (L
(dd/mmyyyy) (HKS BH ) (dd/mmdyyyy)
(B/R/%) (B/R/%)
Employees
(in aggregate) 25/09/1996 280,000 — (280,000) — — — 0.80 25/09/1998-
24/09/2008
EE 25/09/1996 280,000 — (280,000) — — — 0.80 25/09/1999-
(%) 24/09/2009
560,000 — (560,000) — — —
Note: The closing price of the shares immediately preceding the date (i.e. M REEMARRETERSR (BTN

14 July 2008) on which all the options were exercised was HK$1.52
per share.

FEA+MmA) RN ZKRMERETRE
B1.527C ©
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35. Share capital and share options (oninueq)

(b) Share options (continued)

2002 Option Scheme

The shareholders of the Company adopted a share option scheme
on 23 August 2002 (the “2002 Option Scheme”), which was
already terminated by the shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting held on 22 May 2008. Pursuant to the
2002 Option Scheme, the directors, at their absolute discretion,
had made offers to grant options to eligible persons who
included executive directors, senior executive, managers or
employees of the Group (“the Group” in the context describing
the 2002 Option Scheme shall apply the definition ascribed to it
under the rules of the 2002 Option Scheme) to subscribe for
shares in the capital of the Company. On termination, there were
no outstanding options under the 2002 Option Scheme.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2008, no share was
issued and allotted pursuant to the 2002 Share Scheme.

2008 Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 May 2008
(the “2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option
Scheme, the directors may, at their absolute discretion, grant
options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules of the 2008
Option Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any employee,
executive director, non-executive director and independent non-
executive director of the Company or its subsidiaries.
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(b)

(b) Share options (continued)
2008 Option Scheme (continued)

Details of movements in the options under the 2008 Option
Scheme during the period and options outstanding as at the

RZFBENFRBREAS T ZRRESRR
28 RRHEERZ RITERREF

beginning and end of the period are as follows: BT :
Number
Number of options
of options Changes during the period held as at Exercise
Date of held as at HRz28 31 December price Exercisable
Name of participant grant 1 April 2008 Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2008 per share period
RIZBNE RIZENE
MA—H +=ZB=t-H
BEZ BEZ
BHEALER BEBH AREHE B g P T8 AREHE SROTEE e
(dd/mm/yyyy) (HKS 758 T) (dd/mmiyyyy)
(R/8/%) (R/B/%)
Directors
S
WONG Ying-wai 23/05/2008 — 2,500,000 — — — 2,500,000 2.13 01/01/2009-
TRE 22/05/2018
23/05/2008 — 2,500,000 . — . 2,500,000 213 01/01/2010-
22/05/2018
10/12/2008 — 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 0.6 10/12/2009-
09/12/2018
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho = 23/05/2008 — 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 2.13 01/01/2009-
RER 22/05/2018
10/12/2008 — 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 0.6 31/12/2009-
09/12/2018
10/12/2008 — 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 0.6 31/12/2010-
09/12/2018
CHAN Ka-kui 23/05/2008 — 2,000,000 — — — 2,000,000 2.13 01/01/2009-
BRE 5 22/05/2018
23/05/2008 — 2,000,000 — —  (2,000,000) — 213 01/01/2010-
22/05/2018
23/05/2008 - 2,000,000 — — (2,000,000 — 213 01/01/2011-
22/05/2018
Barry John BUTTIFANT 23/05/2008 — 1,200,000 — — — 1,200,000 2.13 01/01/2009-
22/05/2018
23/05/2008 — 1,200,000 — — — 1,200,000 2.13 01/01/2010-
22/05/2018
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin 23/05/2008 — 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 2.13 01/01/2009-
Ko 22/05/2018
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung 23/05/2008 — 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 2.13 01/01/2009-
iz 22/05/2018
Peter LAU Kwok-kuen 23/05/2008 — 1,000,000 — . — 1,000,000 213 01/01/2009-
2B 22/05/2018
Abraham SHEK Lai-him 23/05/2008 — 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 213 01/01/2009-
VSECE S 221052018
Employees 23/05/2008 — 7,499,995 — — — 7,499,995 2.13 01/01/2009-
(in aggregate) 22/05/2018
&8 23/05/2008 — 7,499,997 — — — 7,499,997 213 01/01/2010-
(g0 22/05/2018
23/05/2008 — 7,500,008 — — — 7,500,008 213 01/01/2011-
22/05/2018
— 43,900,000 — — (4,000,000 39,900,000
MERESEERAR  F#2008 139
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(b) Share options (continued)

(b)

R RE )

2008 Option Scheme (continued)

The fair values of the options granted under the 2008 Option
Scheme on 23 May 2008 were determined using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The fair values of the share options, and
significant inputs into the model and assumptions were as
follows:

18,199,995 options
exercisable from
1 January 2009 to

—EFENFRRETE E)

R-EENFRA-_FTZBHRE-_ZTZEN
FRBEAETRLEZBBREZLAFED
E_EAPRTERAEBEE RBREZL
FEERZEARBZEZHERBEDN

™

13,199,997 options
exercisable from
1 January 2010 to

9,500,008 options
exercisable from
1 January 2011 to

22 May 2018 22 May 2018 22 May 2018

TR-ZZAE AR-ZZE—ZF AR=-ZZE——F

—-A—RE —A—RE —A—Ai&

EZE-N\F EZE-N\F EZE-N\F

BAZ+ZHLETE FA-+-ALTE HA-+Z-HBLITE

218,199,995 17 5% B #& 213,199,997 14 58 B #& 29,500,008 12 32 A% #E

Fair value (HKS) DB (BET) 0.766 0.765 0.761

Share price on grant date (HK$) #H B 2 B (& (B T) 1.92 1.92 1.92

Exercise price (HK$) TEB(AET) 2.13 2.13 2.13

Expected volatility B K IR 51.71% 51.71% 51.71%
Expected life of the options TEERR R 1 2 A U

(years) (%) 10 10 10

Risk-free rate i 3 B ) 2.95% 2.95% 2.95%

The expected volatilities were based on the historical volatilities of
the share prices of the Company over the periods that are equal
to the expected lives before the grant date.
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(b) Share options (continued)

2008 Option Scheme (continued)

The fair values of the options granted under the 2008 Option
Scheme on 10 December 2008 were determined using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The fair values of the share
options, and significant inputs into the model and assumptions
were as follows:

(b)

1,000,000 options
exercisable from
10 December 2009 to

oI R )
ZEZENFRREE ')
RZZEENF+_A+HBEBE-_ZEZENEF
RRAETE TRE 2 RREZ AFE IR
“HEABETEERET BREZAT
ERZEARBZESHERBROT :

1,000,000 options
exercisable from
31 December 2009 to

1,000,000 options
exercisable from
31 December 2010 to

9 December 2018 9 December 2018 9 December 2018

AR=ZZZRE AR=ZZZRE TR-ZZE—ZF

+=ZAtHRE +tZB=+—-HiE tZB=+—-HiE

E-2-N\F EZ2-N\F E-E-N\F

+ZAABLTE +tZAABLTE +TZAABLTE

21,000,000 13 53 % & 21,000,000 13 33 Bk #& 21,000,000 13 53 Bk #&

Fair value (HK$) NFEGEET) 0.170 0.170 0.165

Share price on grant date (HK$) i B 2 iR & (B L) 0.6 0.6 0.6

Exercise price (HK$) TEE(EET) 0.6 0.6 0.6

Expected volatility EEOR R 49.70% 49.70% 49.70%
Expected life of the options EHRRES B

(years) (%) 10 10 10

Risk-free rate LS A % 1.656% 1.656% 1.656%

The expected volatilities were based on the historical volatilities of
the share prices of the Company over the periods that are equal
to the expected lives before the grant date.

Synergis Option Scheme

Synergis adopted a share option scheme on 19 September 2003
(the “Synergis Option Scheme”) pursuant to the shareholders’
resolutions of Synergis passed on 19 September 2003. Pursuant
to the Synergis Option Scheme, the directors of Synergis, at their
absolute discretion, may grant options to eligible persons (as
defined in the rules of the Synergis Option Scheme) who might
include, inter alia, any employee, executive director, non-
executive director and independent non-executive director of the
Synergis or its subsidiaries.

BAEEDREBEARFRENBEHE
(EERRRER D ARG ERFAR
HIZ HifE) M2 KR E ©

WMEEHBRETS
REFEEEN_ZTE=FNLATHIAR
BeBRRRER  FTEEER_TT=F
NATHABERN - BABREFE((HEE
ERREE])  REFEEEBRES
g HMEEREEARUNEEARNAE
BRALT(EERHFEERBREAT 2R
) EEE(EFEFE)MEEELEN
BRARZEMER  MITEE - FERTE
ENBYFATESREBRE -
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(b) Share options (continued)
Synergis Option Scheme (continued)
Details of movements in the share options under the Synergis
Option Scheme during the period and the share options

(b) B

2R
EEEBREZ &

=

g1

R ERERER B TBREZHAE
HURRBIRBRZ RITEBREFS

outstanding at the beginning and end of the period are as W
follows:
Number
Number of share
of share Changes during the period options
options HRAZEEH held as at Exercise
Date of held as at 31 December price per Exercisable
Name of participant grant 1 April 2008 Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2008 share period
REBENF R-EENF
mA—B +t=ZA=t-8
BEZ _ BEZ ~ _
BHEALER RERS  BREZE Ritl Ciy:d P i BREXA BRITHEE e
(dd/mm/yyyy) (note i) (HKS$ B T) (dd/mm/yyyy)
(B/R/%) (FiizEi) (8/8/%)
Director of Synergis
FEEBRES
FAN Cheuk-hung 26/01/2007 516,666 — — — (516,666) — 0.81 26/01/2008-
B 25/01/2017
26/01/2007 516,667 - - - (516,667) - 0.81 26/01/2009-
25/01/2017
26/01/2007 516,667 . . — (516,667) — 0.81 26/01/2010-
25/01/2017
Ex-directors of
Synergis (note ii)
HEEEMEES
(P &Eii)
Yvette FUNG YEH Yi Hao 26/01/2007 333,333 — — — (333,333) — 0.81 26/01/2008-
IR 25/01/2017
26/01/2007 333,333 — — — (333,333) — 0.81 26/01/2009-
25/01/2017
26/01/2007 333,334 - - - (333,334) — 0.81 26/01/2010-
25/01/2017
WOO Chia-wei 11/09/2007 100,000 . . — (100,000) — 0.80 11/09/2008-
REE 10/09/2017
11/09/2007 100,000 — — — (100,000) — 0.80 11/09/2009-
10/09/2017
11/09/2007 100,000 — — — (100,000) — 0.80 11/09/2010-
10/09/2017
TSANG Cheung 11/09/2007 100,000 — — — (100,000) — 0.80 11/09/2008-
e 10/09/2017
11/09/2007 100,000 — — — (100,000) — 0.80 11/09/2009-
10/09/2017
11/09/2007 100,000 — — — (100,000) — 0.80 11/09/2010-
10/09/2017
Alec TSUI Yiu-wa 11/09/2007 100,000 . — — (100,000) . 0.80 11/09/2008-
HhiRE 10/09/2017
11/09/2007 100,000 — — — (100,000) — 0.80 11/09/2009-
10/09/2017
11/09/2007 100,000 — — — (100,000) — 0.80 11/09/2010-
10/09/2017
Nicholas David SWAIN 11/09/2007 100,000 — — — (100,000) — 0.80 11/09/2008-
10/09/2017
11/09/2007 100,000 — — — (100,000) — 0.80 11/09/2009-
10/09/2017
11/09/2007 100,000 - — — (100,000) — 0.80 11/09/2010-
10/09/2017
Employees 01/02/2007- 1,633,330 - — (533,332)  (1,099,998) — 0.81 26/01/2008-
(in aggregate) 16/02/2007 25/01/2017
[} 01/02/2007- 1,633,335 — — (533,334)  (1,100,001) — 0.81 26/01/2009-
(%) 16/02/2007 25/01/2017
01/02/2007- 1,633,335 — — (533,334)  (1,100,001) — 0.81 26/01/2010-
16/02/2007 25/01/2017
13/09/2007 216,666 — — — (216,666) — 0.81 07/09/2008-
06/09/2017
13/09/2007 216,667 — — — (216,667) — 0.81 07/09/2009-
06/09/2017
13/09/2007 216,667 — — — (216,667) — 0.81 07/09/2010-
06/09/2017
9,300,000 — —  (1,600,000)  (7,700,000) —
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(b) Share options (continued)

(@

Synergis Option Scheme (continued)
Notes:

(i) Cancellation of options during the period was due to tender of the
options by the relevant optionholders for acceptance of the
mandatory unconditional cash offer (“Option Offer”) made by the
Company to acquire, among others, all the outstanding options of
Synergis which was closed on 26 September 2008. After consulting
legal advice, the outstanding share options would be deemed to
have been cancelled on the date on which the consideration for
tendered for acceptance of the Option Offer has been received by
the optionholders.

(ii) Ms. Yvette FUNG YEH Yi-hao, Professor WOO Chia-wei, Mr. TSANG
Cheung, Mr. Alec TSUI Yiu-wa and Mr. Nicholas David SWAIN all
resigned as directors of Synergis with effect from 27 September
2008.

2002 Share Scheme

The 2002 Share Scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the
Company on 23 August 2002. Pursuant to the 2002 Share
Scheme, the directors may make offers to full-time employees
and executive directors of the Group (“the Group” in the context
describing the 2002 Share Scheme shall have the definition
ascribed to it under the rules of the 2002 Share Scheme) who
have worked for a period of not less than six months to subscribe
for shares in the capital of the Company. The 2002 Share Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
from 23 August 2002, unless otherwise terminated in accordance
with the rules of the 2002 Share Scheme.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2008, no share was
issued and allotted pursuant to the 2002 Share Scheme.

(b) &

()

—

B
ﬁé”@%%%fﬂm)
7
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B RS AR R AR B AR R F) L AR R
(KR BRE)MEEEMAERTRERBR
WMLz BHEERTERSUBER
(f%ﬂx%ﬂﬁlﬁ%%%ﬁ | PR RS 2
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EMHERBREK  RITEBRERER
BRER A AR B B
BREZHEH -

(i)  BEESLL IRBEHRT - SFELE
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HEBZZTTNFAA=-+LHREET
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Group £ 8
Capital
Exchange Share  redemption General Capital Retained
reserve premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
N
ERfE RBEE BE#E ERRE BXAfE  REEA A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFr  #%Tn BETT BETT BT  BEBfr #%Tn
(note i) (note ii) (note iv) (note v)
(F3ti) (B i) (B =Eiv) (Fistv)
At 1 April 2007 RZZTLENA—H 9,806 148,563 4,420 121,10 1,730 236,964 522,593
Premium arising from issue of shares 2 {77t FTE £ 2 % (B — 22,523 — — — — 22,523
Profit for the year REERF - — — - - 123,922 123,922
Exchange differences ERER 7977 — - — — — 7977
Equity settled share-based URARER
transactions RELEERS — — — — 11,438 — 11,438
Transfer upon exercise of TEURD BER
share-based transaction 2R 5 mE — 11,761 — — (11,761) — —
Transfer upon cancellation of ] 7 R O i
share options — — — — (1,407) 1,407 -
Dividends paid B A — — — — — (101,033) (101,033)
At 31 March 2008 RZEZEN\F=A=1—H 17,783 182,847 4,420 121,110 — 261,260 587,420
Representing: R&:
Reserves ik 17,783 182,847 4,420 121,10 - 234,436 560,596
Final dividend proposed in BE_ZZN\&
respect of the year ended “A=t-ALEEZ
31 March 2008 BRARERE — — — — — 26,824 26,824
At 31 March 2008 RZZEENE=ZA=1+—H 17,783 182,847 4,420 121,110 — 261,260 587,420
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZENEMA-H 17,783 182,847 4,420 121,110 - 261,260 587,420
Premium arising from issue of shares  Z {7 ¥THRFTE £ 2 % (B — 392 — — - - 392
Profit for the period RERER F — — — — — 6,742 6,742
Exchange differences ERES (8,349) - - - - - (8,349)
Equity settled share-based URHDAEH 2
transactions RELEERS - — - — 21,604 - 21,604
Transfer upon cancellation of RRREREmER
share options — — — - (3,052) 3,052 —
Distribution in specie of shares AEN S &
in a subsidiary —WBARRR - - - (111,110 - (117,588)  (228,698)
Interim dividend declared BERTFHRE - - - - - (13,423) (13,423)
Dividend paid EIRRE — — — — — (26,847) (26,847)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
+ZA=+-H 9,434 183,239 4,420 10,000 18,552 113,196 338,841
Representing: RE:
Reserves 1 9,434 183,239 4,420 10,000 18,552 99,773 325,418
Final dividend proposed in respect  BZE-_ZEN\F+ A
of the nine months ended =+—-BILNAEARZ
31 December 2008 B KRR E — — - — — 13,423 13,423
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE
+ZA=+-H 9,434 183,239 4,420 10,000 18,552 113,196 338,841
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Company A&7 7

Capital
Share  redemption Contributed General Capital Retained
Premium reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total
&x
RHEE HEEHEE SARSR LTERE EXRBE  REEA fokcl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETL BETL BETT BETT BETT BETT BETL
(note ii) (note iii) (note iv) (note v)
CED (P &l (P &¥iv) (M)
At 1 April 2007 RZET+FWA—H 146,502 4,420 66,718 111,110 1,730 161,482 491,962
Premium arising from issue of shares  Z {77t FTE £ 2 % (B 22,523 — — — — — 22,523
Profit for the year AEERF - — — - - 40,544 40,544
Equity settled share-based MBRARER
transactions RELET S — — — — 11,438 — 11,438
Transfer upon exercise of TR ARG A EE
share-based transaction 2RGMER 11,761 — — — (11,761) — —
Transfer upon cancellation of BRI AETUE & &
share options — — — — (1,407) 1,407 -
Dividends paid ERRE — — — — — (101,033) (101,033)
At 31 March 2008 RZZEZNF
=A=+—-H 180,786 4,420 66,718 111,110 — 102,400 465,434
Representing: RE&:
Reserves HE 180,786 4,420 66,718 111,110 — 75,576 438,610
Final dividend proposed in HE-TT)\%
respect of the year ended ZA=t-HLLEFEZ
31 March 2008 HERBRE — — — — — 26,824 26,824
At 31 March 2008 RZEENEF
=A=t+-H 180,786 4,420 66,718 111,110 — 102,400 465,434
At 1 April 2008 R-ZZNEMA-B 180,786 4,420 66718 111,110 — 102400 465434
Premium arising from issue of shares E{THIRFE L2 KB 392 — — — — — 392
Profit for the period AHEEF — — - — - 31,866 31,866
Equity settled share-based MBRARER
transactions LRBEEER S — - — - 21,604 - 21,604
Transfer upon cancellation of R 7 B e B T 48
share options - — — - (3,052) 3,052 -
Distribution in specie of shares NENS R
in a subsidiary —MERARR - - (66,718)  (111,110) - (50,870)  (228,698)
Interim dividend declared BERTHRS — — — — — (13,423) (13,423)
Dividend paid Bk E - - - - - (26,847) (26,847)
At 31 December 2008 RZBENF
+-A=t+-8 181,178 4,420 — - 18,552 46,178 250,328
Representing: K&
Reserves [#f 181,178 4,420 — — 18,552 32,755 236,905
Final dividend proposed inrespect  RZZZENE+=F
of the nine months ended =+-ALNEARZ
31 December 2008 BERERE - - - - - 13,423 13,423
At 31 December 2008 R-ZZENE
+=A=1+-H 181,178 4,420 — — 18,552 46,178 250,328
MEEEREAFRAT  F#H2008
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e BHRME

36 RESEI'\IES (continued)

Notes:
(i) See note 3(c) to the financial statements.
(ii) Reserve arising from the repurchase of shares.

36. &&=
i i

(iii) The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result of the Group
reorganisation in 1991 and represents the excess of the then consolidated
net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company made a distribution to its
members out of the contributed surplus on 13 November 2008 by way of

“distribution in specie” of Synergis Shares.

(iv) The Company balance represents reserve created on exercise of scrip
option by members of the Company in lieu of cash dividends while the
Group balance also includes HK$10,000,000 (31 March 2008:
HK$10,000,000) which was transferred from retained profits for general
purpose. On 13 November 2008, the Company made a distribution by way

of “distribution in specie” of Synergis Shares.

(v) Capital reserve comprises the fair value of the number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based compensation in note 3(s)

(iii) to the financial statements.

(vi) Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2008 amounted to
HK$46,178,000 (31 March 2008: HK$280,228,000).

37. Financial guarantees

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

R BMARMI T3 -
EHEBROMEEZF/#E -

KRB ZEBABBTIR— AN —FETZEE
EHEMES AURENBRARIZGRABEFE
BEARBARBITUIERBRZBRABEZ =
B-REBRE-NAN—FQRE AQAR
—EENFT—A+T=ZBERABHBAREE
HOR U EWHRIFNEETERD -
AARzEBHEBDEAERAAREEEZ R
REMES MASEZERFEIRESE
10,000,000t (ZZEENF=A=+—HBAEBK
10,000,000 7T ) # B 1R B s A AVE —RIER & ©
RZZEZENF+—A+=H " AREEHD IR
LIEYMDIRIFEETERND -

BN B4R IR IR B 7S R R R 3(s)Gii) L LA AR 19
REMZBEEMRAN ST RERRADHETA
SEREEMARTEZRAREZEZATE
RZZEZNGF+ A=+ —HERRARAHIIK
2R AB46,178000 L (Z T NF=Z A=
+— A &% % 280,228,0007T) °

B 5 & R

Company XA 7
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENF —EENF
+=ZA=+—H “=A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETIT
Guarantees given to banks for AT ARIENRITEERE
facilities granted to M4 FIRITZHER
— subsidiaries — B A T 755,969 809,415
755,969 809,415

38. Contingent liabilities

38. HARAET

In the normal course of its business, the Group is subject to various
claims under its construction contracts. At 31 December 2008, the
Group had various liquidated damages claims on certain contracts for
which the Group has filed extension of time claims with the customers.
The amount of the ultimate liquidated damages, if any, cannot be
ascertained but the Directors are of the opinion that any resulting
liability would not materially affect the financial position of the Group.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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The directors regard Upper Luck Holdings Limited, a company % £ % Upper Luck Holdings Limited —RRHE
incorporated in British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding BRABSTMALZBRAR  RAEKEKE
company and Carrick Worldwide Limited, a company incorporated in H“ A &) & i Carrick Worldwide lelted — KR
British Virgin Islands, as being the immediate holding company. Y J’E K E¥ SafMzcBRAR  REEB
iy
Before the completion of the acquisition of a majority interest in the R ZZZ+F+— A7 HAMission Hills Group (5
Company by the Mission Hills Group on 9 November 2007, Hsin Chong SHEE)TRKKBEARR 2 EEMRBEA - Hsin
International Holdings Limited (the “HCIH") was a substantial Chong International Holdings Limited ([ %ﬁ 8
shareholder of the Company. As a result, HCIH and/or its subsidiaries R DARRZEERR -AURE_TELF
were regarded as related parties of the Group before 9 November 2007. T—ANBR AEEBHEHE R REK
BABIERAERNT
The following transactions were carried out with related parties: HEEQNRNRZWT
(a) In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in () BELAUBREAREEWERRAEHR
the consolidated financial statements, the following is a summary Hh - B ER W/¢ W AEBERBEELFEH
of significant related party transactions entered into the ordinary BEBIRRAZHHENAT
course of business between the Group and its related parties
during the period/year.
1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENEF —TTEF
A—HBZE MA—BZE
—EENE —TENF
+=ZA=+-—A8 —A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenues &
Billing on contract to a jointly MEF— P E e
controlled entity (note i) AHT %“ ?JZ 17 ( W %}_l ) 11,927 7,249
Billing on contract to a related FET—FB#E AHITE
company (note ii) A ( W.%T\ii) — 3,991
Construction related services income 35 48 B AR 78 U A (B &)
(note iii) 2,105 —
Rental income (note iv) e A (B aEiv) — 1,169
Secondment fees received from WeiREtESEARE
jointly controlled entities (note v) FHEZESEE WA (FEY) 3,570 —
Service centre charges received (note vi) AR 75 70 B AR U (B R vi) — 492
Expenses i
Billing on contracts (note vii) Eﬁ BE 4 TR RIE (W ki) — (1,933)
Corporate membership fee (note viii) NElgEER (M FEvii) — (947)
Service centre charges paid (note ix) PR OB A (M EEix) — (673)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

A subsidiary provided electrical and mechanical installation services
to a jointly controlled entity on terms and prices agreed by both
parties.

A subsidiary provided building construction services to a related
company as the main contractor on terms and prices which were
agreed by both parties.

Subsidiaries provided construction related services to related
companies on terms and prices agreed by both parties.

Rental income represents income on Hsin Chong Center leased by
the Group to related companies as headquarters. The tenancy
agreements were concluded at prevailing market rates.

Secondment fees received from jointly controlled entities represent
staff secondment services provided by the Group to the joint
venture projects. The relevant services were reimbursed at cost
based on time and expenses allocated to the joint venture projects.

Service centre charges received from related companies represent
administrative services provided by the Group. The relevant services
were reimbursed at cost based on time and expenses allocated to
the related companies.

Billing represents estate agency, project management and other
services rendered by related companies to several subsidiaries for
investment properties and other properties. The terms and prices
were agreed between both parties.

Corporate membership fee paid to a related company represents
fee paid for the golf club services and facilities. The fee was
concluded at prevailing market rate.

Service centre charges paid to a related company represent fees
paid for the company secretarial services provided by such related
company to the Group. Such fees were charged on a cost recovery
basis by reference to the time and expenses allocated to the Group.

During the period, item (iii) is a connected transaction as defined
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of

Wi
0

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

—MBRAREREERERRHEETRE
BRET-—REBERR - BHEGRRE
RTYIEETHE °

MEBLRRHEZERBERE TAEBELR
A ERGRREBIIEETHE -

BB ATDKREEBMERAFRAAKER
AHERLREBTZIRA - HEWH
TRESTHERSETE -

WEHAEHNEREEGEHREURAR
FEERALECXABRAERERAR
e GRRBERZEGELEREMNT
DELZEHRNAX 2 ERERARE -

WEEHMERRZRBTLERRASE
BRZSERMEAFRKITHEERSY -
FHERBEZEEHERAMEIBL
By 8 R A 3 2 BRRAC A & -

MERBREBERARME THWE QA
ZEREMEREMMERAYDERRE
FEEBEREMRY - 57322 BB HEX
RERDEETHE -

BT RBERERRZARGHEERER
RUESBARERBRER i
ANEBTISKRBET -

BT ZERERRAZRBEFLERR
ZAEMELRAASBERELRAWER
e ZEBERDBREBEAEEMED B2
By 8 R B SO IR A AN E LR AT o

REREGEREEBRERIMERD
Az EMRAUE+HAERRE ZHER

(b)

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

Hong Kong Limited.

Key management compensation

5 o

(b) TEEBAEZHIE

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to

31/12/2008 31/3/2008

—EEN\F ZEELF

mMA—RZE MA—H=

—EENEF —TETNF

+=ZA=+—H —A=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Salaries and other benefits 27N K B Ath AE 20,583 24,315
Bonuses TE4T 4,795 6,390
Contributions to retirement scheme R AR AR ) ET B4 5k 726 1,145
Share-based compensation ARG D BB 2 /e 18,313 9,901
44,417 41,751
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40. Capital Commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the capital commitments in
respect of equipment and leasehold improvements as follows:

40. & R EE
REER AEBEZRENTEEDWEXEZE
AAEBRHMOT :

31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENF —EENF
+=ZB=+-H =A=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Authorised but not contracted for EEEERETL 7,201 —
Contracted but not provided for BRI 418 R B & 2,102 1,690
9,303 1,690
41. Commitments under operating leases N EEROEE

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases as

REEZR  AEEREBEIARBE 2 EEROF
RAREZN 2 ZERERBLEMOT :

follows:
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
—EENEF ZET)NF
+=ZA=+—H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Land and buildings T RiEF
— not later than one year —E—FR 2,554 3,348
— later than one year but not later than —BZFEEFRFA
five years 2,420 60
4,974 3,408

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases,

REER  ARERBETARE 2 2ERY (—
REEHA—Z=F) RAKEKRZZHEBEER

which typically run for a period of one to three years, as follows: THAFEMT -
31 December 31 March
2008 2008
ZEENF —ETNF
+=A=+-—8 =A=+—~H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BET T
Land and buildings T REF
— not later than one year —F—FR 19,078 14,825
— later than one year but not later than — B _FEERFRN
five years 13,556 10,459
32,634 25,284
MEZEEBEBRAT #2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

to net cash inflow generated from operations

1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EENF ZEELEF
A—BZE mMA—HBZ=
—EETNF ZET)N\F
+=ZA=+—8 =A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ok e
Profit before income tax FIT 15 %4 Al i ) 19,998 135,985
Share of net losses/(profits) of jointly controlled & {6 £ [F] 42 Il & 22 % B 5%
entities and associated companies 2B/ CER) BE 4,753 (15,816)
Net interest income B A FEE (5,549) (21,364)
Depreciation charges e 8,725 6,576
Net fair value gain on investment ERBZREAMELNTE
properties in Hong Kong i AF R (153) (7,529)
Fair value loss on an investment property EBBUINZIEEME
outside Hong Kong ~NFEER — 4,306
Impairment loss on a property in Hong Kong £ & /& 7 ¥ % 5l (8 &5 18 — 4,352
Write back of impairment loss on prepaid ENLHHEER
premium for land lease 1B &5 18 ] 4 — (3,010)
Amortisation of prepaid premium for land lease & 1~ + b 70 & & F3 # 44 1,127 936
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME  HKER
plant and equipment R FF R (735) (252)
Dividend income from financial assets at BERAFEFANRMEBEZ
fair value through profit or loss MBEERBEKA — (79)
Gain on disposal and redemption of financial 1 & & & B 1% A F (E 51 A F] 5k
assets at fair value through profit or loss EREZHBEEERT — (59)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEZEEEEREREIE
financial assets 237 2,227
Impairment loss on stocks of properties EEBUNIINZMEFERERIE
outside Hong Kong 10,975 2,642
Impairment loss credited to cost of sales BERFAEHEER AN 2R EEE — (2,094)
Write back of impairment loss on stocks CEBEBZBUMERE
of car park properties in Hong Kong (B S 18 (o] B — (1,733)
Net provision for impairment of receivables JTE U BR FOR B B SR RE 2,204 7,271
Write back of annual leave provision FREB B B (3,018) (1,264)
Amortisation of intangible assets B AEHN 5114 600
Share-based compensation AR tn B ETR 2 /E 21,604 11,438
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o Bt B R &) g A (2,394) —
Loss on disposal of a jointly controlled entity — H & — £ [F % 4| & 52 & 18 363 —
Fair value loss on foreign currency INERHIAE N AFEEE
forward contracts 3,142 —
Write off of receivables JE L2 B 5% 88 26 —
Provision for long service payment REPRT © B 2,932 —
Goodwill impairment [GESNRE 73,865 —
Operating profit before working capital changes & 3& & & & 8) g 2 & &% 143,216 123,133
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(b)

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax (@) TS Al Q DA BEHKEEE 2
to net cash inflow generated from operations 27} ﬁ MAFEEER @
(continued)
1/4/2008 to 1/4/2007 to
31/12/2008 31/3/2008
—EBENF T HEF
mA—BZE mA—BZE
—EENF —ZETNE
+=ZA=+-—H —A=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Operating profit before working capital EEBESEHAI K E ®T
changes 143,216 123,133
Decrease in stocks and contracting FEL@EERTRRD
work-in-progress 41,062 75,341
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BAFER A A EE
through profit or loss B EERD — 1,374
Decrease/(increase) in receivables and EWER LIERR
prepayments B, (GEhn) 59,096 (45,719)
Increase/(decrease) in payables and accruals ENBEZ R ESTEREM R 35,858 (123,844)
Decrease in property under development for sale i & 2% & A ) 2 gt — 36,800
Decrease in restricted deposits = PR I R 1T 17 HOR 3,167 69,459
Exchange differences M ZE5 (3,678) (3,746)
Net cash inflow generated from operations WEEAZIRESRAEEE 278,721 132,798
Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEME QT
1/4/2008 to
31/12/2008
—EENF
mA—BZE
—EENF
+=A=+—8
HK$000
BT
Net assets disposed of: s & EFE
Property, plant and equipment W - HEE R E 320
Receivables and prepayments FEWERRERMNE 3,921
Deposits, cash and bank balances Ea - B RIBITER
— cash and cash equivalents — RekReEE 5,756
Payables and accruals & 1 BR M&TE R (1,268)
Current income tax liabilities EHMENEE (770)
Amount due to a minority shareholder FE =D HAREHERIE (1,750)
Exchange reserves P& 3, 1% (435)
Minority interests DGR RS (2,091)
3,683
Gain on disposal & 2 A 2,394
Total consideration wRE 6,077
Satisfied by: BUATER :
Cash Re 6,077
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEAZRERAERE
Cash consideration ReRE 6,077
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZHREERREE (5,756)
Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries HEWBRARSIBZIRE R A FHE 321
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Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

in Hong Kong, China and Macau.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME
On 29 August 2008, the Group acquired 66.4% interest in Synergis at a RZZEZNFNAZT LB FEEBUBE
net consideration of HK$338,372,000. Synergis is principally engaged in 338,372,000 7t .2 X 8 5 5B Wk FE 7 & E #£66.4%
L o 3B RENESE - :
the provision of property management and facility management services ZiEm-oMEEREIRUAENER  TEAKAR

PR EER R REERR -

Book value Fair value
REE AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Consolidated net assets acquired: W GRS EEFE
Property, plant and equipment WE - R NERE 10,388 10,388
Investment properties wEME 2,080 2,080
Intangible assets mEAEE — 160,039
Associated company B 5% 1,496 1,496
Jointly controlled entity HEESEE 876 876
Deferred income tax assets FEEFTSHEE 195 195
Contracting work-in-progress HEAHNIRE 5 5
Receivables and prepayments KRR RERMN S 78,006 78,006
Current income tax recoverable A El g HmEEH 48 48
Deposits, cash and bank balances TR Be RIBTET
— time deposits over three months —EHHABB=-MAZRITER 571 571
— cash and cash equivalents - BehBEL2EE 152,388 152,388
Payables and accruals R R K ER B R (55,432) (55,432)
Amount due to a minority shareholder FEAt— D EUAR R KA (1,750) (1,750)
Current income tax liabilities EHMERAE (2,312) (2,312)
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSH AR (1,520) (27,927)
Dividend payable FE AR B (17,264) (17,264)
Minority interests DER RS (58,028) (102,929)
Net assets acquired Wi EEFE 109,747 198,478
Goodwill on acquisition Wag z e 139,894
Dividend income acquired by the Group AEBWE 2 IR B WA 11,463
Total consideration BRE 349,835
Satisfied by: R TER :
Cash including expenses paid Re (BREEAZD) 338,372
Consideration satisfied by dividend LA U B B B A R FTZ (S AR B E
paid by the acquired subsidiary 11,463
349,835

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash including expenses paid
Consideration satisfied by dividend

WEMEEA RS R L F8E
ReE(BREAEZD) (338,372)
LA 4% Ui B B B A B BT S A IR B (B A

paid by the acquired subsidiary (11,463)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired BAZHEeERE&EE 152,388
Net cash outflow in respect of the W —WE ARSI B

acquisition of a subsidiary e R R (197,447)
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In September 2008, the Group further acquired 29.6% interest in
Synergis at a net consideration of HK$160,600,000. After the
acquisition, the Group held 96.0% interest in Synergis.

In November 2008, the Company distributed in specie part of the
Synergis Shares owned by it to its shareholders (other than overseas
shareholders whose entitlements to the distribution were satisfied in
cash) of HK$228,698,000 and reduced its shareholding interest in
Synergis to approximately 50.9%.

The share price of Synergis has decreased by 64.0% to HK$0.55 per
Synergis Share as of 31 December 2008, compared to the Group’s net
general offer price of HK$1.528 per Synergis Share. As noted under the
“Events after the balance sheet date” of the interim report 2008, and
according to Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36, “Impairment of
Assets”, such a significant decrease in market capitalisation of Synergis
constituted an “impairment indicator” to the goodwill and intangible
assets resulting from the acquisition as at 31 December 2008. As a
result of the impairment assessments of the goodwill and intangible
assets, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that there was
an impairment on goodwill of HK$73,865,000 as at 31 December 2008.

The acquired business contributed revenue of HK$166,621,000 and net
loss after impairment of goodwill of HK$69,713,000 to the Group for
the period from 1 September 2008 to 31 December 2008. If the
acquisition of 50.9% had occurred on 1 April 2008, Group revenue
would have been HK$2,020,660,000 and profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company would have been HK$8,900,000.

RZZEZNFNA - &% E L% 160,600,000
TZREFEE - P WENSER296% 7 #
meo R AEERAHE T HE6.0%#
ﬁT/i °

R-ZEENF+— H AARAERR (TRE
HINBER  BRERDEMZEAZEFNRES L
MEDHREBE A D>HTETERD BEB
#228,698,000 T * FEMFME BT IE 2 RIER
D EH50.9% o

RZZEZNF+-_A=Z+—H8 FEETEZRK
BRAEEMRE22ANBEEFBETRTS
BEIERMHABE1.528TT 0 TE640%EF RS
BEEROABEOST - ERBR_TETNFEFRH
HENIFEERBBEIFMRML  RBREEES
#%w P [ EERBE] AR LR ZHE
EEMEZBETR BEAR-_ZEZTNEFE+
:H_+ B REEEC EEREREE
ZIBEEREEZ] KEYBEREREEETREA
FEE ARREERAER=_ZEZNFE+=A
—+—HZEERERB¥73,8650007T °

WEEBZEBR_ZTENFNLA—HBE+=A
=+—BHHEAANEE R B K166,621,000 7T
2 W35 K #569,713,000 T 5t A BB EE 2 B
1B o B Ls09% WHNR —_SEENFEWNA —
B4 NEBEWEEABK2,020,660,0007T &
KNARESEE A ARG G T A7 8,900,000

JT °©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMT

44. Principal subsidiaries and associated

44. T EK B 2 7 K& B 5R

companies
Country of The Group’s effective
incorporation/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company registration/operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
AEEFBEREZEOL
NF R/ e NN WEAR EBETRARZRE FEEH
Subsidiaries:
WEAR
Ample Honour International Hong Kong — 100% HK$1 Investment holding
Limited BB BT BREER
GRERERAA
Beijing Hsin Chong Project People’s Republic of China — 100% US$600,000  Construction project
Management Consultant Ltd. HEARAM %4600,0007T management and
(notes 18&2) consultancy services
ERHMERREREN BEBEEE RERN RS
BRAR (ME1R2)
Cogent Spring Limited Hong Kong — 100% HK$85,000,002  Property investment
BE A 1#85,000,002T MERE
Deventer Limited Hong Kong — 100% HK$10  Property holding
Bk BEI0T  WERE
Ever Apex Construction Macau — 100% MOP25,000  Registered contractor services
 (Macau) Company Limited B P BPIHE25,0000 AEERSE
KERECEM)BERAF
Ever Gain Limited Macau — 100% MOP25,000  Provision of labour agency
=1 N R S PIHE25,0007L services
REAERBRSE
Everich Construction Macau — 100% MOP25,000 Provision of renovation and
(Macau) Limited R R P9 #25,0007T fitting-out works
EHRRECEM)BERAF RUEBHREAREIR
Glenwell Orient Limited Hong Kong — 70% HK$100  Investment holding
RERNBERRA EE BEI00T  REZRR
Guangzhou Fengyu Real Estate People’s Republic of China — 42% HK$80,000,000  Real estate development
Co., Ltd. (notes 18&3) mEARANE B180,000000r FEHMEER
EM%%%%EE@QE
(P &1 R3)
Guangzhou Free Trade People’s Republic of China — 70% HK$12,286,000  Real estate investment
Zone Dongjing Property HREARAM HH12,28600000 RHERE
Co., Ltd. (notes 1 &?2)
E')‘\‘H%ﬁ@ REXBRAA
(a1 R2)
HCCG Building and Civil Macau — 100% MOP25,000  Building construction and civil
Engineering (Macau) Limited R P9 #25,0007T engineering
MERERTAIE BFRERTALIR
(&M AR AR
HCCG China Construction British Virgin Islands — 100% Us$1 Investment holding
 Limited EERUES Xe1r  RAER
MERERHERLDA
HCCG China Facility British Virgin Islands — 100% US$1  Investment holding
Management Limited EERLES o1t REAER
HMERERERG
EBERLNA

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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Country of The Group’s effective
incorporation/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company registration/operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
FEEMBERERRIL
NF R/ M/ e AAH L) PNl BRORMRRE FEEE
Subsidiaries: (continued)
WEAR: (&)
HCCG China Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands — 100% Us$1 Investment holding
MERERHZRERAR RRETHE Ee1n  RAER
HCCG China Investment Limited British Virgin Islands — 100% Us$1 Investment holding
MEREPHRERFRA EERUES Eeln  RAERK
Hsin Chong — Hsin Chong Hong Kong — 100% —  Building construction and
Aster Joint Venture B0 mechanical, electrical and
ME-HEDHEKRE building services
BTRERKEIR
REFH
Hsin Chong Aster Building Hong Kong — 100% HK$2,050,000 ‘A" Mechanical, electrical and
Services Limited 5B HK$2,050,000 ‘B’ building services
MEDHEETFRBEERLA i%%Z,OS0,000i‘A’ BETEREFR
7 #2,050,0007C ‘B
Hsin Chong Aster China British Virgin Islands — 100% Us$1 Investment holding
Limited (notes 1 & 4) EBRUES Ee1n  RAER
FEBtEtEARAT
(MeE1R4)
Hsin Chong Aster Macau Macau — 100% MOP25,000  Electrical and mechanical
Limited (note 1) B P98 25,0007T works and maintenance
MEDHERMARD KEIRRAEE
(BzET)
Hsin Chong Civil Engineering Hong Kong — 100% HK$7,500,000 ‘A’ Civil engineering
(Asia) Limited 0 HK$7,500,000 B AT
# & & TARIR(EM AR 78 7,500,000 7T ‘A
N 78 7,500,0007C B
Hsin Chong Civil Engineering Hong Kong — 100% HK$2  Civil engineering
Company Limited BE ¥ AT
HETARIRERRA
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong — 100% HK$10,000,000  Building construction and civil
_ (Asia) Limited B (note 5) engineering
MERER (TN ARAR HK$20,002,000 BFRERLIALRE
B 0,000,000
(FizEs)
720,002,000 7T
Hsin Chong Construction British Virgin Islands 100% — HK$150,000 Investment holding
(BV) Ltd. EBRLES BH150,000 BHEER
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong — 100% HK$20,000,000  Building construction and civil
_ Company Limited Ak (note 5) engineering
MERERARRA  HK®000 BFRERLAIR
7 120,000,000
(PEE5)
#%2,0007T
MEEEREAFRAT  F#H2008 155
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44. Principal subsidiaries and associated

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R RRMEE

COmpanIes (continued)

44. = E M B 2 B R B SR ()

Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company registration/operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
FEEMBERERRIL
NF R/ M/ e ARH WEAR ERIRERRE FEER
Subsidiaries: (continued)
WEAR: (&)
Hsin Chong Construction People’s Republic of China — 100% US$6,100,000  Building construction and civil
Company Limited (notes 1 & 2) HEARAME %46,100,0007T engineering
MEEEERERAA (MT1Kk2) BFEERIAIR
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong — 100% HK$2  Construction management
(Macau) Limited BE ¥ services
MERECEM)BRAF BEEBRRY
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong — 100% HK$1 Construction management
Management Limited BE BRI services
MEBERERARAA BEEERYE
Hsin Chong Construction British Virgin Islands — 100% Us$1 Construction management
Management Services EBRUES X217 services
(China) Limited REEERB
MEREERRY
GEDE
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong — 100% HK$1,000,000  Construction management
Management Services ) 711,000,000 7T services
Limited REEERB
MEREERRBERAA
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong — 100% HK$1  Property development
(Property Development) Limited B BEIT HMERE
MEEE(MERR)ERAA
Hsin Chong (Corporate Hong Kong — 100% HK$2  Corporate services
Services) Limited BB BEL RAER
HME(RAIZEH)BERAA
Hsin Chong Development Hong Kong — 100% HK$10,000  Investment holding
(China) Limited B BE0000T REZR
MERE(FE)ERAR
Hsin Chong Development Hong Kong — 100% HK$2 Investment holding
(Vietnam) Limited (note 1) S BT BREER
mEsRE(ME)BERAA
(BzE1)
Hsin Chong E & M Engineering Hong Kong — 100% HK$2,000,000  Mechanical, electrical and
(Asia) Limited (note 6) B 75 1 2,000,0007C building services

MERETR(ZEM ARAR

(H3Ee)

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company registration/operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
FEERBERERAIL
NF R/ M/ RE ARH WEAR ERTREARRE FBER
Subsidiaries: (continued)
WEAR: (&)
Hsin Chong Engineering Macau — 100% MOP25,000  Construction management
(Macau) Limited R R P9 #25,0007C services
METIRORM)BERAA BEEBRRY
Hsin Chong Environmental Hong Kong — 100% HK$5,000,000  Environmental engineering
Engineering Company BE #%5,000000 REIE
Limited
Hsin Chong Interior Holdings Hong Kong — 100% HK$1 Dormant
Limited BiE BT EE2E
Hsin Chong Interiors Hong Kong — 100% HK$1,000,000  Fitting-out, renovation &
(Hong Kong) Limited o 7 1#1,000,0007T addition and alteration
MEENEH (FR)BERAA ERKE  BHEME
RMETR
Hsin Chong Interiors Limited Hong Kong — 100% HK$1,000,000  Fitting-out, renovation &
MEZENEMHERDA B 71,000,000 7T addition and alteration
ERERE  BREMNE
Rk#IR
Hsin Chong (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore — 100% S$1  Construction and provision of
K M T construction related services
BERRHERENH
Z R
Hsin Chong - Taylor Woodrow Hong Kong — 60% —  Building design and
Joint Venture No. 1 i construction
BT R s
Hsin Sheng Security Services Hong Kong — 50.9% HK$2  Provision of security services
Limited b BT RERZRHB
MERZREBRAA
Insight One Investments Limited British Virgin Islands — 100% Us$1 Investment holding
ESE-—REBRAA RERTHS xe1T  REBR
IT & T Builders Sdn. Bhd. (note 1) Malaysia — 55% MR1,000,000  Building construction
(BizE1) BRED (note7) EBFRE
MR1,000,000
5% %1,000,0007C
(H3x7)
55 %1,000,0007C
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME
Country of The Group’s effective
incorporation/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company registration/operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
FEERBERERAIL
AT R/ M RE ARH WEAR ERTREARRE FBER
Subsidiaries: (continued)
WEAR: (&)
Jadeport Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands — 100% Us$1 Investment holding
(notes 1&4) RBRUES X1 BEER
(P31 2 4)
Key Future Limited British Virgin Islands — 100% Us$1 Investment holding
BEEARAA REETHE 91T REER
Laundrimate Service Limited Hong Kong — 50.9% HK$2  Provision of laundry services
EREBRBERRA S BT REERRKRS
Linders View Limited British Virgin Islands/ — 92.79% US$652  Holding and leasing plant and
Hong Kong £46527T machinery
KEBRRES /B ERRkEEEE
Master Clean Service Limited Hong Kong — 50.9% HK$2  Provision of cleaning services
REBRBERRA EE BE¥T  REBERH
Optimum Engineering Limited Hong Kong — 50.9% HK$2 Provision of repair and
FEIRARAR EE BT maintenance services
e REERS
Readon View Limited British Virgin Islands/ — 100% Us$1 Holding and leasing plant and
Hong Kong Ex A machinery
KBRRES /B ERRkEEEE
Rife Yard Limited Hong Kong — 100% HK$1,000  Real estate development
EE B®1000T  FHEER
Service Pro Limited Hong Kong — 50.9% HK$2  Sales of products, provision
FARBERAR i BT of copying services and
property holding
HEER  RERDRS
REBME
Smart Lane Holdings Limited (note 8) British Virgin Islands 100% — US$1  Investment holding
(PzE8) RERTHS 01T REER
Synergis Holdings Limited Bermuda/Hong Kong — 50.9% 'HK$33,200,000  Investment Holding
MEEREEARAF BERE/EE 1533200000 RERE
Synergis Management Services Hong Kong — 50.9% HK$206,837  Provision of property
Limited i % 1#206,8377C management services
HEEERKERDA and investment holding
RUENLEE R
REEERR
Synergis Facility Management Limited ~ Hong Kong — 50.9% HK$2  Provision of facility
MERRERBRAA B AT management services
RERBERRE
Wellhurst Company Limited Hong Kong — 100% HK$2  Investment holding
EE BT REEBR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company registration/operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
ZEEFBERESEEDL
AT B/ &M/ Set YN WELAR EBEIRSRKRE FZEH
Associated companies:
B
Beijing Hsin Chong Facility People’s Republic of China — 25% RMB6,000,000  Facility management
Management Co., Ltd. REARAME AR®6,000000T @EERE
(notes 1 & 3)
TRFERMERARAR
(1 R3)
Cheer Star Development Hong Kong — 22.5% HK$10,000  Hotel operations
Limited 0 BEE10,000  BEEER
ERERERAA
CS Management Services Hong Kong — 22.5% HK$2 Hotel management services
Limited BE E¥L BEEBRE
HHERRBAERRA
Goldian Limited Hong Kong — 25% HK$10,000  Investment holding and real
% 710,000 7T estate development
BRARREEHELR
Infinity Goal Limited Hong Kong — 30% HK$10,000  Real estate development and
) % #10,0007T leasing of a building’s roof
BEHEZRRRAEE
Topway Investments Limited British Virgin Islands — 33.33% US$6,000  Investment holding
RERTHE x££6000r HEEZR
Victory Guide Limited Hong Kong — 30% HK$10  Property investment
BRERRA EE EEI0OT  MERE
Notes: B 5
1 Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers 1 FHEESROKEBEHEEBHAER
2 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 2 HNEBEME
3 Equity joint venture 3 ABEME
4 Struck off during the nine months ended 31 December 2008 4 REBE-TZNF+-A=+—RHLEAEARS
53
5 Non-voting deferred shares 5 ERERRBLER
6 Previously known as “Hsin Chong Aster Building Services (Asia) Limited” 6 FIEIFESHEEFXRE (M BRAAF]
7 Preference shares 7 BER
8 Company incorporated during the nine months ended 31 December 2008 8 REEZE-_ZZENF+ZA=+—HIEAEARAK

AVAA/NG)|

a0
Jifu
il
ot
b
i
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFHBEREE

In HK$ thousand except otherwise indicated

BT FRIERERI

Nine months
ended
31 December
2008
BE-ZZN\F
+=ZA=+—H Year ended 31 March
IFA@A HE-A=1+—HLUMBFE
2008 2007 2006 2005
Operating Results REEE
Revenue W 1,836,740 2,494,727 3,007,166 2,275,911 1,153,656
Operating profit after MR EK AR 2
finance costs bl 24,7510 120,169 112,511 141,149 45,983
Share of (losses less profits)/ FE(E R4 F a2
profits less losses of jointly LEESE 2 (BER
controlled entities and s ) R
associated companies E5 18 (4,753) 15,816 10,088% 15,723% (8,154)"
Profit before income tax Fr8# Rl & A 19,998 135,985 122,599 156,837 37,829
Income tax expense FrgRiAx (14,180) (14,946) (8,568) (6,488) (4,510)
Profit after income tax P 15 %54 12 1 A 5,818 121,039 114,031 150,349 33,319
Minority interests DER R R = 924 2,883 (8,632) (30,053) (10,329)
Profit attributable to equity KAREZFEEBA
holders of the Company FE 15 5 A 6,742 123,922 105,399 120,296 22,990
Assets and Liabilities EERERE
Total assets BEE 1,766,226 1,533,832 1,623,696 1,780,450 1,277,559
Total liabilities “waE (1,234,085) (873,820)  (1,028,347)  (1,218,939) (803,183)
532,141 660,012 595,349 561,511 474,376
Per Share Figures (Cents) shar (L)
Basic earnings per share BREKXRTF 1.0 19.1 16.5 18.8 3.6
Diluted earnings per share FREERF 1.0 18.7 16.5 18.8 3.6
Dividend per share A% P& 2. 4.0 9.5 14.0% 12.0% 2.0
Cash flow from operation BR¥BHRENE
per share 40.8 16.7 27.3 23.2 (8.5)
Net assets value per share EREEFE 60.5 97.6 91.8 86.4 72.7
Financial Ratios it =E
Pretax margin & F4 A1 22 B ) B 1.3% 4.8% 3.7% 6.2% 4.0%
Dividend payout ratio & B L & 4.0x 49.7% 84.8% 63.8% 55.6%
Debt to capitalisation ratio BEHERLE 29.2% 0.0% 4.0% 33.3% 33.8%
Return on average equity 9 B R A 7 [0 7R =X 1.7%"° 20.0% 18.5% 23.7% 5.1%

Included the impairment of goodwill of HK$74 million arising from the acquisition
of Synergis and an impairment provision of HK$11 million made for an unsold
property stock in the PRC.

(2) Included HK$38 million write back of impairment loss on a property under
development for sale in Guangzhou, PRC.

(3) Included HK$11 million profit on disposal of a hotel property in Sai Wan, Hong
Kong.

(4) Included HK$88 million write back of impairment loss on a property under
development for sale in Guangzhou, PRC.

(5) Included HK$39 million for equity share of write back of impairment loss on a
hotel property in Sai Wan, Hong Kong.

(6) Included a write back of impairment loss of HK$25 million for a leasehold land
and building in Hong Kong.

(7) Included HK$30 million for equity share of write back of impairment loss on a
hotel property in Sai Wan, Hong Kong.

(8) Included special dividend of HK6.0 cents per ordinary share.

9) Represented the annualised rate of return on average equity.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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B 4E LU BE B & B ER P A AE 2 7 B R (B8 1 74,000,000
TUAEREURFPR—BERLEVEFTEZRERES
#11,000,0007C °
BE-—HAUARPEENZHEEEERDEZRES
18 [o] # 7 ¥ 38,000,000 7T °
PRLE—BANREEOARBEEMEZEANBE
11,000,000 7T °
BE-—HAUMRPEENZHEEEERDEZRES
18 161 3 75 %5 88,000,000 7T °
BE-—HEMRESAROENE 2 REROBEEE
5] & 7% # 39,000,000 7T °
BRE-—EUREAZAO T RET 2R EEIE L &
7% # 25,000,000 7T, °
BRE-BURESARBEMEZESZRHO RERSIE
5] # 7 % 30,000,000 7T °
BEFIRE SR T BB 6.0 -
BEREZFHREESBRE -



Proforma Combined Balance Sheet of Affiliated Companies

BHELAACEEAHEERER

The Group had amounts due from and loans to certain affiliated companies in
a total sum of HK$171.7 million and guarantees given to a bank and joint
venture partners for banking facilities granted of HK$80.2 million totalling
HK$251.9 million as at 31 December 2008 which exceeds 8% of the Group’s
total assets. A proforma combined balance sheet of certain affiliated
companies to which the Group provided major financial assistance and the
Group’s attributable interest in these affiliated companies are presented below:

RZEENF+_A=Z+—BAEEETHE LA
R &%m%’ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%wwoooomz';MA% xR iR
TREECEBHUNERNRTEEZERBABE
80,200,000 7T - m/\ﬁéﬁmm 900,000 T * B R KEHE
‘KEI%‘EEEE P2\ o BT EEZE ISR 2B

NRIZBEAHEAERBRRASEMEZSH
"T%ﬁniﬁfiﬁﬁuT :

Proforma Group's

combined attributable

balance sheet interest

BEAH S

EEEER frib &

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Current assets REERE 711,270 193,624
Current liabilities mEAE (278,949) (103,163)
Joint venture partners’ advances BEDEBHER (799,000) (168,800)
Net liabilities BEFE (366,679) (78,339)
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Major Projects
FETRRIER

Group's Commencement Anticipated
Description interest Contract value date completion date Client/Ultimate employer
A&
IBRE Frib s BREE BWIAE EERIAE BF/BEEE
(HKS)
(BET)
CONSTRUCTION WORKS
BEIR
Venetian Cotai Parcels 5/6 100% 1,864,074,000 October 2005 Suspended Venetian Orient Limited
BERABKLSRE /A “ZZRFTA iz RABEHABERAA
Design and Construction of Prince of 50% 1,654,258,000* April 2007 January 2010 Architectural Services Department
Wiales Hospital — Extension Block —ZZL45WA —Z-Z2E-f BEZ
BRNRIRE — BREABRS
REEIR
Proposed Commercial Development at 100% 883,000,000 December 2008 September 2010 Ubagan Limited
Nos. 863-865 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, —TTN\F+ZA ZZ-ZENRA
Hong Kong
BREARESIE863-8 K L HEEE
¥RIER
Construction of Choi Wan Road 100% 835,000,000 September 2008 January 2011 Hong Kong Housing Authority
Site 2 Phase 2 (Domestic Portion), ZZZNFNA —Z——5-J EEFRZE®
Site 3B Phase 2, District Open Space
Site B and Local Open Space Site C
MVEBMBIE _H(EZHH)
WE3BEH - EREAINES
REBEREAMECRETR
Venetian Cotai Parcel 2 100% 635,799,000 October 2005 August 2009 Venetian Cotai Limited
BB AR &5 = —TTH%¥+A —TTNENR BREHRABKBEHERAD A
Main Contract for Atrium Hotel at 100% 570,000,000 July 2007 July 2009 Pacific Place Holdings Limited
Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong . “TTHhELRA ALESBEABRRA
BASBESRKATLBESAuMEE
EH
Proposed Phase 2 Renovation works 100% 31,994,000 January 2009 September 2009 The Link Management Limited
at Cheung Fat Shopping Centre —ZTHE-R “ZTNENA FEEEERAA
REBSHBEE B2 BTREEIR
Renovation Works at Wo Che Market 100% 16,070,000 August 2008 April 2009 The Link Management Limited
AEHTERREETRE —ZZNENA —ZTHENA FEEBRBERAA
CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS
TAIR
Stonecutters Bridge 20% 3,579,550,000 April 2004 September 2009 Highways Department
BHMNKE —ZEMNEWA “TTNENA BHE
Sha Tin New Town, Stage I, Road T3 and 20% 1,644,000,000 March 2003 May 2010 A Civil Engineering and
Associated Roadworks —“TT=%=H ZZ-ZERAA Development Department

DEATEZ2ERTBRIBERER
HEIR

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.

Annual Report 2008

TARIRRMES



Group's Commencement Anticipated

Description interest Contract value date completion date Client/Ultimate employer
X&E
IBRA PR ANEE MIAE EHRIAE BF/BEEE
(HKS)
(B¥T)
CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS (continued)
TARIB(E)
ELS and Demolition Works, 100% 128,000,000 March 2008 April 2009 Hysan Development
Proposed Redevelopment of —ZTNE=A —ZTRENA Company Limited
Hennessy Centre, 500 Hennessy Road, AEREEERAA

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BB B S H B E5005 B A AL
REBRBRAZENAAARIRER

FrIR
BUILDING SERVICES WORKS
EFREIR
Prince of Wales Hospital — Extension Block 100% 548,000,000" April 2007 January 2010 Architectural Services Department
— Package Electrical and Mechanical —TT+EWEA —Z-%%-f REZ
Installation

BRRARESER — BRKRE

) = oo Ht
— GARERE

Proposed Office Development on 100% 204,500,000 March 2007 July 2008~ Winsor Properties Holdings Limited
KTIL 242 at 102 How Ming Street, —ZZ+%5=R —ZEN\FL A~ M EERER AR
Kwun Tong

— MVAC Installation
BEDHHI0QFEHENME 2425

ResrEERER
—BEZHEALER

Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2 100% 188,000,000 December 2006 August 2008~ Hong Kong Science and
Area A2 at TPTL No. 182 (Laboratory T ¥+ZA 2T NE\A~ Technology Parks Corporation
Buildings) EEREERDA

— HVAC and Electrical Installation
AEMHBIREANEEE 4

IENE(EREANE)

— ERARERERLE

HAECO Aircraft Maintenance Hangar No. 3A 100% 131,360,000 April 2008 May 2009 Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering
— Electrical and Mechanical Ventilation —ZZ)N\¥WmA —ZZTN%¥AA Company Limited
Installation ERARBIRERAA
BRIREAREEEEE
—BERBARE
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Major Projects
FETRRER

MajOI‘ PI‘OjECtS |I'I-PI‘OQI‘ESS (continued)
AHETHPZEFEIR @

Description

IRAR

Group’s
interest
X58
PR

Contract value

ANEE
(HKS)
(B%T)

Commencement
date

BIAM

Anticipated
completion date

BHRTIAE

Client/Ultimate employer

BF/BEEE

BUILDING SERVICES WORKS (continued)
BFREIR(E)

Phase 2, Tai Wai Maintenance Centre
Property Development, STTL No. 529,
Tai Wai, Sha Tin
— Plumbing & Drainage Installation
DHRAED BT R E5295% KB # &
POMERREER M
— KRBT R

Redevelopment of Lido Complex at
26-30 Beach Road, Repulse Bay
— MVAC, Electrical, Fire Services and
Plumbing & Drainage Installation
EKEBHRE6-0FBHEZEE
—BE - FH TR EHRK
BHKEGTE

Proposed Shopping Centre at Discovery Bay
North Development Lot No. R.P. of
Lot 385 in DD352 and Extension
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island
— Plumbing & Drainage Installation
AELRRELBRELENG
F3524 B F 385 FHE MR
ZHREBDD L
— KRBT R

Proposed Shopping Centre at Discovery Bay
North Development Lot No. R.P. of
Lot 385 in DD352 and Extension
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island
— Fire Services Installation
AELBRELERELENG
35240 R 55385 5% #h B IR
ZHRERDH L
e

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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100%

100%

100%
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61,194,530

59,000,000

12,201,755

11,310,000

July 2008
—ZTN\ELA

March 2007
—TTt%¥=R

May 2008
“2INEFEA

April 2008
2T N\ENA

August 2010
—E-FFEN\A

August 2008~
kL VICHIV-E

May 2009
“ETAFEA

May 2009
—“ZTTNERA

East City Investments Limited

ERREFRAT

Gold Shine Investment Limited

BEREARAT

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited
BRARBRAT

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited
BEAZARAT



Major Projects Completed During the Nine Months Ended 31 December 2008 and
Subsequent to the Period End
B2 ZEEN\F+-_A=+T—HLEABAAARMEERZEEIR

Group's
Description interest Contract value  Commencement date Completion date Client/Ultimate employer
KEBM
IBRE HER ANEE WIAE RIARH R/ BREE
(HK$)
(B¥T)

CONSTRUCTION WORKS
BEIR

Venetian Cotai Parcel 1 100% 1,259,600,000 October 2004 April 2008 Venetian Cotai Limited
LB HT A B ki 38 — —“TTNE+A —ZTN\ENA B ABKRGHBRA R

Major Renovation Works at 100% 39,300,000 March 2007 July 2008 The Link Management Limited
Cheung Fat Shopping Centre % t%¥=R —ZZ)\FtA FEEEERAR
REFHTERMTREELIR

Extension to Canossa Hospital (Caritas) at 100% 15,000,000 March 2008 November 2008 Canossa Hospital (Caritas)
No. 1 Old Peak Road —ZZ)N\¥=R ZTENF+-A Management Company Limited
ENEE-RsmmmBEhk
ZHEREEE

CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS
TAIR

Reconstruction of Main Sewers from 100% 14,225,000 April 2007 October 2007 The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Grandstand 2 to Mafoo Quarter at “TTEENA “TTEE+R ERESE
Sha Tin Racecourse

PHESG_REIAEREEHKES
THKERERER

BUILDING SERVICES WORKS
EFREIR

The Hong Kong Side of Passenger Terminal 100% 141,310,020 February 2006 February 2007 Shenzhen-Hong Kong Western
Building at Shenzhen-Hong Kong TR “TTEECR Corridor Project Office
Western Corridor RYTRERSRE
— HVAC, Electrical and Plumbing & IRERPRAE
Drainage Installation

REBDBEORRIRKE (FEDR)

— ZRERE  BRRGEHKERTE

Retail Centre at Union Square, MTR 100% 49,040,000 August 2005 June 2008 MTR Corporation Limited
Kowloon Station “ZZRFNA ZZTNERA ERERERAA
— Plumbing and Drainage Installation

N EE S Union Square T & 15
— BYKERRE

* Part of the contract has been sub-contracted to group companies

BOAWESPHATEEARF

Sub-contract value being awarded by joint venture

AEPERBZHDHENE

~ Awaiting PC certificate
FESTIHR

A The joint venture has substantially completed the contract work in June 2008 and is awaiting the final PC certificate.
AECERZTENEFRAETRABHANIE  REBFKKTIH -
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Major Properties

Properties Held for Investment/Own Use/Sale as at 31 December 2008
R-ZZBENE+T-A=+—HZRE BEA HENZE

Approximate Percentage of
Description Use  gross floor area Status Lease term  Group's interest
=&
MABE Pk =
L/E =38 R#® BER iR 5 F 8 P
(square feet)
(FARR)
No. 3 Lockhart Road Office 77,000 Rental Short 100%
Wan Chai, Hong Kong 7 A G- 2 H
BEREFRREIN
Hsin Chong Center Office 107,000 Head Office Medium 100%
107-109 Wai Yip Street, 74 A @ F H
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
HEdL
BENEBIEEXEA107E1095%
Carparks in Lung Mun QOasis Carpark 237 carparks For Sale Medium 100%
43 Lung Mun Road, EX] 237 E L & H Hf
Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong
REfEZEM
BN R EPIREPIKA3R
Guangzhou Wen Chang Pavilion Shops 13416 For Sale Medium 2%
No. 235-267 Wen Chang Road North, 7 & i Hf
Li Wan District,
Guangzhou City, PRC Carpark 51 units For Sale Medium 42%
BMNXEHE #{I  (another 51 units e A
FEEMNTSERE are under
X & 3k B% 235-267 5% application for
sale)
5118 == fiz
(B 451 1{E S L
REFEHER)
Loading Bay L101 on 1st Floor, Carpark 1 carpark Rental Medium 50.9%
Fortune Commercial Building, AL [KEEXW BE fhHp
No.362 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories
R D 8 B 362 5%
SRHENFIEEIEL0
Sun Hing Garden, No. 2 On Po Lane, Carpark 8 carparks Rental Medium 50.9%
Tai Po, New Territories EXiv) 8{E & i1 HE F
AR LI E25%
FETE
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Formula of Financial Ratios

BBERZFAEER

Operating margin (excluding financial
and securities income)

B2EBENE(TEEMBREESEAN)

Pretax margin

B 5% A 42 B R

Net margin (excluding jointly controlled
_entities and associated companies)
%%Wﬂﬂ(?ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ

B N H SR

Interest coverage ratio

MEBEEX

Debt to capitalisation ratio

BY AR *

Net assets value per share

BREEFE

Capital expenditures to depreciation ratio

AEARXEITEL X

Capital expenditures coverage ratio

BAAXBELE

Depreciation to cash flow ratio

FEHRSREBLLE

Return on average equity

F IR M o [0 $ K

Return on total capital and borrowings

EARREFBFEDRE

Total debt to cash flow ratio
REBEHRERELLE

Operating profit — Financial and securities income

mE RN - RESRA

Revenue

U 1

eratinggrofit after finance costs

Op
OB BLE AR A8 2 825 A

Revenue

U z8

Profit after income tax — Share of profits less losses of
jointly controlled entities and associated companies
PTG 15 12 0 ) — A5 FE (R 7 ) B 68 Re Bk 5% 2 0 ARUEs 18

Revenue

U 38

Profit before income tax + Interest expenses

FfT 15 B Bl M+ R B B 52

Interest expenses + Capitalised interest

MERZ+BEERMEZ 7B

Total debt
FCRERE

Total debt + Minority interests + Capital and reserves attributable
to equity holders of the Compa
BEB+IHRRER+ AR 7%@%%AEE§$&%%

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAEER B ARIEE AR E

Number of shares in issue at balance sheet date
REZEBBE BT ZIRY
Cash flow on capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment

EARXZWE HEMRBZRERE

Deprecrgtron
e

Cash ﬂow from operatlons

LEBZRASRE"

Cash flow on capital expendltures for property, plant and equipment

BARAXz2WE HRBENRRBIRERE

Deprecrgtlon
e

Cash flow from operatlons

ruxgsrResRs"

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
RRATERETHE AN BT

Average capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company

FHRARFRERAAREERNRFE
Profit before income tax + Interest expenses

PSR E A + ) RF 2

Total debt + Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders
of the Company + Minority interests
BEE + ARFRRAEHEARBHEANES + PBRRER
Total debt
wEE

Cash flow from operatrons v

RukmsBmeRe"

(1) Cash flow from operations exclude the movement of financial assets at fair value () KEEBZRERETEERAFEFTARTNNER

through profit or loss and property under development for sale together with the

Z,ﬁﬂﬂééﬁﬁﬁdﬁﬁéﬁqﬂ%%Z&@ﬂ&aﬂﬂif%

proceeds received from sale of stocks of residential properties in order to reflect a ETEHEER  UFEEHEERRBESE  WE

more accurate position of cash flow from contracting, property/facility

management services and rental operations.

REEERGRABEBIREREER -
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ERRODBFELIE

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
FEBRIT(BE)ERAF
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China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
BRABRTRNERRAA

Hang Seng Bank Limited
BERTERRAA

HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA
EERARTGRLT)BERAF

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM11
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Hsin Chong Center

107-109 Wai Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2579 8238
BENEEE

1# % £7107-1095%

& b

B 55 1 (852) 2579 8238

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road
Pembroke, HMO08
Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
EAPRBFLHELARDA
EBEFERANERI183I%
ABMABLI7IEI1712-1716

5 December 2008
6 January 2009

Announcement of interim results
Payment date for interim dividend

Announcement of final results 1 April 2009
Ex-dividend date for proposed final dividend 19 May 2009
Annual General Meeting for 2009 26 May 2009
Payment date for proposed final dividend 9 June 2009

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.  Annual Report 2008

—EENF+=ZAAA
—ZEEhhF—AKH
—ZEZNAEFEMA—H

ZAERA+TNE

Stock Code 00404

B 42 4% 5%

Board Lot 2,000 shares
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Share Price Period High HK$2.370
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Period Low HK$0.455
ZHIRIE  BH04557T

Website http://www.hsinchong.com
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Email Address info@hcg.com.hk
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Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
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